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Shareholding Structure
IRIEZRAE

Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited Public Investors and Others*

RE (RE) ARAF DRREE R H >

SHENZHEN INVESTMENT LIMITED

RYERERAA

60.59% 39.41%

Road King Infrastructure Limited
HRHEZARAF
R3R5EStock Code: 1098

Coastal Greenland Limited
HEBREREERAT
R4 X8k Stock Code: 1124

Principal Subsidiaries Principal Associates
ETEMEAR ETEBE QT

* Including approximately 0.11% interests held by existing directors.

* BEN0 I EERREEERE -
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Chairman’s Statement

ERWE

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2013, under the background of relatively loosened monetary policies
and strong rigid housing demand as well as improvement demand, the
real estate market in China was picking up continuously, in particular, the
real estate transactions were active with a strong recovery in the first-tier
cities. The Group grasped the market opportunities, accelerated its property
development and sales, implemented its strategic transformation and
achieved satisfactory operating results.

ANNUAL RESULTS AND PAYMENT OF DIVIDENDS

During the year, the Group achieved a turnover of HK$9,778.8 million from
the continuing operations, rising 17.6% vyear on year. Profit for the year
attributable to the shareholders was HK$2,738.4 million, representing an
increase of 27.0% over the same period of last year. Basic earnings per
share was HK58.97 cents. The Board recommended a final dividend of
HK12.00 cents per share for 2013.

IMPLEMENTING THE STRATEGY OF INTENSIFYING THE
DEVELOPMENT IN SHENZHEN AND OBTAINING QUALITY
LAND RESOURCES

Since 2013, through asset injection from its parent company, cooperation
with other Shenzhen state-owned enterprises and impetus to urban
redevelopment projects, the Group acquired 4 quality projects, increased
its land reserves in Shenzhen by a gross floor area of over 1,270,000
square meters, and effectively implemented the strategy of intensifying the
development in Shenzhen and laid a firm foundation for sustainable growth
in future.

In early 2013, the Group successfully initiated the quality asset injection
from its parent company. The initial injected project of UpperHills (2 E
%) (also known as Kezhigu B2 %) is located in Futian District, Shenzhen
City, which is adjacent to Futian CBD, with unique geographical location
and natural sceneries. The project has a gross floor area of 788,910 square
meters, it is an urban complex comprising of premier apartments, offices
buildings, hotel and shopping centers, will become the new landmark of
Shenzhen.
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Chairman’s Statement
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During the year, the Group signed an agreement with Shenzhen Metro Co.
Ltd. to acquire a 50% stake of a metro property development project at
Tanglang station, Nanshan District in Shenzhen for RMB1.208 billion. The
project has a gross floor area of 261,510 square meters, it is a complex
project with residential houses, apartments, offices, commercial spaces and
a hotel.

During the year, the Group made a break through progress on
redevelopment projects. Firstly, we completed all resettlement negotiations
and officially obtained the qualification of development capacity for Guanlan
Rose Garden (BLMEHst) project, which is located in Guanlan, Baoan
District with a gross floor area of about 125,000 square meters. Secondly,
the Group obtained the approval for the specific planning of Chegongmiao
(*H 228 redevelopment project and obtained the qualification of development
capacity for the Phase 1 of that project as well. Chegongmiao redevelopment
project is located in Chegongmiao, Futian and a planned gross floor area for
the whole project is about 420,000 square meters, of which the Phase 1 is
currently self-owned properties with a planned gross floor area of 100,000
square meters.

Furthermore, in January 2014, the Company signed an agreement to
acquire from its parent company a 100% stake in Shenzhen Bio-Agriculture
Company Limited, which indirectly hold the entire equity interest in
Shenzhen Nongke Holdings Company Limited (“Nongke Group”), for
RMB5.623 billion. Nongke Group owns valuable lands and property assets in
Shenzhen downtown. As at the announcement date, a total gross floor area
attributable to Nongke Group is around 385,000 square meters. Nongke
Group's core assets, Mingren (% \) project is located in Honey Lake, with a
gross floor area of 259,300 square meters. It is a planned complex project
comprising of residential houses, apartments, offices and a commercial
hotel. In addition, Nongke Group also owns approximately 90,000 square
meters properties for investment and self-occupation, which are mainly in
Honey Lake area. This acquisition is subject to independent shareholder's
approval.

PROMOTING PROJECT SALES ACTIVELY

The Group grasped the market opportunities to actively facilitate the sales
of its projects. The projects including UpperHills (%3 3%), Shenzhen
Terra Building (UII# 4 K &), Shenzhen Noble Times (HIITE KAL),
Guangzhou Jiangyue Bay (BEMIVLHLES), Huizhou Wanlin Lake (EJH #5Ak
), Wuhan Nanhu (), had recorded good sales results. The Group
achieved contracted sales of approximately RMB9 billion in 2013, rising
47.1% year on year, and the total subscription amount over RMB10 billion,
including subscription amount of RMB2.5 billion from UpperHills (3 L 4ik)
acquired through asset injection in early 2013, and the contracted sales of
approximately RMB1.3 billion.
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Saleable Area Distribution

AEERTD M

By area
REERE

First-tier cities15%

— iR

Second-tier cities 21%

—BREm

Third-tier cities 64%

=/Em
Type distribution
5
Commercial 4%
[GES
Industrial 2%
TI%
Office 3%
II/N
Apartment 8%
nE

Residential 83%
F=

DISPOSAL OF NON-CORE BUSINESS AND INEFFICIENT
ASSETS, IMPROVING OPERATIONAL EFFICIENCY

During the year, the Group took steps to promote the disposal of its real
estate projects in the third and fourth-tier cities as well as other non-core
business, and achieved positive results. In November, the Group signed a
supplemental agreement with local government in regard of unpaid and
undelivered land sites of the Yundonghai (Z# i) project in Sanshui,
significantly reduced the Group's further capital expenditure on this project.
In the end of the year, the Group further optimized its business structure
by selling to the parent company a 80% equity interest in Shumkang Group
which engages in the operation of taxi services and transport business.
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Chairman’s Statement
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BUSINESS OUTLOOK

Industry Prospect

As the US and European economies recover gradually and the Fed exits
from its quantitative easing policy, emerging economies has suffered to
different extent. As for China, it will initiate various reform agendas in full
swing for the year of 2014. The government will keep its macroeconomic
policies stable, maintain steady growth and ensure employment rate will
not fall below the prescribed minimum level and that inflation rate will not
go beyond the projected level. As the economic performance remains a
reasonable range, the government will concentrate its efforts on structural
revision and various reformation. Structural revision will lead to pain and
uncertainty on macroeconomic in short-term but to benefit the sustainable
development and improvement on quality in long-term as various
reformation will inject great vitality into the market.

As for the real estate market, we anticipate that the real estate market will
lean on the market-oriented measures and the administrative control policies
will gradually become weaker. The government will focus on satisfying the
housing demand for low income people. In 2014, the real estate market
situation might not be optimistic. The third and fourth-tier cities will face
a slow sell-through rate due to oversupply, and the first-tier cities will take
time for digestion and rebalance after the significant growth in 2013, with
transaction volume less than last year and price remain relatively steady.
Although the real estate market will confront many uncertainties, we believe
that in view of China’s urbanization process and population structure, real
estate is still a developing industry, and the markets in core cities are still
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Chairman’s Statement
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improving steadily. We are confident in the sound long-term development
of real estate industry. The Group will cope with the market changes on
a timely basis and adopt flexible strategies to develop progressively and
steadily by closely monitoring the macroeconomic development condition
and real estate sector development.

Accelerating Strategic Transformation and Upgrade

The Group will accelerate its strategic transformation and resource
structure revision; continual implementation of its strategy of intensifying
the development in Shenzhen and base itself on urban redevelopment
to increase its market share in Shenzhen; continual promotion of its
transformation from the “development and sale” model to the “development,
sale and holding” model through building up various professional platforms,
and improving the mix of investment properties to achieve a stable and
prudent operation; optimizing its financing structure and fund management
to ensure fund safety and steady growth; optimizing its incentive and
restrictive mechanism in order to facilitate the guiding role of assessment on
strategies implementation.

Property Development and Sales

The annual saleable property area in 2014 is approximately 1.88 million
square meters with saleable property value of approximately RMB25 billion
of which Shenzhen accounts for half of the value. The annual sales target is
about RMB10.5 billion, rising 16.7% as compared with the actual contracted
sales in 2013. In 2014, most property projects will be launched in the
second and third quarters. The Group will strive to achieve the sales targets
by tapping into the market opportunities and adopting flexible pricing.
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The Group will retune its project development progress, enhance milestone
management, ensure sufficient saleable property area, and maintain
a sustainable development. In 2014, the Group has a planned new
construction area of approximately 2.1 million square meters and will give
high priority to the project commencement of Mingren (£ A), Tanglang (¥
B1) metro property, Guanlan Rose Garden (BLME(IE3E) and the first phase
of Chegongmiao (HZAH) redevelopment, to laying a good foundation for
the substantial growth in the next two years.

LAND RESERVES

The Group will continue to implement its strategy of intensifying the
development in Shenzhen, and optimize its land reserves structure while
continuing to maintain the existing scale of its land reserves.

The Group owns considerable potential resources in Shenzhen. Firstly, it
has 6 urban redevelopment projects located in Lianhuashan, Sungang,
Qingshuihe, Shangbu, Chegongmiao and Guanlan, Futian respectively, with a
total planned gross floor area of over 2 million square meters among which
500,000 square meters is subject to resettlement negotiation. Secondly,
there are another 2 to 3 projects are under way with the application for
joining the urban redevelopment program. Moreover, Shum Yip Group, the
parent of the Company has qualified land reserves with gross floor area of
over 1.8 million square meters in Shenzhen.
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The Group will continue to focus on its development in Shenzhen, make
good use of its resources advantages, and complement to its quality land
resources in various way. In addition, the Group will continue seeking
potential partners and accelerate the implementation of the disposal of
certain inefficient projects in the third and fourth-tier cities.

FINANCIAL STRATEGY
The Group will adhere to the consistent principle of maintaining healthy
financial position, endeavour to reduce financing costs, and improve capital
turnover efficiency to provide concrete protection of financial resources for
its business development.

CORPORATE PROSPECT

Looking forward, the Group is very confident for the continuous growth of
its performance in future. The Group will continue to implement its strategy
of intensifying the development in Shenzhen, increase quality land reserves
in Shenzhen, continuously optimize the structure of its land reserves, focus
on both holding and development, improve cost control and operation
standard, accelerate the assets turnover, improve the assets and liabilities
and cash flow management. It is committed to maximize the value for our

shareholders.

FEBKEBAR)RER  HEERE
2 EEZEIAHRRYEELHER
AN - BBEES KBRS ERH - NRE
B=  WRBMERREHEE °

Bt 75 SR W
AEESBRPBREN-ERY - EHE
BREXA REESBEYEX  REKE
RIBHIAD NP B ERRE

REAIR

RERE » NEBH R BRKEENFEE
RIAEMEL » AEEBEBERFRERYIK
B - SRAURYIMEEE LR AR
THREEER  BERMARYE  BAKAK
ERMEZEKYF - MREERE  HEEE
BEMRERER  BHAOARRBBRRAESRA
BE -

|13 |
Shenzhen Investment Limited
YRR AR AT
ANNUAL REPORT 2013 F#f



Leading Upperlemg
2148 R

GAO Shengyuan
BEx
President TTE#2#,



(T

|15 |
Shenzhen Investment Limited
YRR AR AT
ANNUAL REPORT 2013 F#f




Management
Discussion and Analysis

BB wmE D AT

OVERALL RESULTS

During the year, the Group achieved a turnover of HK$9,778.8 million from
the continuing operations, representing an increase of 17.6% over the same
period of last year. Gross profit margin was 36.8%, representing an increase
of 0.8 percentage point over the same period of last year. Profit attributable
to shareholders was HK$2,738.4 million, representing an increase of 27.0%
over the same period of last year. If excluding the net effect on the changes
in fair value of investment properties attributable to the Group, gain on
bargain purchase and provision for investment in Coastal Greenland, profit
attributable to shareholders was HK$1,786.9 million, which increased by
9.0% over the same period of last year. Basic earnings per share were
HK$58.97 cents, representing a decrease of 0.4% over the same period of
last year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BT

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT AND SALES

During the year, sales of the major properties of the Group were satisfied.
The Group achieved a net sales revenue of HK$7,204.9 million in property
development, which was mainly generated from property sales and land
sales.

During the vyear, the Group recorded 538,565 square meters in property
sales (excluding the interests attributable to the Group in its three principal
associates), representing an increase of 2.0% over the same period of last
year and achieved a net revenue in property sales of RMB5,622.8 million
(equivalent to HK$7,040.2 million) (net of business tax), representing an
increase of 17.1% over the same period of last year. Gross profit margin of
property sales was 40.9%, representing an increase of 1.7 percentage points
over the same period of last year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
SRR E

During the year, the Group completed all procedures for the transfer of a FRN - AEBETKEYD B IREEOM
land parcel in Changsha, of which a net revenue in land sales of RMB131.4 BTE #EHLHMFHEERAAREIZ14
million (equivalent to HK$164.7 million) and gross profit of HK$108.6 BETL HERI647TEEET  BREF

million were recorded. 108.6EEETT °
2013 Table of Property Sales Booked 2013 FHEHEYEHER
Property Name Location Type Sales area Unit price Net sales
BB AE iz LSzl HEME BEHREE FIHER
(sqm) (RMB/sgm) (RMB Million)
(NREETL/

(FEFK) FAK) (AR®BET)
Wanlin Lake Huizhou Residential/Shops 15,724 8,950 141
=Y Vi =M F=E/ mEe
Noah Mountain Forest Changsha Residential/Shops 2,865 5410 15
o Lk & F%E /75
Rui Cheng Phase 1.1 Changsha Residential 16,267 5,259 86
1.1 8 2372 F=E
Garden Hill Huizhou Residential/Shops 23,095 4,826 111
F1L478 =N FE /8
Splendid city Jiangyan Residential/Shops 28,884 4,256 123
A =B F%E /78
European-view Garden Dongguan Residential 21,607 5,968 129
B=EL = F=E
Terra Building Shenzhen Office buildings 37,052 43,720 1,620
TARNE wI BTE
Seaview Garden Shenzhen Residential 966 43,893 42
Bl 3l (E==
Nanhu Rose Bay Wuhan Residential/Shops 53,188 8,747 465
RERECR & W= T,/ mEm
Yihu Rose Garden Chengdu Residential/Shops 16,509 5217 86
18R BR L R ED F=E /B
Purple Kylin Hill Shenzhen Residential 7,616 15,059 115
S ol =
Royal Garden Shenzhen Residential 22,089 9,476 209
& el F=E
Noble Times Shenzhen Residential/Shops 82,732 10,778 892
REER gl F=E /B
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BT

Property Name Location Type Sales area Unit price Net sales
BREE iz pbil HEmE BYHKRER FHER
(sqm) (RMB/sgm) (RMB Million)

(AR®RT/
(F73K) FEK)  (AR®EBEER)
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Management Discussion and Analysis
SRR E

FAREBEERAREEMIET29,469F 5
K ARBEERAARES0I0EE L A
b ER47.100 ©

During the year, the Group achieved 729,469 square meters in contracted
sales area and contracted sales income of RMB9,010 million, representing
an increase of 47.1% over the same period of last year.

2013 Annual Contracted Sales Table 2013FSRAHBER

Accumulated Accumulated Pre-sale
sales area sales for unit price
Project City Type for the year the year
RERF RERG

TAH Vil RtE HEME HEERH HEEE

(sqm) (RMB million) (RMB/sgm)

(NR#TL/

(FFRK)  (AREEBEERT) FHK)

UpperHills Shenzhen Apartment 20,755 1,304 62,852
RE L wI YN

Shumyip Huafu Phase | Changzhou Residential 4,874 47 9,683
REERN—H M F=

Shumyip Huafu Phase 1.1 Maanshan Residential 26,547 185 6,986
AREER—H—EE BEIL =

Noble Times Shenzhen Residential 50,877 675 13,271
RRER wIN T=

Royal Spring Garden Dongguan Car Park 426 4 8,398
PN = HE

Jiangyue Bay (Jinshazhou Project) Guangzhou Residential 68,954 1,082 15,685
SPIMIHEER BEM =

Saina Bay Heyuan Residential 17,855 193 10,835
EWE AR T=

Shumyip City Shunde, Foshan Residential 76,395 531 6,949
REEW AN F=

Royal Garden Shenzhen Residential 35,746 321 8,991
iElE wI F=E

Yundonghai Phase | South Area  Sanshui, Foshan Residential 20,730 222 10,692

(Land 2 low-rise housing)
ERE—H R _EEZE) Bl =7k =
[52]

Purple Kylin Hill Shenzhen Residential 7,037 132 18,796

eyl el T=
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BT

Accumulated Accumulated Pre-sale

sales area sales for unit price
Project City Type for the year the year
RERG AEZRE

BHE W Rl E HEEE HEDHE FEEEE

(sqm) (RMB million) (RMB/sqm)

(AR®R/

(FAK)  (AREEET) FHK)
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BEETWED

PROJECT DEVELOPMENT AND LAND RESERVES

During the year, the Group had a new construction area of approximately 2.1

million square meters.

Management Discussion and Analysis

THEBRELT HRE

FA - REEFHIEELQ2108F 7K -

Nature of
Project Name and Phases City land use Planned GFA Saleable area
HEEBRDH Vil At E MBI EmE AIEEE
(sqm) (sqm)
(F73K) (FFHX)
Shumyip Huafu Phase 1.2 Maanshan Residential 85,000 65,000
REFERN—H—HEE BRI F=
Shumyip Huafu project Phase 2 Changzhou Residential 129,063 98,846
IREZET —H M F=
Jiangyue Bay (Jinshazhou) Phase 2 Guangzhou Residential 155,266 122,005
SWIMTHEEER — 8 B F=
Jiangyue Bay (Jinshazhou) Guangzhou Residential 6,392 -
Government housing
SPIMIHEEE —HRE M F=
Splendid city Phase 2.2 Taizhou Residential 100,807 96,325
RAE W2 2HAEE Z=M F=
Shumyip city phase 3.1a Shunde, Foshan Residential 165,671 113,509
REH=H (—RIFER) BBl - EfE =
Shumyip city phase 3.1b Shunde, Foshan Residential 115,383 73,071
RER=H (—EIRE) BBl - EfE F=
Wainlin lake Phase 8.3 Huizhou Residential 124,227 61,488
BH8.3 5 =M F=
Wainlin lake Phase 8.4 Huizhou Residential 62,951 62,095
B84 5 JZM F=
Ruicheng Phase 2.1 Changsha Residential 130,651 92,072
IRFEBW2. 18 = F=
UpperHills South Shenzhen Commercial/ 650,190 244,000
office buildings
RE I R el EEYE-E=
Tanglang Property* Shenzhen Complex 261,510 182,000
VERAME F AR IAR* sl e
Sungang Project Phase 1 Shenzhen Complex 120,000 60,000
FEY AR sl o)
Total &7t 2,107,111 1,270,411
* The relevant procedures for the Tanglang Project transactions were completed in * EREESNEEEER T —mE— A

January 2014. The Company has 50% of interest in that project. The project will

be accounted for using the equity method.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEETWED

During the year, the Group had a completed area of approximately 0.94

million square meters.

FA - AEETTHENIAEFTIK -

Project Name and Phases City Nature of land use Planned GFA Saleable area
HEZEEDH i) At E REEEMmME AEmE
(sqm) (sqm)
(F75%) (FH%)
Shumyip Huafu Phase 1.1 Maanshan Residential 226,905 171,115
REERN—H—AE BRI F=
Noble Times Phase 2 Shenzhen Residential 132,490 109,481
RARBIR = H wI F=
Shumyip City Phase 2 Shunde Residential 200,224 128,889
RER (ZH) B r=
Saina Bay Phase 1.E Heyuan Residential 25,751 18,188
ZENE—HER AR F=
Wanlin Lake Phase 8.1 Huizhou Residential 79,182 52,517
S8 5] =M F=
Ruicheng Phase 1.2a Changsha Residential 130,322 97,746
REEEP.2a §37 F=
Qingshuihe Auto park Phase 1 Shenzhen Complex 41,900 15,050
VB ZIOR] B B B W EE A [ — B el e
Nanhu Rose Bay Phase 3 villas (66-69#) Wuhan Residential 5,857 5,082
A ER S = BRI ZE (66-694) HE (E5
Nanhu Rose Bay Phase 3. IV (39-41#)  Wuhan Residential 51,161 45,763
FAERE = HAIV(39-414) Iz F=E
Yihu Rose Garden Phase 1.1 4# Chengdu Complex 13,833 6,410
MR SE |- ER 441 X ER o)
Yihu Rose Garden Phase 1.2 12# Chengdu Complex 28,966 27,244
RABBRIE-IIH 1 2418 PR o)
Total &&F 936,591 677,485
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B WED A

ASSET INJECTION AND GAIN ON BARGAIN PURCHASE

During the year, the Company entered into an agreement with Shum Yip
Holdings Company Limited (“Shum Yip Holdings"), the parent company, to
acquire the 100% of interest in Kezhigu project, located at Futian District,
from its parent company at the consideration satisfied by way of allotment
and issue of 1,410,117,262 consideration shares to Shum Yip Holdings.
The issue price of the consideration share is HK$3.667 per share, which
represented a premium of 9.1% to the closing price on the date preceding
the announcement of the transaction. The closing price of the Company's
ordinary share was HK$3.29 per share on the completion date of the
transaction, the fair value of the consideration shares was determined at
HK$4,639,286,000 accordingly. (For details, please refer to the circular
dated 28 March 2013).

The transaction was a major and connected transaction which had been
approved at the extraordinary general meeting held on 18 April 2013 and
completed on 31 May 2013. The Group recorded a gain of HK$637.9
million on bargain purchase of the transaction and was recorded as profit for
the year.

LAND RESERVES
During the year, the Group effectively implemented the strategy of
intensifying the development in Shenzhen and newly added 4 projects
all situated in Shenzhen, the land reserves with gross floor area of
approximately 1.27 million square meters, which improved the land reserves
quality substantially.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEETWED

Newly Added Lands gL hIE B
Interest Acquisition
Project Name GFA  Location Type Percentage Costs  Remark
JHE A BEEE LF i Esank ERRA B
(ten thousand
sqm) (RMB billion)
(BEX) (%) (TETAR®)
UpperHills 78.89  Futian Complex 100 9.6%  An asset injection project with
wE &M RAE construction started in 2012,
apartment sales in 2013, and
LOFT sales scheduled in 2015.
EEIARE  2012FHT
RE2013F#HE + LOFTEF 812015
ERIRHE -
Tanglang Project 26.15  Nanshan Complex 50 1.208% A cooperation project with
VA 20 Fak construction started in late 2013
and sales scheduled in 2015.
&fF 20135 ERT © 52
2015FRBHEE -
Guanlan Rose Garden 125  Baoan Residential 38 To be confirm A redevelopment project having
BRBORAE ER fF= byland  developing entity qualification,
authority  with construction and sales
HELEPF  scheduled in 2014 and 2015.
R OWMER  EEREERE
Eif - 5HEI2014FF T - 20155
FRHE
Chegongmiao 10 Futian Complex 75 To be confirm A redevelopment project having
redevelopment aH Fak byland  developing entity qualification,
Phase 1 authority  with construction and sales
ERBHmE N5 HELEPF  scheduled in 2014 and 2016.
BR MR EERERRE
BIE - 5220145 HI
20165 FMIHE
*  The relevant procedures for the Tanglang Project transaction were completed * BEHTEBEXSNERFER2014F1A R

in January 2014. The percentage of interest attributable to the Company in this
project is 50%, which will be accounted for using the equity method.

**  The acquisition costs for UpperHills include consideration shares, outstanding
payment of land premium to the land authority and undertake the debts of the
project company, etc.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B WED A

As of the end of December 2013, the Group had a total gross land reserve
of 11.59 million square meters (in gross floor area) with an attributable
gross floor area of 10.39 million square meters (excluding the interests
attributable to the Group in its three principal associated companies).
Of which, the total gross floor area of projects under construction was
approximately 3.28 million square meters and the attributable gross floor
area was 3.1 million square meters.

Table of Land Reserves by City Distribution
(as at 31 December 2013)

HIEZZT—=F+_AFK A5ETHEHE
MBEEMEARII98 T K EmEE
EE1,0398F A K (FTERERAEEE =K
FTEBME ARG AP EEEA
MEEEEAN328B T HK  Ba@EmiE
3108 K o

THREEE TR
(BZ=2013%F12A31H)

Percentage of

GFA Attr. GFA GFA
FREEETE BEEEEE BREEEMLEAED L

(sqm) (sqm)
(FFF7K) (FFFK) (%)
Shenzhen ol 1,862,100 1,584,919 16
Huizhou =M 1,757,884 1,623,936 15
Foshan R 1L 1,140,931 1,140,931 10
Dongguan RiE 54,131 54,131 -
Heyuan AR 938,750 938,750 8
Guangzhou = 350,338 350,338 3
Wuhan nE 1,010,252 530,382 9
Changsha §97 540,515 540,515 5
Maanshan 81l 1,175,571 1,175,571 10
Chaohu L 100,000 100,000 1
Taizhou Z=M 1,372,206 1,372,206 12
Changzhou N 162,263 162,263 1
Chengdu B #B 913,955 599,291 8
Other EAth 215,952 215,952 2
11,594,848 10,389,185 100
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B WED A

MOBILIZATION OF INEFFICIENT ASSETS

The Group proactively to dispose of certain projects in third and fourth-
tier cities. During the year, the Group signed a supplemental agreement
with local government of Sanshui, Foshan in regard of the unpaid and
undelivered land site (with land area of 585,000 square meters) of the
Yundonghai project in Sanshui. According to the agreement, the Group's
obligation on paying the corresponding land premium of RMB700 million
was terminated. The termination of payment on unpaid and undelivered
land caused no penalty charge, nor gains (losses), but it will significantly
reduce the Group's future capital expenditure on the project.

OTHER CONNECTED TRANSACTION AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTION

During the year, the Group underwent an internal restructuring in relation
to the shareholding interest of Wuai, its non wholly-owned subsidiary,
whereby Shum Yip Taifu Logistics, a subsidiary owned by the Group,
acquired the Wuai equity interest and assign its rights and interests in the
Wuai shareholder's loan from Shum Yip Shumkang, another non wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Group, at an aggregate consideration of RMB229
million. Meanwhile, the Group sold the 80% Shumkang equity interest
to Shum Yip Holdings, a substantial shareholder of the Company, at a
consideration of RMB340 million. Shum Yip Shumkang is principally engaged
in city taxi services and transport business. (For details, please refer to the
announcement dated 31 December 2013).

During the year, Nongke Property, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Shum Yip
Holdings, the parent of the Company, appointed Shum Yip Land, a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company as its agent to sell residential units
located in Shenzhen City, the PRC. Both parties entered into an estate
agency agreement. The transaction is a continuing connected transaction
(For details, please refer to the announcement dated 8 April 2013).

PROPERTY INVESTMENTS

During the year, the Group’s property investment business continued to
maintain a steady growth. The total area of our investment properties was
over 900,000 square meters, with an achieved rental income of HK$547.9
million for the year, representing an increase of approximately 9.7% over
the same period of last year. During the year, as a result of the increase
in total rental area, the optimization of investment property portfolio and
the increase in rental income, the Group recorded a revaluation gain of
HK$624.0 million in its investment property portfolio in which it had already
been recorded as profit for this year.
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BEETWED

JOINT VENTURE

During the year, Taizhou Shum Yip Investment Development Limited (a
51% owned company of the Group) made a net profit contribution of
HK$219.2 million to the Group, representing an increase of 351.7% over
the same period of last year. The principal activity of this company is to
provide relevant services to local governments in primary land development.

ASSOCIATES’ RESULTS

During the year, the performance of associates invested by the Group
was within expectation. Of which, Shenzhen Tianan Cyber Park (Group)
Co. Ltd., made a net profit contribution of HK$544.0 million to the Group,
representing a decrease of 4.7% over the same period of last year. Road
King Infrastructure Limited, a listed company in Hong Kong, made a net
profit contribution of HK$289.2 million to the Group, representing an
increase of 53.4% over the same period of last year. Coastal Greenland
Limited, a listed company in Hong Kong, made a loss of HK$10.0 million to
the Group, as compared with a gain of HK$74.2 million for the same period
of last year. The Group made a provision for impairment of investment in
Coastal Greenland of HK$96.0 million according to the relevant accounting
standard.

FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2013, the Group's total bank loans and other borrowings
amounted to HK$24,289.4 million, of which HK$21,297.9 million were
floating-rate loans, and the remaining were fixed rate loans. Long-term
loans amounted to HK$12,167.5 million, representing approximately
50.1% of total borrowings, and short-term loans were HK$12,121.9 million,
representing approximately 49.9% of total borrowings.

As of 31 December 2013, the Group's cash balance (including pledged
deposits and restricted cash) was HK$7,478.3 million, of which
approximately 80.6% and 19.4% were denominated in Renminbi and
other currencies respectively (mainly in US$ and HK$). The Group's main
operating cash inflow was denominated in Renminbi, while the assets held
and debts committed are mainly stated in Renminbi and US$ unit, the
exchange rate movements will not have significant financial impact to the
Group in short-run as expected.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had net assets (excluding non-
controlling interests) of HK$25,337.8 million, the net gearing ratio with the
liabilities including bank loans and other borrowings only was 66.3% and the
net gearing ratio with the liabilities including all the other liabilities carrying
interest was 87.3%. The gross gearing ratio (the ratio of total liabilities over
total assets) was 64.1%.
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Table of Financial Position

MBERR

31 December 31 December

2013 2012
—E-=4F —T—F
+-A=+—8 +-A=+—H
HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BEET
Bank loans and other borrowings RITERERHMER 24,289.4 22,210.4
Long-term debts RHGE 12,167.5 13,236.2
Short-term debts MHIBE 12,121.9 8,974.2
Floating-rate debts FEER 21,297.9 18,578.2
Cash (including pledged deposits Re (BEEERER
and restricted cash) MEZRHIRE) 7,478.3 7,305.8
The net gearing ratio with the liabilities including FAER (BERBIERT
bank loans and other borrowings only RHEMER) 66.3% 84.9%
The net gearing ratio with the liabilities including FBEX (BE8E
all the other liabilities carrying interest FEwRAR) 87.3% 86.4%
PLEDGE OF ASSETS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES POSITION EEBARIAEEMRR

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had total loans of HK$3,764.2 million
that were pledged with assets (For details, see note 31 to the financial
statements).

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had provided guarantees to a
maximum of approximately HK$3,193.0 million to banks for housing loans
extended by the banks to the purchasers on the Group's properties (For
details, see note 41(ii) to the financial statements).

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2013, Shum Yip Holdings, the parent of the Company
was interested in approximately 60.59% of the Company, and was the
largest shareholder of the Company.

During the vyear, a total of 10,570,230 share options were exercised. During
the year, the Company did not buy-back any of its shares.
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During the year, the Company issued a total of 157,340,008 shares to the TR ARFMEEABRRBNR - —=
shareholders who elected to receive their 2012 final dividend by way of FREAKR SRR ERI£157,340,008% -
scrip dividends, and a total of 74,012,397 shares to the shareholders who MEEEURR BB —E—=FF HRE M
elected to receive their 2013 interim dividend by way of scrip dividends, of FREREEP H£74,012,3970% » Efp KIRFHIRE
which, Shum Yip Holdings, the largest shareholder, received its dividends in (5£H) BREDMARM A ME - Bh =
full in the form of scrip dividends, totalling 126,098,029 shares for its 2012 T— - F KRB 126,098,0290% » —F—
final dividend and 68,738,416 shares for its 2013 interim dividend. = FhHIl% 268,738,416/ °

During the year, the Company issued 1,410,117,262 shares to its substantial FR - ARABAAREFRE (£8) #EH
shareholder, Shum Yip Holdings, which was used to satisfy the consideration f%1,410,117,2628 - AR HRER 24
for the acquisition of Kezhigu project. TH B HHE -

As at 31 December 2013, the issued share of the Company was RZE—=F+=-A=+—H ' ~xRFZE
5,381,055,305 shares (31 December 2012: 3,729,015,408 shares). E1TIEA5,381,055,305 (= — —F+
Z—A=+—H8 :3,729,015,408/%) °

UpperHills Hotel Banquet Storey R% B EZ &% [E
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STAFF HEADCOUNT AND REMUNERATION
As at 31 December 2013, the Group had a total staff number of 17,264
of which 34 were stationed in Hong Kong (mainly managerial and finance-
related personnel), and the rest in Mainland China.

Employee benefits include salaries, allowances, medical insurance and
mandatory retirement contributions. We also award bonuses and grant share
options under the share option scheme of the Group, to employees based
on individual performance and the results of the Group.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In January 2014, the Company entered into a conditional agreement with
Shum Yip Holdings, the parent of the Company, to acquire 100% stake in
Shenzhen Bio-Agriculture Company Limited, which indirectly hold the entire
equity interest in Nongke Group, for RMB5.623 billion, of which, 50% of
the consideration will be settled by cash and 50% will be settled by new
shares issuance to the parent company. Around 1.1 billion new shares will
be issued to Shum Yip Holdings at HK$3.286 per share, represent 21.7%
premium to the closing price of the last trading date (27 January 2014).
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Nongke Group is an indirect subsidiary wholly-owned by Shum Yip Holdings.
It engages in property development and investment, property management,
garden design and construction, manufacture and sale of agricultural
products. Nongke Group owns valuable lands and property assets in
Shenzhen downtown, and the property business became its largest segment.
The property investment and development division and the property
management division accounted for 94.99% of the total segment revenue
and 99.1% of the total segment assets of Nongke Group in December
2013. As at the announcement date, a total gross floor area attributable
to Nongke Group was around 385,000 square meters (including mainly
undeveloped land, investment properties and self-occupied properties).

Core assets owned by Nongke Group mainly includes: (1) Mingren project:
this project is located in Honey Lake area of Futian District, with land area
of 39,158 square meters and gross floor area of 259,300 square meters.
It is a planned complex project with residential and serviced apartments of
141,185 square meters, offices of 80,547 square meters, hotel of 7,200
square meters, commercial spaces of 20,000 square meters and other
facilities. There is also an outstanding land premium of RMB3.305 billion
in this project. The project is scheduled to be commenced in 2014 and
its presale will be launched in 2015. (2) Tianyu Xiangshan Project: this
project is located in Honey Lake, which has almost been sold out in 2013.
(3) Investment property in Honey lake area: key properties include units in
Times Technology Buildings, units in Nongke Oasis Office Tower, and some
residential units in Xiangzhu Garden, Longxi Garden, and Xiangli Garden, etc.
(4) for the amount due from Shum Yip Group of RMB1.2 billion, Shum Yip
Group has to repay in full before the completion of the transaction. (For
details, please refer to the announcement dated 27 January 2014).
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Five-Year
Financial Summary

AFUHREE

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
—E-=F ZE-—f ZE——% ZE-TF ZTTNF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FAT FAT FHEL FAET
Restated Restated Restated
mE5| E5| wE5
RESULTS £
REVENUE FROM CONTINUING BFEEEEL
OPERATIONS Al 9,778,807 8312726 7,320,584 6,502,460 5,284,032
PROFIT BEFORE TAX Rt Al 5 A
(Including profit before tax from a (BEFEREEY
discontinued operation) ZBREATRF) 5,093,193 3,701,801 2,892,293 2,440,527 1,660,249
Income tax expense PRSIF %
(Including income tax expense from  (BIEIFHEEL
a discontinued operation) 2B EIRX) (1,982,204) (1,141,561) (1,076,534)  (863,660) (525,758)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FRER 3,110,989 2,560,240 1,815,759 1,576,867 1,134,491
ATTRIBUTABLE TO: T 54
Owners of the parent BRAER A 2,738,432 2,156,069 1,522,078 1,324,780 987,656
Non-controlling interests IR 372,557 404,171 293,681 252,087 146,835
3,110,989 2,560,240 1,815,759 1,576,867 1,134,491
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON- BE - BERFER
CONTROLLING INTERESTS i
Total assets BEE 76,891,525 54,392,007 41,540,624 33,817,517 30,531,796
Total liabilities wmar (49,312,179) (34,882,164) (24,527,687) (19,117,720) (17,120,118)
Non-controlling interests FEimRe s (2,241,535)  (1,961,947) (1,469,558) (1,224,894) (1,021,669)
25,337,811 17,547,896 15543379 13,474,903 12,390,009
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LU Hua
s

Directors and Senior
Management

ESENSRITHRAE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
BTES

Mr. LU Hua, aged 50, is the Chairman of the Board of the Company since 31
January 2013. He is also the chairman of the board Shum Yip Group Limited
and Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited. Mr. LU holds a doctorate degree in
Political Economics from The Nankai University and a master's degree in Finance
from The University of Reading in UK. Mr. LU held various positions including
the chairman of Shenzhen Shahe Industrial (Group) Co., Ltd. CRINTT A EEE
(%£E) AR A7), the president of Shum Yip Group Limited, Shum Yip Holdings
Company Limited and the Company from April 2009 to December 2012. Prior
to this, Mr. LU had served as the chairman of Shahe Industrial Co., Ltd., the
chairman of Shenzhen Shahe Industry (Group) Co., Ltd. and the general manager
of Shenzhen Property Development Company Ltd. At present, he is also a non-
executive director of Road King Infrastructure Limited and Ping An Insurance
(Group) Company of China, Ltd., both being listed companies in Hong Kong.
He has vast experience of over twenty years in property development, corporate
governance and administrative management.

RELE ATR BZZ—=ZF A=+ HERETARAFRIEZEERE - KT
RAZEEERRBLRE (RE) ERAFNEERLIF - ALERBAHHAKE
BOARESELBUMKEE] ARSRBELEM - a 2B -_FTTNFHA
E-T-—F4-R BERITDPAEEX (RE) BRARESEER REEKE
BRAAE - RE (RE) ERAFIEARAFAEETZ EBE - AT BEECHE
ELPTEXBRNBERARNESR  RIMPAEEERABDESTRIRIITYE
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GAO Shengyuan
=ETT

MOU Yong

&5

Directors and Senior Management

EERERITHRAE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
BITES

Mr. GAO Shengyuan, aged 46, joined the Company as the President since 31
January 2013 and was appointed as an Executive Director since 13 June 2013.
He is also the director and president of Shum Yip Group Limited and Shum Yip
Holdings Company Limited currently. He holds a master's degree in Economics
from The Zhongnan University of Economics. He had served as a member of
district committee and standing committee of Futian District, Shenzhen Municipal,
the deputy district chief and deputy secretary of Party Committee of the
People's Government of Futian District, the deputy district chief of the People’s
Government of Nanshan District and department chief of Bureau of Finance of
Nanshan District, Shenzhen Municipal, the deputy director of Bureau of Finance
Budget of Shenzhen Municipal. He has extensive experience in corporate finance
management and capital operation.

BETELE  O+AE BT =F A=t HAENMAXRBEEEE B
TR-ZF-=FAA+=ZAEZEREARARNTES - BRMTEREEEAR
REIRRZE (RH) AR ZEH - REFTERNERBLBEERTEM - REME
AmRARRZEL  RARARBARRERBERERL  #SUEBEARBG
gBRERAITEURFBEERE  FITHRRRERRGR - RECEHH
EENENEESERBEELE TN TIELR -

Mr. MOU Yong, aged 51, is an Executive Director of the Company. At present, he
is also a director of Shum Yip Group Limited and Shum Yip Holdings Company
Limited and its various subsidiaries. He graduated from The Shaanxi University
of Technology with major in Chinese Language and Literature and obtained
an advanced MBA from The Peking University. Presently, he is a lawyer of
The People’s Republic of China and an arbitrator of The Shenzhen Arbitration
Commission. Prior to his joining to Shum Yip in November 2009, he held the
positions of the head of Enterprise Leadership Personnel Management and
the chief of General Office at The Shenzhen Municipal People's Government
State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission. Mr. Mou has

extensive experience in corporate governance and administrative management.

EBRE - AT—R ARAARMTESE - RERTRREEEERAF - RE
(RE) ERARREETHBARZES - REXNRAEETEZREE XEE
X BALRARESRIRERRLIEMN - RARPEARLMBEZEEZRINT
FHZEGHHE - E_TTNF+-ANAREEEZA - REERITAR
BNREEEEBERZESCRBEAREERERR  NAEIE - 2ELERE
CEABERTREREREELE 2 THELR -
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LIU Chong

EES

Directors and Senior Management

EENSRITHRAE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
BITES

Mr. LIU Chong, aged 54, is currently an Executive Director and Vice President
of the Company, a vice president of Shum Yip Group Limited and Shum Yip
Holdings Company Limited. He holds a bachelor's degree and postgraduate
qualification from The lJiangxi Institute of Finance and Economics with major
in Accounting and he is a senior accountant. He joined Shum Yip since April
2010. He used to serve successively as a deputy general manager and financial
controller of Shenzhen SDG Company Limited (RIITFEEEFRAR), a
director and financial controller of Shenzhen Petrochemical Group Co., Ltd., a
director and financial controller of Shenzhen Health Mineral Water Co., Ltd., a
director of Shenzhen Tellus (Group) Company Limited, and an independent
director of Shenzhen Shenxin Taifeng Group Co., Ltd. Mr. Liu has over 30 years
of experience in finance and accounting management.

BIREL  ATHER BRARFARTEZRELE  REEEERAFTIAERE
(RE) ERAFEEH - BEAIOVERR S EXETBURMELERE
WASRGETR - BRR-_Z-—ZEFUAMARESE - RETRYHHEEER
RAFEIAKEE  BFAE  RYCCERBERARNES - BHAE - FAYlma
NERKBNDBERABDES  BBHAE  RITHED (EE) ROAERIFAES
AT RERE (BE) BROARARZBYES - BIEAHABB=TFZ
B eI TR o
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WU Jiesi
HER

Directors and Senior Management

EERERITHRAE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
FPTES

Dr. WU lJiesi, aged 62, is a Non-executive Director of the Company. Dr. WU holds
a doctorate degree in Economics and conducted post-doctorate research work in
theoretical economics at The Nankai University in the PRC and was conferred a
professorship qualification by The Nankai University in 2001. Dr. WU served in
various positions in Industrial and Commercial Bank of China from 1984 to 1995
and served as the president of the Shenzhen Branch. From 1995 to 1998, he
served as the deputy mayor of the Shenzhen Municipal Government. From 1998
to 2000, he served as the assistant to the Governor of Guangdong Province.

Dr. WU served as the chairman and honorary president of Guangdong
Investment Limited (270.HK), the director and honorary president of Guangdong
Tannery Limited (1058.HK), the executive director of Hopson Development
Holdings Limited (754.HK), and the independent non-executive director of Yingli
Green Energy Holding Company Limited (NYSE:YGE), respectively. In addition,
Dr. WU had also been serving as an independent non-executive director of
China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd (3968.HK) from 2005 to 2011, an non-executive
director of China Water Affairs Group Limited (855.HK) from 2006 to 2013,
and an executive director, a non-executive director and vice chairman of China
Aoyuan Property Group Limited (3883.HK) respectively from 2008 to 2013. At
present, Dr. WU is a non-executive director of Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
(886.HK), an independent director of China Life Franklin Asset Mgt., Co., Ltd,
and an independent non-executive director of China Taiping Insurance Holdings
Company Limited (966.HK) and Beijing Enterprises Holdings Limited (392.HK)
respectively. Dr. WU also serves as an independent non-executive director of
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited and China CITIC Bank
International Limited and an independent director of China Merchants Securities
Co., Ltd. (SH: 600999) since 2013. Dr. WU has rich experience in finance and
corporate management.

REBEL Nt ARFFRTESF - KELHEAELESB L8 - IR
TEERAABRTRERQESBLIMER  R_-F2 - FEERABRTHEER
%o KELR-NN\OFE-NADFRRERNPETART - BEZTHR
NATTR - FR—ANBFE-AANFHEREERINTERFRI TR R —
NNNFE_FEZTFHRLEEREERDE -
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EE  HAGEERERARAB(NYSEYCGE) 2 B IFHTES - B Rt
NRZZEERFE_T——FHENEBBRITRMD B R A F(3968.HK) 2 B L
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Directors and Senior Management

EERERITHRAE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
HPTES

Mr. HUANG Yige, aged 45, was appointed as a Non-executive Director of the
Company on 27 March 2012 and is also a director and financial controller of
Shum Yip Group Limited and a director of Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited.
He holds a master degree in business administration and has qualifications as
a senior accountant and CICPA in PRC. Mr. HUANG served as a director and
financial controller of Shenzhen Metro Group Co., Ltd, a financial controller of
Shenzhen Agricultural Group Co., Ltd, an administrative controller and a deputy
financial controller and investment general manager of A. Best Department Store
Supermarket Co., Ltd, and an assistant to president of Sichuan Dikang Industrial
Holding Group Securities Limited Group (PU)I|#EEZEIZEREERG AR A
A]). At present, he is also a director of Shahe Industrial Co., Ltd and supervisor
of Shenzhen Tagen Group Co., Ltd., both of them are listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange. He has extensive experience in corporate management, finance
management and treasury operation.

HUANG Yige

i BE-RAELE OtER R-ZE-—F=A -+ +tREZERRRFAFNITE
2 OBRARAREEBERARAEERMBAE XX (KB ERAFES -
BEIMERBELEM SRS MPEZMSETMER - LS ERYIT
WHEEBRMERARNESEMYHRE  RIMENEEARARMKHAE  F—=
BTERARTRERBERVFERERREBLE RN EFERZEREE
BN ERARBEBEFRE - FERE T AP AERENERARESE RARYITR
REBRNERARES  WMEAAREGRARNNESFZXGA LT - RELEE
2 PBEEREBERETEARZZ TIFER

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
BYFHITES

Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael, aged 64, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director since 9 October 2002. He was formerly the deputy
chairman of the Shanghai Stock Exchange and a commissioner in the Strategy &
Development Committee of the China Securities Regulatory Commission. Prior to
that, he was the deputy chairman, chief operating officer and executive director
and responsible for the Intermediaries Division, comprising the Licensing and
Intermediaries Supervision Departments until his departure from the Securities
and Futures Commission on 31 December 1997. Mr. Wu was an independent
non-executive director of Sunwah Kingsway Capital Holdings Limited. At present,
Mr. Wu is an independent non-executive director and chairman of Cypress Jade
Agricultural Holdings Limited and an executive director of Tradelink Electronic
Commerce Ltd, all being listed companies in Hong Kong.

REBEL RTOR BE_EZ_F+HANBREZERBUIERNTES -

WU Wai Chung, Michael RELSRFRPMAEERRTAEFERERZARRUEEEZARES -
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LI Wai Keung
FIEB

Directors and Senior Management

EERERITHRAE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
BAKITES

Mr. LI Wai Keung, aged 57, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director since 27 September 2004. Mr. Li graduated from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic and holds a master's degree in Business Administration from The
University of East Asia. He is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr. Li had worked for Henderson Land Development Company Limited (12.HK).
Mr. Li is currently a non-executive director of Guangdong Investment Limited
(270.HK) and an executive director and financial controller of GDH Limited.
He was an independent non-executive director of Hong Long Holdings Limited
(a listed company in Hong Kong) from March 2010 to May 2011. He is also
an executive director of Guangdong Land Holdings Limited (formerly known
as Kingway Brewery Holdings Limited) (124.HK) and an independent non-
executive director of Hans Energy Company Limited (554.HK) and China South
City Holdings Limited (1668.HK), a director of Shenzhen City Airport (Group)
Company Limited (SZ:000089), a member on the Council of the Hong Kong
Chinese Orchestra Limited, and also the vice chairman of the Financial and
Accounting Affairs Steering Committee of the Hong Kong Chinese Enterprises
Association.

FEBELE At tLm BZETNFAA T HLHREZERBIUFENTE
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WONG Yau Kar David

Directors and Senior Management

BEENSRITHAE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
BAKITES

Dr. WONG Yau Kar David, aged 56, is an Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company. He holds a Ph.D degree in Economics from the University of
Chicago. Dr. Wong has extensive experience in manufacturing, direct investment,
international trade and corporate finance and is currently the managing director
of United Overseas Investments Ltd. Dr. Wong is elected as a Hong Kong
deputy of the 12th National People’s Congress. Dr. Wong has been actively
participating in public services and to name a few, he is currently the chairman
of the Land and Development Advisory Committee and a committee member of
the Exchange Fund Advisory Committee. In 2010, Dr. Wong was appointed as
a Justice of Peace (JP) and in 2012, Dr. Wong was awarded a Bronze Bauhinia
Star (BBS) for his valuable contribution to the society.

Dr. WONG is currently an independent non-executive director of China
Windpower Group Ltd. (182.HK), Reorient Group Limited (376.HK), China
Jiuhao Health Industry Corporation Limited (419.HK) and Redco Properties
Group Limited (1622,HK) and a non-executive director of CIAM Group Limited
(378.HK).
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Directors and Senior Management

EERERITHRAE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. WANG Minyuan, aged 54, engineer, is currently a Vice President
of the Company and Shum Yip Group Limited. Mr. WANG joined the
Group in August 2012. Prior to this, Mr. WANG had served successively
as a deputy general manager of Shenzhen Metro Group Co., Ltd. and
Shenzhen Expressway Co., Ltd. He holds a bachelor's degree in Civil
Engineering from The Zhejiang University. He has over thirty years of
extensive experience in engineering design and construction and corporate

management.

THuRSE - AR - T2 BAEARAR -
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Mr. LIANG Kaiping, aged 55, is currently a Vice President of the Company,
Shum Yip Group Ltd. and Shum Yip Holdings Co., Ltd.. At present, he is
also the chairman of Shum Yip Pengji Holdings Company Limited and
Shum Yip Southern Land (Holdings) Co., Ltd.. He graduated from The
Wuhan University, holding a master's degree in history. He joined the
Group since 2000. Prior to this, he was the director and president of
Shenzhen Futian Investment and Development Co., a general manager
of Shenzhen Futian Real Estate Development Co., Ltd., and an associate
supervisor of Office of Futian District Committee of Shenzhen. Mr. Liang
has over thirty years of experience in corporate management.

RAFRE A+AR: BREXRA  REE
BARDAMRE (RE) GRAFEAE - ]
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Mr. DONG Fang, aged 41, is currently a Vice President of the Company,
Shum Yip Group Limited and Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited.
He graduated from The Hunan University with a master's degree and a
senior engineer qualification. He joined the Group since 2006 and served
successively as a general manager of the real estate department and
investment department in the Company, and a deputy general manager of
Huizhou Canton River Expressway Co., Ltd.. Prior to this, Mr. Dong worked
in the Transport Commission of Shenzhen Municipality. He has extensive
experience in corporate management, property investment and operation
management.
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Directors and Senior Management

EERERITHRAE

Mr. TAM Ping Lung, aged 62, is the Deputy General Manager and
Secretary of the Board of the Company. He holds an MBA degree.
Prior to joining the Company in 1997, Mr. Tam held senior positions in
various multinational corporations and had 9 years of experience in an
international accounting firm in Hong Kong.

KRBFE N5 ARFREIREENRE
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Mr. LU lJigiang, aged 43, is currently the Co-secretary of the Board and
Chief Legal Officer of the Company. He holds a master's degree of Civil
and Commercial Law from Law School of The Peking University. Presently,
he is a PRC Lawyer and arbitrator of China International Economic and
Trade Arbitration Commission (CIETAC). He joined the Group since 2003.
Prior to this, he worked in China Merchants Group. Mr. Lu has extensive
experience in corporate operation management, law affairs, compliance
and risk management control.

Pesiog A - M+ =5x MAERRBEFTSHE
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Dr. Dai Jingming, aged 49, is currently the General Manager of Planning
and Finance Department of the Company and Shum Yip Group. Dr. Dai
graduated from The Faculty of Agricultural Mechanical Engineering of
China Huazhong Agricultural University with a bachelor of engineering
degree in 1986 and from The Zhongnan University of Economics and Law
with a master degree in economics in 1992. He also obtained his Ph.D.
degree in economics from The China Ministry of Finance Institute of Fiscal
Science in 1998. He is currently an accountant. Dr. Dai joined the Group
since 1998 and held a position of general manager in administrative
office department, audit department and risk management department
respectively. Prior to this, He used to work in Hubei Province Agricultural
Engineering Head Limited and Wuhan City Branch of the Agricultural
Bank of China. Dr. Dai possesses extensive professional knowledge and
experience in corporate investment, corporate finance and financial

management.
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Mr. ZHU Guogiang, aged 41, is currently the General Manager of Strategic
Management Department of the Company. Mr. Zhu obtained a master's
degree in Business Administration from The Hong Kong University
of Science & Technology. He joined the Group since 2004, and held
positions as general manager of assets management department and
investment department in the Company. Prior to this, he worked in
Shenzhen Construction Investment Holdings Ltd.. Mr. Zhu is familiar
with the real estate market and property development process and has
maintained good communication with investors and capital markets.
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OVERVIEW

The Company is committed to achieving and maintaining the highest
standard of corporate governance. The Directors strongly believe that good
corporate governance is an essential element in steering the development of
the business of the Group.

The Board and its management understand that it is their responsibility to
establish a good corporate governance structure and practice and strictly
comply with the principles of independence, transparency, accountability and
integrity so as to improve the operation efficiency of the Company, protect
the interest of and create values for shareholders.

A summary of our corporate governance practices is set out below:

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code set out in
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules (“Code”) and complied with all provisions
of the Code throughout the year of 2013 except the following matters.

In respect of code provision A.2.1, Mr. LU Hua performed both duties
of Acting-Chairman and President up to 31 January 2013 due to the
resignation of the former chairman last year. Subsequently, Mr. LU Hua has
been re-designated as the Chairman of the Board and Mr. GAO Shengyuan
has been appointed as the President of the Company since 31 January
2013.
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Following Mr. WONG Po Yan's retirement at the Annual General Meeting
in 2013 ("2013 AGM"), Mr. WONG also ceased to be the chairman of
Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee and a member
of Audit Committee, the Board resolved to appoint Dr. WONG Yau Kar,
David as an independent non-executive director as well as the chairman
of Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee and a member
of Audit Committee after the conclusion of the 2013 AGM to replace Mr.
WONG's vacancy.

In respect of the Code amendments relating to the board diversity came
into effect on 1 September 2013, the Board took time to consider a
board diversity policy appropriate to the Company's own business model
and specific need and has adopted its diversity policy on 31 March 2014
subsequently.

Looking ahead, we will keep our corporate governance functions under
continuous review with due regard to the latest developments including any
new amendment to the Code.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS Exg

Meeting Attendance Records SRHERHE

The meetings of the Company are held on a regular basis during the year of RZZE—=F  ApancHEAgz kI

2013 and the attendance records are set out as follow: FIERES T -

Audit  Nomination Remuneration
No. of meetings attended/ HENEERE Board  Committee ~ Committee  Committee AGM
No. of meetings held HITNEBRE Exg ERZEE REZEE FMZEEE RFEBFAE
Name of directors BExpe 5 2 2 2 1
Executive Director BITES
LU Hua EE= 5/5 - 2/2 - 1/1
GAO Shengyuan Note =) EE M 1/1 - - - 0/0
MOU Yong £E5 4/5 - - - 1/1
LIU Chong ElES 5/5 = = = 1/1
WANG Minyuan "ot ¥ gurh= 4/4 - - = 1/1
Non-executive Director FBTES
WU Jiesi REER 2/5 = - = 0/1
HUANG Yige 'K 5/5 = = - 1/1
Independent B
Non-executive Director FHTES

WU Wai Chung Michael RizE 3/5 2/2 - 2/2 0/1
LI Wai Keung FiE 5/5 2/2 2/2 2/2 1/1
WONG Yau Kar David "e# B R E 1/1 0/1 0/0 1/1 0/0
WONG Po Yan M2 ERRME2 1/4 0/1 0/2 0/1 0/1

Notes: 5T -

1. Mr. WANG Minyuan resigned as an executive director on 13 June 2013. 1. ITHEREERZZ-—=FAT=HFIH

TES -

2. Mr. WONG Po Yan retired as an independent non-executive director on 13 June 2. BERMEEAR-ZE—Z=ZFA+=HEIB

2013. SIFMITEE
3. Mr. GAO Shengyuan was appointed as an executive director on 13 June 2013, 3. RERRERZZE-=F AT=HEZE
RWTES -

4. Dr. WONG Yau Kar David was appointed as an independent non-executive 4, BREEIR-_ZE-—Z=ZFA+=HHEZF
director on 13 June 2013. RBIIEMITES ©
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RESPONSIBILITIES AND DELEGATION

Under the leadership of the Chairman, the Board is responsible for
formulating overall strategies and policies of the Company, to supervise
and evaluate business and financial performance of the Company. The
Board ensures its operational efficiency and effectiveness by establishing
a comprehensive corporate governance framework with appropriate risk
control measures and aiming to enhance long-term shareholders’ value.

Formal Board Committees namely Audit Committee, Nominating Committee
and Remuneration Committee are formed to discharge its specific functions
for the Board whilst the responsibilities of the day-to-day operations and
business management are delegated to the executive directors and senior
management, however, certain responsibilities remain to the decision of
the Board, such as corporate restructuring, mergers and acquisitions, major
investments, material acquisition and disposal of assets, major corporate
decision on key operations, the release of the Group's interim and annual
results, connected transactions, declaration of interim dividends and proposal
of final dividends.

Insurance cover has been arranged in respect of legal proceedings and other
claims against directors and officers arising from their office and execution of
their powers, duties and responsibilities.

COMPOSITION

The Board currently comprises four executive and five non-executive
directors of whom three are independent as defined under the Listing Rules.
Our independent non-executive directors constitute not less than one-third
and non-executive directors constitute more than half of the Board. The
Company has received from each independent non-executive director the
confirmation confirming his independence pursuant to the criterion sets out
in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers that all independent non-
executive directors are independent. Brief biographical particulars of the
directors are set out from pages 34 to 40 of this Annual Report.

None of the Directors of the Company has any relationship between other
board members, chairman nor president of the Company.

According to the Articles of Association of the Company, every director,
including the non-executive directors, shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years. One-third of the directors (or if their
number is not a multiple of three, then the number nearest to one-third)
shall retire from office at each annual general meeting and eligible for re-
election by shareholders. Also, any director appointed to fill a casual vacancy
shall retire at the next general meeting of the Company and be eligible
for re-election by shareholders. Separate resolutions are proposed for the
election of each director.
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Nomination Committee is responsible for the determination of the
nomination and appointment of new directors having regard to the relevant
skills and experience of the proposed candidates.

In 2013, the Nomination Committee had recommended to the Board for the
appointment of Mr. GAO Shengyuan as executive director and Dr. WONG
Yau Kar David as independent non-executive director.

An appointment letter was issued to each non-executive director in respect
of their appointments with a fixed term not exceeding 3 years and is subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance with the Articles of
Association of the Company.

CHAIRMAN AND PRESIDENT OF THE BOARD

Mr. LU Hua was appointed as the Acting Chairman due to former chairman’s
resignation in previous year. The roles of the Chairman and the President
were performed by Mr. LU Hua until the appointment of Mr. GAO Shengyuan
as the President in place of him since 31 January, 2013.

The Chairman of the Board is responsible for leading the effectiveness of
the Board to formulate good corporate governance practices and procedures
together with the directors, determine the strategic directions, business
plans and investment proposals of the Company, assess its performance
and supervise the business affairs of the management in ensuring
the effectiveness of the Board, whereas the President is responsible
for overseeing overall operations of the Company and ensuring the
implementation of plans efficiently.

DIRECTORS’” CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT
PROGRAMME

Each newly appointed director was provided with necessary induction
information to ensure that he has a proper understanding of the Company's
operations and businesses as well as his responsibilities under relevant
statutes, laws, rules and regulations.

Directors' training is an on-going process, all directors are encouraged
to participate in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills. The Company also updated directors on
any latest development regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements from time to time, to ensure compliance and
enhance their awareness of good corporate governance practices.
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A summary of training records reported by the directors for the year of 2013
is set out as follows:

BREERN - Z-=F ISR EZHT|
LU

Name of Directors

Type of training covered

EERE PRSI B R
LU Hua EE=: 1,4
GAO Shengyuan =ETT 1,2 4
MOU Yong 25 1,2, 4
LIU Chong EES 1,3, 4
WU Jiesi HER 1,2
HUANG Yige 5% 1,2, 3
WU Wai Chung Michael REF 1.2, 4
LI Wai Keung FE# I, 2, 3, 4
WONG Yau Kar David BR 5 1,24

Notes: T

1 Corporate Governance 1 TEER

2 Law and Regulatory 2 EBRER

3 Finance and Accounting 3 MBKkEE

4 Economics and Industry-specific 4 KERFETE

AUDIT COMMITTEE EREES

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive directors, EREEGR =B IIFRTEREN - K

who are all equipped with commercial and financial skills and experiences
required for understanding of accounting information. Mr. LI Wai Keung is
the Chairman of the Audit Committee and other members are Mr. WU Wai
Chung, Michael and Dr. WONG Yau Kar David.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee including (but not limited
to) the recommendation of the appointment of external auditors, supervision
of internal audit and oversight of the integrity of financial information and
its disclosure, monitor internal control system of the Company and ensure
internal audit functions and external auditors are adequately resourced. The
full terms of reference of the Audit Committee are posted on the website of
the Company.

The Audit Committee had reviewed the full year audited financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2013 and the internal control system of
the Group.
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During the financial year, the Audit Committee had reviewed the scope and
quality of audit by Company’'s external auditors, Ernst & Young, and their
independence and objectivity as well as their cost effectiveness. The Audit
Committee also reviewed the audit and non-audit services fees paid to
Ernst & Young. The details are set out under the section headed Auditors’
Remuneration in this Corporate Governance Report.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee comprises three independent non-executive
directors and chaired by Dr. WONG Yau Kar David and other members are
Mr. LI Wai Keung and Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael.

The Company adopted the model whereby the Remuneration Committee
makes recommendation to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual executive director and senior management according to its
terms of reference. The Remuneration Committee is also responsible for
making recommendation to the Board on the remuneration matters of non-
executive directors and setting up adequate and transparent procedures for
setting such remuneration. The full terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee are posted on the website of the Company.

No member or any of his associates is allowed to determine their own
remuneration. In making recommendation to the Board on the remuneration
of directors and senior management, the Remuneration Committee shall
consider factors such as time commitment and responsibilities of directors,
employment conditions of other positions within the Group and whether

their remuneration are performance-based.

During the year of 2013, the Remuneration Committee had reviewed the
director fees of non-executive directors and the remuneration of executive
directors and other incentive rewards such as grant of share options to
directors and senior management.
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The remuneration of senior management by band for the year ended 31
December 2013 is set out below:

HE-T-Z£+-A=+—HIL5E &
FMEEZIONSREEAE ZFMHETI 0
T

Number of individuals

Remuneration bands H i E AE
Less than HK$1,000,000 11,000,000/ 7T 2

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 or above

1,000,001 752 1,500,000/ 7T
1,500,001 708k LA |

Further particulars regarding Directors’ and Chief Executive's remuneration
and the five highest paid employees are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the
financial statements.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee comprises three members of which two of them
are independent non-executive directors. It is chaired by Dr. WONG Yau Kar
David and other members are Mr. LU Hua and Mr. LI Wai Keung.

The Nomination Committee is authorised by the board to determine the
policy for the nomination of directors, to set out the nomination procedures
and criteria to select and recommend candidates for directorship. The
Nomination Committee is also responsible for reviewing the structure, size
and composition of the Board and assessing the independence of the
independent non-executive directors. The full terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee are posted on the website of the Company.

During 2013, the Nomination Committee had recommended the
appointment of one independent non-executive director and one executive
director to the Board and reviewed the policy concerning the board diversity.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY SUMMARY

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy on 31 March 2014
and seeks to enhance the effectiveness of the Board and to achieve a
sustainable and balanced development, we recognize the benefits of
diversity on the Board that possess a balance of skills, experience and
expertise which complement to the business success.

The measurable objectives of the board appointments will continue to be
made on a merit basis and candidates will be considered against objective
criteria, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge, length of
service and legitimate interests of the Company’s principal shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS
The Company does not have corporate governance committee but the Board
is accountable for the following corporate governance functions:

€3 to develop and review the Company's policies and practices on

corporate governance and make recommendations;

€3 to review and monitor the training and continuous professional

development of Directors and senior management;

€3 to review and monitor the Company's policies and practices on

compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

€3 to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance

manual applicable to employees and Directors;

€3 to review the Company's compliance with the Corporate Governance

Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the year, the Board had performed all abovementioned corporate
governance functions.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board as a whole shall be responsible for supervising the operations
of all business units within the Group. Suitable candidates will be
appointed by the Board to sit at the boards in respective subsidiaries and
associated companies in order to oversee their operation performance. The
management is accountable for the operations and performance of their
business units.

The Board had reviewed the effectiveness of internal control system of
the Group, including the consideration on the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience training programmes and budget of the
Company's accounting and financial reporting functions and it considers that
all the material aspects of internal control of the Group including financial,
operational and compliance control as well as risk management functions
were adequately and effectively monitored during the year.

Current internal audit function is carried out by the risk management
department of the Company and its function had been reviewed by the
Audit Committee to ensure it is adequately resourced and has appropriate
standing within the Group.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company had appointed a representative from an external secretarial
services provider as the company secretary of the Company. The primary
contact person with the company secretary of the Company is Mr. LU
Jigiang, the head of legal affairs and board secretary of the Company. The
company secretary of the Company has duly complied with the relevant
training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities of supervising the
preparation of financial statements of each financial period which shall
consistently adopt suitable accounting policies and to comply with the
accounting standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and to reflect the financial position, the results during the
period and cash flow of the Company in a true and fair manner.

The responsibility statement issued by the auditors of the Company is set
out from page 73 to 74 of this annual report.
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AUDITORS" REMUNERATION

During the financial year of 2013, the Audit Committee reviewed the
proposed audit fees of HK$5,250,000 (including HK$4,250,000 for
annual audit and HK$1,000,000 for interim review services) and non-audit
services of RMB880,000 for professional services rendered as the reporting
accountants for the acquisition of Kezhigu project.

MODEL CODE

The Board has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers of the Listing Rules (hereinafter referred to as the
“Model Code") as the code of conduct of the Company regarding securities
transactions by directors. Having made specific enquiry to all the directors,
all directors confirmed that throughout the year, they had complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code regarding directors’ securities
transactions. In addition, the Board has adopted respective provisions set out
in the Model Code as written guidelines for relevant employees in respect
of their dealings in the securities of the Company. Such relevant employees
shall abide by the principles and rules of the Model Code.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board has established a shareholders’ communication channel setting
out the dialogues that the Company are in place to promote effective
communication with shareholders, with the aim of ensuring shareholders are
provided with timely information about the Company and encouraging them
to engage actively in communication with the Company and to exercise their
rights as shareholders in an informed manner.

The Company endeavours to disclose all material information about the
Group to public in a timely manner. The Company maintains a corporate
website at www.shenzheninvestment.com where important information
about the Group's activities and corporate matters such as annual and
interim reports to shareholders, announcements, business development
and operations, corporate governance practices and other information are
available for public’'s access.

The Company's annual general meeting provides a useful platform for direct
communication between the board and shareholders. Separate resolutions
are proposed on each issue at the general meetings.
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INVESTORS RELATIONS

The Company recognizes its responsibility to update its business activities to
whom with a legitimate interests and respond to their questions. Investors
are interviewed on a regular basis. In addition, enquiries arising from general
public and individual shareholders are answered promptly. In all cases, great
care is taken to ensure that no inside information is disclosed to selective
parties.

CHANGES OF CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year, there is no significant change in the Company’s
constitutional documents except for the increase of authorized capital from
5,000,000,000 shares to 10,000,000,000 shares on 18th April 2013.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Subject to applicable laws and regulations, including but not limited to the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 32 of the Laws of Hong Kong) before 3
March 2014 and the new Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws
of Hong Kong) (the “New CQO") from 3 March 2014 onwards, the Listing
Rules, and the articles of association of the Company as amended from time
to time, shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”) may call general
meeting, put forward proposals at annual general meetings ("AGM") and
direct enquiries to the Board in accordance with the following procedures:

- Convening of General Meeting on Request

Shareholder(s) holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition not less
than one-twentieth of the paid up capital of the Company may request the
Directors to convene an extraordinary general meeting pursuant to Section
113 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 32 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
before 3 March 2014 and to call a general meeting pursuant to Sections
566 to 568 of the New CO from 3 March 2014 onwards.
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In accordance with Section 566 of the New CO that came into effect on
3 March 2014, the Directors are required to call a general meeting if the
Company has received requests to do so from Shareholders representing
at least 5% of the total voting rights of all the Shareholders having a right
to vote at general meeting. Such requests must state the general nature
of the business to be dealt with at the meeting; and may include the text
of a resolution that may properly be moved and is intended to be moved
at the meeting. Such requests may sent be sent to the Company and
attention to the Company Secretary in hard copy form (by depositing at the
registered office of the Company at 8th Floor, New East Ocean Centre, 9
Science Museum Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong for the attention
of the Board) or in electronic form (by fax: 852-2311-2539); and must
be authenticated by the person or persons making it. In accordance with
Section 567 of the New CO, the Directors must call a meeting within 21
days after the date on which they become subject to the requirement under
Section 566 of the New CO and such meeting must be held on a date not
more than 28 days after the date of the notice convening the meeting.

- Putting Forward Proposals at AGM

To put forward a resolution in AGM, Shareholders are requested to follow
the requirements and procedures set out in Section 115A of the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 32 of the Laws of Hong Kong) before 3 March 2014
and Sections 615 and 616 of the New CO from 3 March 2014.

Section 615 of the New CO that came into effect on 3 March 2014
provides that the Company must give notice of a resolution if it has received
requests to do so from (a) the Shareholders representing at least 2.5% of
the total voting rights of all the Shareholders who have a right to vote on the
resolution at the AGM of the Company to which the requests relate; or (b)
at least 50 Shareholders who have the rights to vote on the resolution at
the AGM to which the requests relate.
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Such requests (a) may be sent to the Company and attention to the
Company Secretary in hard copy form (by depositing at the registered office
of the Company at 8th Floor, New East Ocean Centre, 9 Science Museum
Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong for the attention of the Board) or in
electronic form (by fax: 852-2311-2539); (b) must identify the resolution
of which notice is to be given; (c) must be authenticated by the person or
persons making it; and (d) must be received by the Company not later than
(i) 6 weeks before the AGM to which the requests relate; or (ii) if later, the
time at which notice is given of that meeting. Section 616 of the new CO
provides that the Company that is required under Section 615 of the new
CO to give notice of a resolution must send a copy of it at the Company's
own expense to each Shareholder entitled to receive notice of the AGM (a)
in the same manner as the notice of the meeting; and (b) at the same time
as, or as soon as reasonably practicable after, it gives notice of the meeting.

The detailed procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for election
as a Director can be found on the page headed “"Company Information”
under the “Contact Us” section of the Company's website.

— Procedures for directing enquiries to the Company

Matters relating to the Board

To direct enquiries to the Board, the Shareholders should submit his/
her enquiries in writing with his/her detailed contact information to the
Company Secretary at the following:

By post to the registered office of the Company or by
Email: melody@shumyip.com.hk

Tel:  (852) 2312 8768

Fax:  (852) 2311 2539

Matters relating to share registration

For share registration related matters, such as share transfer and registration,
change of name or address, loss of share certificates or dividend warrants,
the Shareholders can contact the Hong Kong Share Registrar at the following:

By post to the Share Registrar of the Company or by

Email: is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com
Tel:  (852) 2980 1333
Fax:  (852) 2861 1465
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The directors present their annual report and audited financial statements of
the Company and the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of the
principal activities of the principal subsidiaries and associates are set out in
note 21 and note 23 to the financial statements, respectively. There were
no changes in the nature of the Group's principal activities during the year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2013 and the financial
position of the Company and the Group at that date are set out in the
financial statements on pages 78 to 79.

A proposed final dividend of HK12.00 cents per share for the year ended 31
December 2013 (2012: final dividend of HK11.00 cents) to shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the Company on
Thursday, 26 June 2014. Together with the interim dividend of HK7.00
cents per share which was paid on 12 November 2013, the total dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2013 will amount to HK19.00 cents per
share (2012: HK18.00 cents per share).

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results of the assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interest of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted
from the audited financial statements and reclassified as appropriate, is
set out on page 33. This summary is not part of the audited financial
statements.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment and investment
properties of the Company and the Group during the year are set out in
note 15 and note 20 to the financial statements.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are set out in note 21 to
the financial statements.

PRINCIPAL ASSOCIATES
Particulars of the Company’s and the Group's interests in its principal
associates are set out in note 23 to the financial statements.

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS
Details of the bank and other borrowings of the Company and of the Group
are set out in note 31 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the Company's share capital and share options
during the year, together with the reasons thereof, are set out in note 35
and note 36 to the financial statements.

PURCHASES, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’'S
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of its listed securities during the year.

RESERVES
Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during
the year are set out in note 37 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2013, the Company's reserves available for distribution,
amounted to HK$649,363,000 of which HK$645,727,000 has been
proposed as final dividend for the year.

In addition, the Company's share premium account, in the amount of
HK$10,964,217,000 may be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus
shares.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, both the aggregate sales attributable to the
Group's five largest customers and the aggregate purchases attributable to
the Group's five largest suppliers were less than 30% of the Group's sales
and purchases respectively.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the directors, own more than
5% of the Company'’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest of the
Group's five largest customers or five largest suppliers.

DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. LU Hua (Chairman)

Mr. GAO Shengyuan (President)
(appointed on 13 June 2013)

Mr. MOU Yong

Mr. LIU Chong

Mr. WANG Minyuan
(resigned on 13 June 2013)

Non-executive directors:
Dr. WU liesi
Mr. HUANG Yige

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael
Mr. LI Wai Keung
Dr. WONG Yau Kar David
(appointed on 13 June 2013)
Mr. WONG Po Yan
(retired on 13 June 2013)

In accordance with Article 92 of the Articles of Association, Mr. GAO
Shengyuan and Dr. WONG Yau Kar David who were appointed to fill the
casual vacancies will hold office only until the Annual General Meeting which
will be the next following general meeting after their appointment and will
then be eligible for re-election.

In accordance with Article 101 of the Articles of Association, Mr. LU Hua, Mr.
MOU Yong and Mr. HUANG Yige will retire by rotation at the Annual General
Meeting and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES
Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 34 to 42 of the annual
report.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
MEMBERS AND THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the directors’ and senior management members' emoluments and
of the five highest paid individuals in the Group are set out in notes 8 and 9
to the financial statements respectively.

INTEREST CAPITALISATION
Interest of approximately HK$940,896,000 was capitalised during the year
in respect of the Group's property development and investment projects.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors of the Company has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No directors had a material interest in any contracts of significance to the
business of the Group to which the Company, its holding company, or any
of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the year.

PENSION SCHEMES
Details of the pension schemes are set out in note 2.4 to the financial
statements.
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UPDATE ON DIRECTORS’' INFORMATION

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the change in information
of the Directors since the date of the Company's Interim Report 2013 is set
out below:

Mr. LU Hua was appointed as a non-executive director of Ping An Insurance
(Group) Company of China, Ltd. (2318.HK) on 17 June 2013.

Dr. WU lJiesi was appointed as an independent non-executive director of
China Citic Bank International Limited on 5 August 2013 and appointed as
an independent director of China Merchants Securities Co., Ltd (SH:600999)
on 8 August 2013.

Dr. WONG Yau Kar David was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of Redco Properties Group Limited (1622.HK) on 14 January 2014.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2013, the interests and short positions of the directors
and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company and any associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO"))
as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the
SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies were as follows:—
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Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of the ZAQATIRGEHVBERSG (RHE)) 2F

Company (“Shares”): i
Underlying
shares pursuant Percentage of
Number of to share Aggregate Shares
Name of director Capacity Shares options interests in issue
REBERES HE#RTRMDZ
EEME 514 RHHE HERDEHE RRER ADLE
LU Hua Beneficial owner 1,093,895 5,574,000 6,667,895 0.12
= BEREAA
GAO Shengyuan Beneficial owner - 1,120,000 1,120,000 0.02
SETT BEREEA
MOU Yong Beneficial owner - 4,016,000 4,016,000 0.07
ZEES BEREAA
LIU Chong Beneficial owner - 4,016,000 4,016,000 0.07
2= EmERAA
WU lJiesi Beneficial owner 3,400,000 - 3,400,000 0.06
RER BEREAA
LI Wai Keung Beneficial owner 1,131,866 - 1,131,866 0.02
FIRR EmERA

Note:  The percentage was calculated based on 5,381,055,305 shares in issue as at Wit : BoLNREHZE-Z—=F+=-A=+
31 December 2013. — B 2B 3175,381,055,305 IR (A5 E °

SHARE OPTIONS HERR

Details of the Old Scheme and the New Scheme are set out in note 36 to EFTEI LT E 2B H N B RER W
the financial statements. 36 °
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The changes of share options under the Old Scheme and the New Scheme AT E T RN FARIBES & a8 2
during the year are set out below: e ) :
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* Options will be exercisable in the following manner and subject to performance *

review:—

Maximum percentage of Share Option exercisable

EEERE

BERESETIIARATELZRBEZN
MR

Period for exercise of the relevant percentage of the Share Option

ATEBRERSLH AEI B8 L 5 B AR B8 2 1T 2 A RS

40% at any time after the expiry of 2 years from the Date of Grant up to 3 years
from the Date of Grant
A HRAREREREE 2R H B SR =F A2 EMRRE

70% at any time after the expiry of 3 years from the Date of Grant up to 4 years
from the Date of Grant
F B HARE ST = F Em 8 B = & B iR ET I A 2 (T s

100% at any time after the expiry of 4 years from the Date of Grant up to 5 years

**  Options will be exercisable in the following manner and subject to performance

review:—

Maximum percentage of Share Option exercisable

from the Date of Grant
B B HIRRET U B A B 2= K i A B aT AL A 2 (] R

oOBERESR T ATRERRBEZR
MR

Period for exercise of the relevant percentage of the Share Option

options were lapsed under the Old Scheme.
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40% at any time after the expiry of 1 year and 222 days from the Date of Grant up
to 2 years and 222 days from the Date of Grant
R B8R —FZ222HEmEEZ R B BB MET222 8 A 2 K E
70% at any time after the expiry of 2 years and 222 days from the Date of Grant
up to 3 years and 222 days from the Date of Grant
BB ME T 222 EmEEE R AR =F 2222 8 N 2 (R
100% at any time after the expiry of 3 years and 222 days from the Date of Grant
up to 4 years and 222 days from the Date of Grant
RH B SR =FZ222HEmEEZ K B BEFMEZ222 B A 2 (A FE
Notes: BT
Mr. GAO Shengyuan was appointed as a director of the Company on 13 1. REAXER-ZT-=ZFRATZAEZRE
June 2013. During the year, 1,120,000 options granted to him on 10 April BEARBES - FAN - ERZFT—=FNA
2013 while he was an employee of the Company and still held after the TREERARFREFERARERIR
appointment of director were re-classified as options held by directors. BRI E 21,120,000 88 2 E 3 7
MRERHE 2B -
Mr. WANG Minyuan resigned as a director of the Company on 13 June 2. IBERAR-T-=FXATZAREA
2013 and remains as an employee of the Company. During the year, RAEF  RINARRAEER - FR - ER
1,332,000 options granted to him on 10 April 2013 and still held after the ZE-=FOHATHERRNBHIERRD
resignation of director were re-classified as options held by employees. FAE 21,332,000 ERESHHDERES
A2 B -
During the year, 11,052,000 options were granted under the New Scheme 3. R 11,052,000 BBk i B AR BT AT I
and 10,570,230 options were exercised under the Old Scheme. H - %10,570,23015 B EE RIFE 81T
o
During the year, 8,518,661 options were cancelled and 15,194,000 4. FA-IRBEFE 8518661 EKED

AE 85 5215,194,00010 BE BT 2R AK o
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Save as disclosed above, none of the directors and chief executive of the
Company had any interests or short positions in any shares and underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Saved as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the directors of
the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in,
or debts securities (including debentures) of, the Company or its associated
corporations and none of the directors, or their spouse or children under the
age of 18, had any rights to subscribe for equity or debt securities of the
Company or its associated corporations, or had exercised any such rights.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2013, the interests and short positions of the substantial
shareholders (other than a director or chief executive of the Company) in
Shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO

were as follows:—
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Interest in shares of the Company:

BERQFARD 2R :

Number of Shares

RA2BE

Percentage of
Shares in issue

Name Capacity Long Position Short Position HEBTRG
=18 51 #R e ZADL
(Note 3)
(Bf3E3)
Shum Yip Group Limited* Interest in controlled corporation 3,260,164,941 - 60.59
REEBERAFA RIEEE 2w (Note 1)
(Bi3E1)
Shum Yip Holdings Beneficial owner 3,201,897,812 - 59.50
Company Limited Emfia A (Note 2)
% (&) ARAA (M3E2)
Interest in controlled corporation 58,267,129 - 1.09
RIEEE 2 (Note 2)
(GEP))
Note: BT
1. Shum Yip Group Limited* is deemed interested in 3,260,164,941 Shares 1. FREEBARARBBAIE(EER) BR
by virtue of the fact that Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited (“Shum Yip ~RIREGEED RAEEEA
Holdings") is a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of R ¥ £ @ AR A 7. RMAREEEMBARAR WRAMSE
3,260,164,94 1 R 7 i 2
2. SYH beneficially owns 3,260,164,941 Shares, of which, 58,267,129 Shares 2. FE(EE) EaMEB3260164,9415 &
were held by Goldclass Industrial Limited (“Goldclass”). Goldclass is wholly- % & 58267120 MEMMNEES
owned by Successful Years Holdings Limited, which is wholly-owned by Shum B~ (T8 F]) #A o B R fSuccessful
Yip Finance Company Limited (“SYF"). SYF is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Years Holdings Limited® & # & i
Shum Yip Holdings and as a result, Shum Yip Holdings is deemed interested in Successful Years Holdings Limitedes & %
58,267,129 Shares. CRYBERIARD((REER]) 285
E-MAXSRARE(EE) WE2EW
BAA A REEER BEAESR
58,267,129/ i% 17 h By %S ©
3. The percentage was calculated based on 5,381,055,305 Shares in issue as at 3. BEORIBREBEEE—_ZT—=F+-A=+—
31 December 2013. B2 B#175,381,055305 & A& »
Saved as disclosed above, no other person (other than a Director) had an B EXXPRIRERE SN - BB E RSN Bt A

interest or a short position in Shares and underlying shares as recorded in

the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

*

Translation for identical purpose only.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the connected transactions for the year are set out in note 42 to
the financial statements. The Company has complied with the applicable
requirements under the Listing Rules for those related party transactions
which constituted non-exempt connected transactions/continuing connected
transactions. Other related party transactions either did not constitute
connected transactions/continuing connected transactions or constituted
connected transactions/continuing connected transactions but were
exempted from all disclosure and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under the Listing Rules.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, Nongke Property Development Co., Ltd. (Nongke), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company's parent company appointed Shum Yip
Land Co., Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company as its agent to sell
residential units located in Shenzhen City, the PRC for a period of 12-month
with an annual cap of RMB80 million as agency fee which was equivalent
to 1.9% of the gross proceeds of sale of the residential units. As Nongke
is a connected person of the Company and the estate agency agreement
constituted continuing connected transaction. For further details, please refer
to the announcement dated 8 April 2013.

The Company's external auditor was engaged to report on the Group's
continuing connected transaction in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits
or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice
Note 740 "Auditor's Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. For the purpose of Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the
auditor of the Company, has provided a letter to the Board, confirmed that
the continuing connected transactions:

(i) have received the approval of the Board;

(i) are in accordance with the pricing policies of the Company if the
transactions involve provision of services by the Company;

(i) have been entered into in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing the transactions; and

(iv) have not exceeded the respective annual caps.

A copy of the auditor's letter has been provided by the Company to The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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In accordance with Rule14A.37 of the Listing Rules, the Independent Non-
executive Directors had reviewed this transaction and confirmed that it had
been entered into:

1. In the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
2. On normal commercial terms; and

3. In accordance with the relevant agreement governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of
the Company as a whole.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received annual confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive directors as regards their independence to the
Company pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers that each
of the independent non-executive directors is independent to the Company.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of its Directors, as at the date of this annual report,
there is sufficient public float, as not less than 25% of the Company’s issued
shares are held by the public.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee currently comprises Mr. LI Wai Keung as chairman and
Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael and Dr. WONG Yau Kar David as members, all
of them are independent non-executive directors. The Audit Committee has
reviewed the Group's results for the year in a meeting held on 31 March
2014.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS UNDER RULE
13.21 OF THE LISTING RULES

Banking facilities with covenants relation to specific performance of the
controlling shareholder:

By an agreement (“Ist Facility Agreement”) dated 3 April 2008 entered
into between the Company as borrower and China Construction Bank
Corporation, Hong Kong Branch as lender (“CCB") a transferable term loan
facility of up to HK$300 million (“1st Facility”) is made available by CCB to
the Company on the terms and conditions as stated therein. The 1st Facility
shall be made available to the Company within 6 months from the date of
the 1st Facility Agreement and the Company shall repay to CCB in full any
outstanding advances made thereunder on the date falling 60 months from
the date of the 1st Facility Agreement. As at 31 December 2013, the 1st
Facility had been fully repaid.
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By an agreement (“2nd Facility Agreement”) dated 28 September 2010
entered into between, among others, the Company as borrower and a
syndicate of lenders (“Lenders”), a transferable term loan facility of up to
US$400 million (“2nd Facility”) is made available by the Lenders to the
Company on the terms and conditions as stated therein. The 2nd Facility will
be made available to the Company within 6 months from the date of the
2nd Facility Agreement and the Company shall repay to the Lenders in full
any outstanding advances made thereunder on the date falling 48 months
from the date of the 2nd Facility Agreement.

By an agreement (“3rd Facility Agreement”) dated 16 September 2011
entered into between the Company as borrower and a syndicate of
lenders, a US$209 million transferable term loan facility and a HK$1,026
million transferable term loan facility (“3rd Facilities”) were provided to the
Company on the terms and conditions as stated therein. The 3rd Facilities
shall be repaid by the Company in instalments with the last repayment date
falling 48 months from the date of the 3rd Facility Agreement.

By a letter (“4th Facility Agreement”) dated 17 October 2011 entered
into between the Company as borrower and a bank, a HK$600 million
term loan facility and a CNY200 million term loan facility, which aggregate
amount shall not exceed HK$800 million (“4th Facility”) was provided to
the Company on the terms and conditions as stated therein. The 4th Facility
shall be repaid by the Company in installments with the last repayment date
falling 36 months from the date of the 4th Facility Agreement.

By an agreement (“5th Facility Agreement”) dated 21 June 2012 entered
into between the Company as borrower and a bank, a HK$200 million
transferable term loan facility (“5th Facility”) was provided to the Company.
The 5th Facility shall be repaid by the Company in one lump sum on the
date falling 36 months from the date of the 5th Facility Agreement.
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By an agreement (“6th Facility Agreement”) dated 25 June 2013 entered
into between the Company as borrower and a bank, a HK$300 million (or
its equivalent in US dollars) transferable term loan facility (“6th Facility”) was
provided to the Company. The 6th Facility shall be repaid by the Company
in one lump sum on the date falling 36 months from the first drawdown
date.

By an agreement (“7th Facility Agreement”, together with the 1st Facility
Agreement, 2nd Facility Agreement, 3rd Facility Agreement, 4th Facility
Agreement, 5th Facility Agreement and 6th Facility Agreement, collectively
known as the “Facility Agreements”) dated 9 October 2013 entered into
between the Company as borrower and certain banks, up to a principal
amount of US$235 million (or equivalent to approximately HK$1,833
million) transferable term loan facility and up to a principal amount of
HK$1,654 million (“7th Facility”) transferable term loan facility was provided
to the Company. The 7th Facility shall be repaid by the Company in four
installments of various percentages of the total amount of borrowings, with
all outstanding amount shall be fully repaid on the date falling 60 months
from the date of the 7th Facility Agreement.

Under the Facility Agreements, it will be an event of default if Shum Yip
Holdings ceases to own beneficially at least 35% of the issued share
capital of the Company, ceases to be the single largest shareholder of the
Company, ceases to have management control of the Company, or ceases
to remain beneficially owned as to at least 51% by the Shenzhen Municipal
People’s Government of the People’s Republic of China and in which any
default event occurs, all amounts due under the facilities may be declared
to be immediately due and payable.
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AUDITORS B ED

The consolidated financial statements for this Financial Year have been KM RFERE RGN BERREBHL KA
audited by Ernst & Young who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves EHEZ o KGRI B AT 157 e fE IR
for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting. A resolution RBAFAGLRAWVHEERERE BHEE
to re-appoint Ernst & Young as the external auditor of the Company and L KGR EE AR AR BRI A & 5%
to authorise the Directors to fix their remuneration will be proposed at the HEEETFTHNE 2 RERBRERKEE

forthcoming annual general meeting. FRGETURER -

On behalf of the Board REEFE

LU Hua FE

Chairman BE

Hong Kong, 31 March 2014 B ZE-MNF=A=1+—H
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Independent Auditors’ Report

BB S

Ernst & Young ZKETENSIEFT
22/F, CITIC Tower BBRBRAZER
i,i 1 Tim Mei Avenue i AE2212

Central, Hong Kong

To the shareholders of Shenzhen Investment Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Shenzhen
Investment Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the
“Group”) set out on pages 75 to 231, which comprise the consolidated and
company statements of financial position as at 31 December 2013, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with Section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

BB S

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
December 2013, and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong
31 March 2014
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
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Year ended 31 December 2013 #HE-ZT—=F+_-_A=+—HILtFE

2013 2012
—EB-=F —E——4F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M 5E FET THT
(Restated)
(&%)
CONTINUING OPERATIONS BESEEL
REVENUE Yz 5 9,778,807 8,312,726
Cost of sales SHERKA (6,177,192) (5,317,037)
Gross profit EF 3,601,615 2,995,689
Other income and gains Hib W A RFE 5 1,611,207 795,751
Increase in fair value of FRBRRANETE
equity investments at fair value ZIRIERE 2
through profit or loss, net NAEEINFE 715 2,269
Increase in fair value of investment KEYE
properties RN EE N 624,046 469,674
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEAXZ (254,882) (243,868)
Administrative expenses THFX (736,505) (681,796)
Other expenses HEhpx (184,606) (55,110)
Finance costs L& AR 7 (635,535) (469,929)
Share of profits and losses of: T B (G ) e B 18
Joint ventures A& NF 219,169 48,524
Associates R RN 831,933 830,516
PROFIT BEFORE TAX FROM RFEREXEKZ
CONTINUING OPERATIONS R B4 Al % Al 6 5,077,157 3,691,720
Income tax expense FriSHim 10 (1,976,197) (1,129,956)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
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Year ended 31 December 2013 #HE-ZT—=F+_-_A=+—HILtFE

2013 2012
—E—=fF —2——F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5E FExT T
(Restated)
(&z75)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM R
CONTINUING OPERATIONS FRER 3,100,960 2,561,764
DISCONTINUED OPERATION FRFEREER
Profit/(loss) for the year from a IR B AT
discontinued operation FERHEF(E8) 12 10,029 (1,524)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FRER 3,110,989 2,560,240
Attributable to: TG
Owners of the parent [SYNCIEZFEIN 11 2,738,432 2,156,069
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR HE 2 372,557 404,171
3,110,989 2,560,240
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE FAREER
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF EREEA
THE PARENT EhERER 14
Basic EHAR
— For profit for the year — FRE A HK58.97 centsi#&fll  HK59.23 centsi&{lll
— For profit from continuing operations ~ — #F48 & & 755 7 HK58.85 centsi&fll  HK59.28 centsflll
Diluted s
— For profit for the year — F A=A HK58.55 centsi&fll  HK59.23 centsi& Ll
— For profit from continuing operations — — 4T & ¥ 755 A HK58.44 centsi&{ll  HK59.28 centsiE

Details of the dividends payable and proposed for the year are disclosed in BRARFE R RERARE 215 - SR
note 13 to the financial statements. TEERKRMFES ©
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
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Year ended 31 December 2013 HE-T—=F+_-_A=-+—HILFE

2013 2012
—EB-=5F —E—_4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT THT
(Restated)
(&E7)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR F R F 3,110,989 2,560,240
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hit 2 ms
Other comprehensive income to be
reclassified to profit or loss HigliEGERHEEER
in subsequent periods: ZEH 2w
Available-for-sale investments: AHEERE
Changes in fair value N EEE (6,436) 2,632
Income tax effect Fisfis 2 1,609 (657)
(4,827) 1,975
Share of other comprehensive income
of associates FEAG B = A R EL At 2 E U e 135,100 27,779
Exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations REBINER ZIER =5 572,268 178,541
Net other comprehensive income to be
reclassified to profit or loss in HiziEGER S EEER
subsequent periods ZEHMEmkEFE 702,541 208,295
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX FARHMEEEE  BRBE 702,541 208,295
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR FRZHEKEEE 3,813,530 2,768,535
Attributable to: )=
Owners of the parent NEEA A 3,391,987 2,345,526
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR i A 421,543 423,009
3,813,530 2,768,535
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e AR R

31 December 2013 —ZT—=F+_-H=+—8H

31 December

31 December

2013 2012
—Eg—= ==
+=A=+—H +—-A=+—H”
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
L FET FAT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% - R &&iE 15 2,697,625 2,414,252
Intangible assets EREE 16 - 75,986
Prepaid land lease payments TR o & FRIE 17 45,463 49,045
Goodwill e 18 322,856 322,744
Investment properties KA 20 15,299,549 9,210,339
Investments in associates AN By 23 5,929,954 5,223,517
Investments in joint ventures BENRITE 22 343,719 118,124
Available-for-sale investments Al ERE 24 39,790 52,471
Other long term assets HEmREAEE 25 1,584,056 1,377,822
Deferred tax assets FEEFETBE E 34 892,725 528,258
Pledged deposits [REEUIVER N 30 17,277 137,323
Total non-current assets IEMENE ELERE 27,173,014 19,509,881
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Inventories e 26 125,974 109,107
Completed properties held for sale FERFEZE 8 ME 8,434,699 7,094,670
Properties under development BRI 19 28,356,871 15,723,873
Trade receivables JE I BR SR 27 416,122 254,857
Prepayments, deposits and BAFIE - FTek
other receivables Hoft e Yo kI8 28 4,117,358 4,520,838
Equity investments at fair value through BRBRIZAREFEZ
profit or loss fRiEIR & 29 11,011 10,296
Pledged deposits [REEEUIVER N 30 13,594 129,905
Restricted cash XRGIRE 30 913,383 304,528
Cash and cash equivalents BeRIREEEY 30 6,534,049 6,734,052
48,923,061 34,882,126
Assets of a disposal group classified DI EBEEFE Y
as held for sale HEHEZEE 12 795,450 =
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R BRI R

31 December 2013 —ZE—=F+=-A=+—H

31 December

31 December

2013 2012
—E—-= —EF—=
+=ZA=+—H +=—A=+—H
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5E FET FET
Total current assets MBI EERRE 49,718,511 34,882,126
CURRENT LIABILITIES HREAE
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings & BR17T R EMEE 31 12,121,869 8,074,238
Trade payables T8 5 BR X 32 1,028,975 703,486
Other payables and accruals Hib B R ERTE B 33 10,134,523 8,283,656
Due to the immediate holding company  ENEZEZERARIFIE  42(d)(ii) 31,446 14,158
Due to the ultimate holding company ENEEZERARRIE  42(d)>) 3,898,268 64,579
Tax payable FERT I8 3,177,118 1,978,905
30,392,199 20,019,022
Liabilities directly associated with HAOBMARKIEFEL
the assets classified as held for sale BEEREECAE 12 424,363 =
Total current liabilities mE B EERE 30,816,562 20,019,022
NET CURRENT ASSETS mENEEFE 18,901,949 14,863,104
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES #EERARBERS 46,074,963 34,372,985
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings & BR17T R EMEE 31 12,167,504 13,236,124
Due to the ultimate holding company ENRELZERARZIE  42d)(>0) 1,221,024 -
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIABE 34 5,107,089 1,627,018
Total non-current liabilities JEmB A EEEE 18,495,617 14,863,142
Net assets BESE 27,579,346 19,509,843
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to owners
of the parent BAREE AELER
Issued capital BEITIRA 35 269,053 186,451
Reserves f# 37(a) 24,423,031 16,951,253
Proposed final dividend BOR AN HARR S 13 645,727 410,192
25,337,811 17,547,896
Non-controlling interests IR 2,241,535 1,961,947
Total equity - E e 27,579,346 19,509,843
GAO Shengyuan LIU Chong
BER EIES
Director Director
EE EE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
EREREER

ll‘lT
Year ended 31 December 2013 &;

ECT-—=F+_A=+—-HILFE

Atibutable to owners of the parent

BAARRARL
Available-
forsale
Share Captel~~ Share Asset investment xchange Non-
Issued premium  Other redemption option  Capitel revaluation reveluation  Statutory fluctuation  Retained ~ Proposed controling —~ Total
Gpial account resewe resene feseme resee  resene  resee resene  resene  profis diidends  Total interests equiy
g
S BERE BRE &% KEEf REE( Eigd HER
fhe BER AHRE RE  BE  BE RE  BE RER R REM BWRE BB & RugE
Notes  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSOOO  HKSO0O  HKSOOO  HKS000 HK$O00  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSOO0  HKEOOO  HKS000
Wi fh T T T T A TR T TR TR TR TR TR TR T
{1 January 2012 H-E-"%-F-H 181301 5557268 (311240) 2036 46577 59019 @3571 1687 1306894 3221691 5144695 290082 15543379 1469558 17012937
Proft for the year EmiH - - - - - - - - - - 2156069 - Q156069 404171 2560240
Other comprefiensive income for
the yeer;
Changes in fai value of avaleble-
forsale imvestments, netoftx -~~~ 23 - - - - - - - 195 - - - 1975 - 195
Share of other comprehensie. ~ ElehE
inoome of associates EhaAEle - - - - - - T - 26989 - 7719 -0
Puchenge iferences on tanston BERIERZ
of forein operations EXEE - - - - - - - - - 159708 - - 19703 18838 178541
Totdl comprehensive income
forthe year EmAENGAE - - = = = = 10 195 186,692 2,156,069 - 1345526 423,009 2,768,535
Findl 2011 dvidend declared BER-T--F58ks - - - - - - - - - - - (200082) (290082) - (9008
Establshment of a subsidary KRB - - - - - - - - - - - - - 109862 109862
Acquision o subsidares YENHEAT - - - - - - - - - - - - -1
Aaguision of non-contoling interests 3£ 2R ER - - (318 - - - - - - - - - (5185 (31500) (34689)
Decrase n merestin asubsiday 1~ M%Af LR
wihoutossofcotl (PEXZEME) - - - e - T 17 N ' R 3
Inieim 2012 dhidend i the fom of /Aﬂxﬁ fitz
N shares “E-CERERE 3 5150 176,733 = = = = = = = = = - 181883 - 181883
Tensferofshare opton esene pon R EREX N 5
the apse of hre options G - - - - (19 - - - - -1 - - - -
Fouiysetted shae opion epense WREATBRIERR 36 - - - - 1708 - - - - - - - 1me - 108
Share ofresemes of associates EEBENFRE - - - - (8679) - - - - 12817 AT -
Inteim 2012 diidend ES ZEhERS 13 - - - - - - - - - - - (B - (380
Poposed il 2012 dhidend~ HE-F-ZExERE 13 - - - - - - - - - - (10192) 410192 - - -
Dividends péid to non-contoling
shereholders SHERREZ RS - - - - - - - - - - - - - (1n3) (142340)
Transter from retaned piofi ERBREE - - - - - - - - 141209 - (141.09) - - - -
RoE-CE
At 31 December 2012 TZAZH-A 186451 5714007 (311388 2036% 52099 59019F  GA36I* 3662 1447903 3408383* 6510.277% 410,192 175478% 1961947 19509843
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

nv-ﬁ

BREEEER

Year ended 31 December 2013 HHE=ZT—=F+=-A=+—HILFE

Atibutable to owners of the parent

BAARRARL
Available-
forsale
Share Captel~~ Share Asset investment xchange Non-
Issued premium  Other redemption ~option  Capitel revaluation reveluation  Statutory fluctuation  Retained ~ Proposed controling ~~ Total
Gpial account resewe resene feseme resee  fesene  resee resene  resene  profits diidends  Total interests equiy
g
B B BERE BRE &% KEE( REE( Eigd #2R
fhe BER AHRE RE  BE  BR RE B RER R REM BWRE BB B EugE
Notes  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$OOO  HKSO0O  HKSOOD  HKS00 HK$O00  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSOOO  HKEOOO  HKS000
Wt T Th Thr T Thr TR TR TR T TR T TR TR T T
{1 January 2013 R-E-Z8-R-H 186451 5714001 (311388) 2036 52999 59019 64361 3662 1447903 3408383 6510277 410,192 1754789 1961947 19509843
Poftor e year ] - - - - ..o TRE - TR INSST 311099
Other compreensive income
fo the year EREfAENE
Changes in ft value of avelebledor- L EREAAE
sal investmens,net oftax 29 B - - - - - - - (s - - - - (e - (48
Share o oher comprefiensie ncome. k&2
of associates Eh2Ehg - - - - - - 2% - - 134805 - - 135100 - 1300
Bichange diferences on tanslaon of AEANEHEL
foreign operatons EXEE = = = - - - - - - M - - SB8) 48986 572068
Tota comprehensive income
forthe year EMAENGAE = S = = = = 2% (48) - 658087 273843 - 3301987 421543 3813530
Final 2012 duidend inthe fom of B RERG A2
cash and new shees CE-CERERS 135 7867 410860 - - - - - - - - (155540) (410192) (145,007) - (145007)
lsue of shares eling o acquistion 72K E—EBA
of asubsiay G T 1 e 111 - G
Equisetled shae option epense. - HRARITBRERR 36 - - - - 608 - - - - - - - 608 - 608
Exemiseoshateopions filEERE 3 58 31736 - - (100) - - - - - - - B - B
Transter ofshere opion resenve upon
the lopse end canceleton of -~ RERERAR
share options THEERERERR - - - - (980) - - - - - 980 - - - -
Share o resemes of assocites EEEAATRE - - - -9 - - - - - - - - un
Iteim 2013 dhicend i te fom of /A%MM iz
cash and new shes CI-CERERE 13 300 236840 - - - - - - - - (371,160) - (130619) - (130619)
Poposed ind 2013 hidend ~ RE-F-ZERERE 13 - - - - - - - - - - (57 60 - - -
Dividends péid to non-contoling
sharcholders SHEREEZ RS - - - - - - - - - - - - - (141,955 (1419%)
Trensfer fom retaned prof ERERBE - - - - - - - - 188 - (18830) - - - -
Rz
{31 December 2013 TZRZH-A 269053 10964217 (311388)  2036*  45,196% 59019  64656F  (1165) 1.576,740% 4066470% T957250F 645,727 5357811 2241535 27579346
*  These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of < ZERBREBRESWBRRR P 2R

HK$24,423,031,000 (2012: HK$16,951,253,000) in the consolidated statement

of financial position.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

MERERER

Year ended 31 December 2013 HHE=ZT—=F+=-A=+—HILFE

2013 2012
—F—-= —T——4F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
L FER FAT
(Restated)
(=35)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES RE&EEK 2 RLSRE
Profit before tax: B A A -
From continuing operations REFELLE TS 5,077,157 3,691,720
From a discontinued operation RE IS ECE X 16,036 10,081
Adjustments for: BT S IR
Finance costs BB 645,954 479,549
Finance income BSUA (446,740) (472,427)
Depreciation e 15 161,205 104,151
Increase in fair value of investment
properties WEWMER R EEN 20 (624,403) (470,895)
Income from available-for-sale REAMEHERE 2
investments A (3,114) (2,843)
Share of profits and losses of: FE1E 3485
Joint ventures r=X—/NC]| (219,169) (48,524)
Associates A —/N] (833,163) (818,937)
Amortisation of vehicle licences VT EE heR AR S 16 9,522 6,332
Amortisation of prepaid land lease TaAS £ A & FRIE
payments #iH 17 2,206 1,497
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEME - BER
plant and equipment REEE 2 HE (2,457) (3,533)
Gain on disposal of investment properties  H & & &YW~ F|15 5 (134,979) -
Gain on a bargain purchase —IHRER BTG 5 (637,945) (200,586)
Remeasurement gain on investments in DITBERAVRENE
associates in step acquisitions Bt N AR E 2 W 5 - (39,188)
Impairment of an investment in —MHEE R FIRE
an associate ZR(E 6 96,000 =
Net fair value gain on equity BRBRIEANEFE
investments at fair value through 2RI E 2
profit or loss ATl G (715) (2,269)
Equity-settled share option expense AR (2 BRI 36 6,088 17,018
3,111,483 2,251,146
Increase in trade receivables JEWTE 5 BR R AN (164,576) (108,123)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, TERFIE « Rl REAM
deposits and other receivables U R IER A (32 an) 278,919 (815,866)
Decrease in equity investments at BRBERRAREREZ
fair value through profit or loss AR IR B - 11,460
Increase in inventories FEEN (19,545) (15,666)
(Increase)/decrease in completed FHEGE ZE BRI
properties held for sale (gmm), m (1,347,215) 2,732,184
Increase in properties under development 2 & F #1512 40 (796,079) (6,227,723)
Increase in trade payables FESTE 5 BRFIG N 326,437 2,722
(Decrease)/increase in other payables Hih TR IE R ERTE A
and accruals CRA),/ #hn (134,126) 2,168,303
Increase in an amount due to FET BB R A RIFRIE
the immediate holding company H#E 0 1,670 14,158
Increase in an amount due to JEAS S &P AR A RIFRIA
the ultimate holding company 0 10,501 9,938
Increase in restricted cash PR HIER 35 00 30 (608,855) (178,103)
Cash generated from/(used in) mEEBEE/(FTA)
operations 2B e 658,614 (155,570)
Interest paid EAHLE (1,586,850) (1,183,571)
Mainland China taxes paid BT B R RER IE (792,809) (836,147)
Net cash flows used in operating KETHMAZRERE
activities FE (1,721,045) (2,175,288)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

nVT IE%/)H:E%%

Year ended 31 December 2013 HHE=ZT—=F+=-A=+—HILFE

2013 2012
—E—= —ET -5
Notes HK$'000 HK$ 000
s FET FAT
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REREFH RS
ACTIVITIES HE
Interest received B RS 460,601 275,094
Income from available-for-sale investments & & A] it ﬁ%?ﬁﬁzqﬁlﬁ 3,114 2,843
Dividends received from associates EENEI—INCI) ¥ 167,273 374,567
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEWE Jﬂ%& P
property, plant and equipment 18 B S 30E 16,819 16,714
Proceeds from disposal of investment ﬁ%&ﬁ%%ﬁﬁ =
properties TR 274,055 -
Purchases of items of property, plant and ~ BA¥E - BE&
equipment BaEElE (203,134) (179,785)
Acquisition of a subsidiary Y iE — M B A Rl 38 355,159 (560,112)
An additional land premium of a parcel of — —1gEdlk iE — R B A 7
land related to an acquisition of MR 2 T3tz BN L3
a subsidiary RE 38 (508,907) -
Proceeds from disposal of HERAZ MR E
a held-to-maturity investment FTiS k18 - 387,968
Additions to investment properties &éi@%i‘ an (516,607) (206,248)
Loans to joint ventures HBTELANRIZER (523) (9,839)
Loans to associates BTHERNRZER (6,812) (12,183)
(Increase)/decrease in other long term HEtRBEEZ
assets (), R (237,362) 20,047
Additions to intangible assets mIEE le] (49,986) 311)
Decrease/(increase) in pledged deposits ~ BE#EMFFURD (#m) 30 236,357 (254,801)
Net cash flows used in investing x,\/E@Jﬁﬁﬁﬁ ZBHERE
activities HE (9,953) (146,046)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES REBEEE 2B ERE
Proceeds from issue of shares BTN FT1S 508 25,263 -
Establishment of a subsidiary EEI—F'EEJ RG] - 109,862
Dividends paid BEARE (275,626) (362,021)
Dividends paid to non-controlling S'ZﬁiH Hxﬁxﬁz
shareholders i @SN (141,955) (142,347)
Acquisition of non-controlling interests g El32 Hx*& it - (32,928)
Increase in an amount due to the ultimate & & 442 /% FX QL]
holding company 30 514,134 -
Loans from fellow subsidiaries TR R B R T 2B R 19,282 -
Loans from non-controlling shareholders T IR AR AR 2 B 3K 122,686 -
New bank and other borrowings FILIRIT R EMEE 15,112,845 11,475,949
Repayment of bank and other borrowings i R{T R EMEE (13,880,250) (7,150,475)
Net cash flows from financing REBEGTH I HERE
activities HE 1,496,379 3,898,040
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH AND iﬁﬁ&fiﬁ%f“%
CASH EQUIVALENTS B R E (234,619) 1,576,706
Cash and cash equivalents at E%}]Ziﬁ@&fﬂﬂzw
beginning of year & 6,734,052 5,097,524
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net 4MNi[E 5 & B 52 2% (8 145,945 59,822
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR FRZAERAECEEY 6,645,378 6,734,052
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

nVT IE%/)H:E%%

Year ended 31 December 2013 HE-T—=F+_-_A=-+—HILFE

2013 2012
—Eg-= —E—CF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
s FET FAT
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND RERRSE/YER
CASH EQUIVALENTS 24
Cash and bank balances He MIRIT4 30 6,379,869 5,197,802
Non-pledged time deposits with
original maturity of less than BARRIIHE DR
three months when acquired =EAzmERERER 30 154,180 1,536,250
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in
the consolidated statement of R R EMBARRERZ
financial position ReRBEEEEY 6,534,049 6,734,052
Cash and short term deposits attributable — JE#F A4 & ETEfE(L 2
to a discontinued operation & M EETER 12 111,329 =
Cash and cash equivalents as stated BERREeERERZES®
in the statement of cash flows KRS EEY 6,645,378 6,734,052
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Statement of Financial Position

B IR AR

31 December 2013 —ZE—=F+=-A=+—H

31 December

31 December

2013 2012
=5 —E——F
+=A=+—H +=-A=+—8
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
b= FExT T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BE M 15 588 969
Investments in subsidiaries HB AR E 21 12,091,963 7,124,008
Investments in associates BN AR E 23 268,532 364,532
Available-for-sale investments Al ERE 24 1,720 1,720
Total non-current assets EmBEEBRE 12,362,803 7,491,229
CURRENT ASSETS MENEE
Prepayments, deposits and other BAFIE - 7T Kk
receivables H b fE U 5RI8 28 2,176 31,772
Due from subsidiaries JiE I B B A R TR 21 7,268,199 5,832,920
Equity investments at fair value through BREREANERFE
profit or loss ZIRHERE 29 11,011 10,296
Cash and cash equivalents HehEeEEY 30 911,257 794,206
8,192,643 6,669,194
Asset classified as held for sale DEARREREZEE 21 71,220 =
Total current assets MBI EERRE 8,263,863 6,669,194
CURRENT LIABILITIES nEBE
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings #8817 & E b S & 31 3,818,818 968,956
Other payables and accruals Hi A RIERETER 33 52,381 50,707
Due to the ultimate holding company FERT R AR IR AR A B FRIE 159,905 12,204
Due to subsidiaries FERTH B A R FRIE 21 234,199 204,790
Total current liabilities mEN A EAEE 4,265,303 1,236,657
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFE 3,998,560 5,432,537
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES #EERAEBAME 16,361,363 12,923,766
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings & BR17T R EMEE 31 4,436,658 6,196,205
Total non-current liabilities ERE A EERE 4,436,658 6,196,205
Net assets BEFE 11,924,705 6,727,561
EQUITY B
Issued capital BT 35 269,053 186,451
Reserves i 37(b) 11,009,925 6,130,918
Proposed final dividend ok R HARR 2 13 645,727 410,192
Total equity e 11,924,705 6,727,561
GAO Shengyuan LIU Chong
BEx 2=
Director Director
= EFE
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2.1

Notes to Financial Statements

PSR AL

31 December 2013 —E—=F+_-A=+—H

CORPORATE INFORMATION
Shenzhen Investment Limited (the “Company”) is a limited liability
company incorporated in Hong Kong. The registered office of the
Company is located at 8th Floor, New East Ocean Centre, 9 Science
Museum Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) were involved in the following principal activities:

—  Property development

—  Property investment

—  Property management

—  Provision of transportation services

—  Manufacture and sale of industrial and commercial products

In the opinion of the directors, the immediate holding company
of the Company is Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited (“Shum
Yip Holdings", & (& B)& BR A &), which is a private company
incorporated in Hong Kong. The ultimate holding company of the
Company is FEEBHFR AR (“Shum Yip Group”), which is a state-
owned company established in Shenzhen, the People’'s Republic of
China (the "PRC").

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The Company's financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (which
include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for investment properties, certain
buildings classified as property, plant and equipment and equity
investments, which have been measured at fair value. Disposal groups
held for sale are stated at the lower of their carrying amounts and fair
values less costs to sell as further explained in note 2.4. These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.
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Notes to Financial Statements
B SRR M

31 December 2013 —T—=F+-A=+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED) 2.1 RBLE%E ()

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December
2013. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting
policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which the Group obtains control and continue to be consolidated until
the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between

members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of
the three elements of control described in the accounting policy for
subsidiaries below. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the
assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the
carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the
fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any
investment retained and (iii)) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit
or loss. The Group's share of components previously recognised in
other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained
profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs for the

first time for the current year's financial statements.

HKFRS 1 Amendments

HKFRS 7 Amendments

HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and
HKFRS 12 Amendments

HKFRS 13

HKAS 1 Amendments

HKAS 19 (2011)

HKAS 27 (2011)

HKAS 28 (2011)

HKAS 36 Amendments

HK(IFRIC)-Int 20

Annual Improvements
2009-2011 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time Adoption
of Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards — Government Loans

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures — Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Consolidated Financial Statements

Joint Arrangements

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11
and HKFRS 12 — Transition Guidance

Fair Value Measurement

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of
Financial Statements — Presentation of
Items of Other Comprehensive Income

Employee Benefits

Separate Financial Statements

Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures

Amendments to HKAS 36 Impairment
of Assets — Recoverable Amount
Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets
(early adopted)

Stripping Costs in the Production Phase
of a Surface Mine

Amendments to a number of HKFRSs
issued in June 2012
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 22 B BRREEZ2E (H)

DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

Other than as further explained below regarding the impact of HKFRS BRI 2 BB B B R E 2R
10, HKFRS 11, HKFRS 12, HKFRS 13, HKAS 19 (2011), amendments 105 - BAMBRELAEBI5
to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11, HKFRS 12, HKAS 1 and HKAS 36, and certain BB ERELERFE 125 - BEPHR
amendments included in Annual Improvements 2009-2011 Cycle, FREAEBIZ - BEGHEAFI9H
the adoption of the new and revised HKFRSs has had no significant (ZF—— %) BAMBRELASE
financial effect on these financial statements. 1058 - BEMBRELENEIIR &

BRI R F 125 - HAZFTER]
F1RRBEB G ERNFEI6H 2 55T A
RIWAZEENFR =T ——FHHZ
FEREHANE TIEFT 2B - IR
el RS T B A SRS LR EZE
B RRWES AN E -

The principal effects of adopting these new and revised HKFRSs are as RN SR RAEIETT BB IR E

follows: AlzF 2280 :

(@) HKFRS 10 replaces the portion of HKAS 27 Consolidated and () BEAMBHRERAEI0RMASF
Separate Financial Statements that addresses the accounting BEERNE27TRA S KB LA
for consolidated financial statements and addresses the issues BHX AR MG HREARD
in HK(SIO)-Int 12 Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities. It HoREB (FEREZRE) -
establishes a single control model used for determining which RER120VEE - HHRANERE
entities are consolidated. To meet the definition of control in REMEIR - BEMBREER
HKFRS 10, an investor must have (a) power over an investee, (b) L10EEY —HRANEERS O
exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with ERNE —FHEX - BFEE
the investee, and (c) the ability to use its power over the investee 78 B 795 o o5 2 I 581 055 B 10 2 1
to affect the amount of the investor's returns. The changes BNER RAZA: (QRAYH
introduced by HKFRS 10 require management of the Group to REAURZEN )RS EREE
exercise significant judgement to determine which entities are HREEMBZEPHEFAZE
controlled. k=B RQEHRERE

HREURZBNFEREED
HRERE - BEEUBHRESERNFEI0
O ANEHREATEEERE
BEHEARHE - NEEXHE

HIREEE ©

As a result of the application of HKFRS 10, the Group has RRRABBHGHREEAEI0
changed the accounting policy with respect to determining which B AKBEERHEAKEE
investees are controlled by the Group. H 2 REE RN GFHBER o

The application of HKFRS 10 does not change any of the RMBBHGRELAZI0HRT
consolidation conclusions of the Group in respect of its EEREAR-F—=F—HA—
involvement with investees as at 1 January 2013. ANERAAERESREEHRY

BHORE °
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 22 B BERREEZ22E (&)
DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(b) HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures and (b) %ﬁfﬁﬁﬁ%*&%@ﬂu BTTSREVA &

HK(SIC)-Int 13 Jointly Controlled Entities — Non-Monetary
Contributions by Venturers. It describes the accounting for
joint arrangements with joint control. It addresses only two
forms of joint arrangements, i.e., joint operations and joint
ventures, and removes the option to account for joint ventures
using proportionate consolidation. The classification of joint
arrangements under HKFRS 11 depends on the parties’ rights and
obligations arising from the arrangements. A joint operation is a
joint arrangement whereby the joint operators have rights to the
assets and obligations for the liabilities of the arrangement and
is accounted for on a line-by-line basis to the extent of the joint
operators' rights and obligations in the joint operation. A joint
venture is a joint arrangement whereby the joint ventures have
rights to the net assets of the arrangement and is required to be
accounted for using the equity method in accordance with HKAS
28 (2011).

The directors of the Company reviewed and assessed the
classification of the Group's investments in joint arrangements in
accordance with the requirements of HKFRS 11, and concluded
that the adoption of HKFRS 11 has had no impact on the currently
held investments of the Group.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

©

(d)

HKFRS 12 sets out the disclosure requirements for subsidiaries,
joint arrangements, associates and structured entities previously
included in HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements, HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures and HKAS
28 Investments in Associates. It also introduces a number of
new disclosure requirements for these entities. Details of the
disclosures for subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are

included in notes 21, 22 and 23 to the financial statements.

The HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12 Amendments clarify
the transition guidance in HKFRS 10 and provide further relief
from full retrospective application of these standards, limiting the
requirement to provide adjusted comparative information to only
the preceding comparative period. The amendments clarify that
retrospective adjustments are only required if the consolidation
conclusion as to which entities are controlled by the Group is
different between HKFRS 10 and HKAS 27 or HK(SIC)-Int 12 at
the beginning of the annual period in which HKFRS 10 is applied
for the first time.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(e) HKFRS 13 provides a precise definition of fair value and a single

®

source of fair value measurement and disclosure requirements
for use across HKFRSs. The standard does not change the
circumstances in which the Group is required to use fair value,
but rather provides guidance on how fair value should be applied
where its use is already required or permitted under other
HKFRSs. HKFRS 13 is applied prospectively and the adoption has
had no material impact on the Group's fair value measurements.
As a result of the guidance in HKFRS 13, the policies for
measuring fair value have been amended. Additional disclosures
required by HKFRS 13 for the fair value measurements of
investment properties and financial instruments are included in
notes 20 and 43 to the financial statements.

The HKAS 1 Amendments change the grouping of items
presented in other comprehensive income (“OCI"). Items that
could be reclassified (or recycled) to profit or loss at a future
point in time (for example, exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations, net movement on cash flow hedges
and net loss or gain on available-for-sale financial assets) are
presented separately from items which will never be reclassified
(for example, the revaluation of land and buildings). The
amendments have affected the presentation only and have had
no impact on the financial position or performance of the Group.
The consolidated statement of comprehensive income has been
restated to reflect the changes. In addition, the Group has chosen
to use the new title “statement of profit or loss” as introduced by
the amendments in these financial statements.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

®

(h)

HKAS 19 (2011) includes a number of amendments that range
from fundamental changes to simple clarifications and re-
wording. The revised standard introduces significant changes
in the accounting for defined benefit pension plans including
removing the choice to defer the recognition of actuarial gains
and losses. Other changes include modifications to the timing of
recognition for termination benefits, the classification of short-term
employee benefits and disclosures of defined benefit plans. As
the Group does not have any defined benefit plan or employee
termination plan and the Group does not have any significant
employee benefits that are expected to be settled for more than
twelve months after the reporting period, the adoption of the
revised standard has had no effect on the financial position or
performance of the Group.

The HKAS 36 Amendments remove the unintended disclosure
requirement made by HKFRS 13 on the recoverable amount of
a cash-generating unit which is not impaired. In addition, the
amendments require the disclosure of the recoverable amounts
for the assets or cash-generating units for which an impairment
loss has been recognised or reversed during the reporting period,
and expand the disclosure requirements regarding the fair
value measurement for these assets or units if their recoverable
amounts are based on fair value less costs of disposal. The
amendments are effective retrospectively for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2014 with earlier application
permitted, provided HKFRS 13 is also applied. The Group has
early adopted the amendments in these financial statements.
The amendments have had no impact on the financial position
or performance of the Group. Disclosures about the Group's
impaired non-financial assets are included in note 23 to the
financial statements.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

0]

Annual Improvements 2009-2011 Cycle issued in June 2012 sets
out amendments to a number of standards. There are separate
transitional provisions for each standard. While the adoption of
some of the amendments may result in changes in accounting
policies, none of these amendments have had a significant
financial impact on the Group. Details of the key amendments
most applicable to the Group are as follows:

HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements: Clarifies
the difference between voluntary additional comparative
information and the minimum required comparative
information. Generally, the minimum required comparative
period is the previous period. An entity must include
comparative information in the related notes to the financial
statements when it voluntarily provides comparative
information beyond the previous period. The additional
comparative information does not need to contain a
complete set of financial statements.

In addition, the amendment clarifies that the opening
statement of financial position as at the beginning of the
preceding period must be presented when an entity changes
its accounting policies; makes retrospective restatements or
makes reclassifications, and that change has a material effect
on the statement of financial position. However, the related
notes to the opening statement of financial position as at
the beginning of the preceding period are not required to be
presented.

HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation: Clarifies that
income taxes arising from distributions to equity holders
are accounted for in accordance with HKAS 12 /ncome
Taxes. The amendment removes existing income tax
requirements from HKAS 32 and requires entities to apply
the requirements in HKAS 12 to any income tax arising from
distributions to equity holders.

| 94 |
Shenzhen Investment Limited
RIERAE R A A
ANNUAL REPORT 2013 %R

22 B BHERERKRE 228 (&)

0]

ZE——HERRBEHGZ=FEA
FE_E——FRHHZFREN
G| ZREAER] - FIRER
BB B LR IR - B AR
MEBOIEFT AL BB E
B BZEEITHITEHAEER
BREAVBZE - REARA
SEZET2EFTFHBET :

- BAEESREANFIURYEH
FZ 25 BE B REIEREIN
LR ER B ERELLRE
BZEWER - —RMF -
RIKARTE L R HA A L 8 A
M- B2ERBERRERLED
IUASNY L BB BB - HZR
R TR 2 AR RART e &
ALBEF o BINLBE R
BAB S TEWH®RE
s RERTEE - EEE

@EE@HB@E C fEHE W

BISETERSE A

BAEHHMBERARBEKE

A28 AZAZ% EE

HA 59 46 B & B 40 B 75 AR

xR LEBEFSRE

B B 40 B 75 A 0 3R 2 4 Rl

ARIBAZS -

. BARHEREDRRHT
A 25l BERER Hﬁ
AEH 2 IR FTEE £ 2 F st
RIRBB G ERIE 12547
FH AR - ZIEFTBUBR A
S EBIEIS NI A TS
MRE - WERELARM
BmiE A AEL D IRTES
ZERMAEHERSES:
HERIFE 129 ZHTE °



Notes to Financial Statements

PSR AL

31 December 2013 —T—=F+-A=+—H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, that
have been issued but are not yet effective, in the consolidated financial

statements.
HKFRS 9

HKFRS 9, HKFRS 7 and
HKAS 39 Amendments

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
and HKAS 27 (2011)
Amendments

HKFRS 14

HKAS 19 Amendments

HKAS 32 Amendments

HKAS 39 Amendments

HK(IFRIC)-Int 21

Annual Improvements
2010 — 2012 Cycle

Annual Improvements
2011 — 2013 Cycle

Financial Instruments®

Hedge Accounting and amendments to
HKFRS 9, HKFRS 7 and HKAS 393

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
and HKAS 27 (2011) — Investment
Entities’

Regulatory Deferral Accounts*

Amendments to HKAS 19 Employee
Benefits — Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions?

Amendments to HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation — Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities’

Amendments to HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement — Novation of Derivatives
and Continuation of Hedge Accounting'

Levies'

Amendments to a number of HKFRSs
issued in December 20132

Amendments to a number of HKFRSs
issued in December 20132

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014
g No mandatory effective date yet determined but is available for adoption
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016

| 95 |

Shenzhen Investment Limited
RIERAB R A A
ANNUAL REPORT 2013 %R

2.3 BEMEERERZERBIMHK

kg

REEIW AR FER S HHHRER D ER
AT B R 1E M R AR Z 75T RARIERT

FRMIERELED o

BREHREER
£o%

BARBREER
9% - BEUHR
ERAETRRES
PR E30% (s
HES

ERUTBREER
105 - BEUB

LRAZ1DER

ERTE

Bpgst RYEEH BHAE
RIE9% - BETBHEE
RIETHREEEEE
FI9K LT

HEEMRE
F10%  BEUBREE
EIEAVE Y Eg-hpd]

BEEsHERE27 F75 (ZF—F)-&
R(ZE——F)  EEE 7B
HES
BBIH RS ER EERTKG
F145
REEERNEI10  HERELIENE19RES
EHE & — R E
EEH 2]
BREERET.  HEEeENENNLH
EHES IR : 2F-Hiz@E
ERERERE 2]
BEQHENRIN  HEBLHERINLH
BT IR BRRiE -4
TRZEERIHAEHZ
EE 2]
7 (BB aER  AE
BZEEQ)- aﬁi
EWAL
ZFE-FFF RZZ—=F+=RHfiz
ZE——FHHC HEBRANBREER
FEL# Bz
—E——F% RZZ-=F+-Affhz
—F-CEEY HEBRANBREER L
FEN# ik
L RZZE—NF—A—HBskzEBRBZ
FEHIR A K
2 RZE—NFLA—BRZERBAZ
FEHIM AR

: ie0 7 188 T 5 Il AR 2 B E M AT K ER AR

¢ R=F—

NE—A—BZzERBZ
FEHARAER



Notes to Financial Statements
B SRR M

31 December 2013 —E—=F+_-A=+—H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG 23 EREMEERERZEBHKE

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is as follows:

HKFRS 9 issued in November 2009 is the first part of phase 1 of
a comprehensive project to entirely replace HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. This phase focuses on the
classification and measurement of financial assets. Instead of classifying
financial assets into four categories, an entity shall classify financial
assets as subsequently measured at either amortised cost or fair value,
on the basis of both the entity's business model for managing the
financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the
financial assets. This aims to improve and simplify the approach for the
classification and measurement of financial assets compared with the
requirements of HKAS 39.

In November 2010, the HKICPA issued additions to HKFRS 9 to
address financial liabilities (the “Additions”) and incorporated in HKFRS
9 the current derecognition principles of financial instruments of
HKAS 39. Most of the Additions were carried forward unchanged from
HKAS 39, while changes were made to the measurement of financial
liabilities designated as at fair value through profit or loss using the fair
value option (“FVO"). For these FVO liabilities, the amount of change
in the fair value of a liability that is attributable to changes in credit risk
must be presented in OCI. The remainder of the change in fair value is
presented in profit or loss, unless presentation of the fair value change
in respect of the liability's credit risk in OCI would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. However, loan commitments and
financial guarantee contracts which have been designated under the
FVO are scoped out of the Additions.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG 23 EREMEERERZEBHKE

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (CONTINUED)
In December 2013, the HKICPA added to HKFRS 9 the requirements
related to hedge accounting and made some related changes to HKAS
39 and HKFRS 7 which include the corresponding disclosures about risk
management activity for applying hedge accounting. The amendments
to HKFRS 9 relax the requirements for assessing hedge effectiveness
which result in more risk management strategies being eligible for
hedge accounting. The amendments also allow greater flexibility on the
hedged items and relax the rules on using purchased options and non-
derivative financial instruments as hedging instruments. In addition, the
amendments to HKFRS 9 allow an entity to apply only the improved
accounting for own credit risk-related fair value gains and losses arising
on FVO liabilities as introduced in 2010 without applying the other
HKFRS 9 requirements at the same time.

HKAS 39 is aimed to be replaced by HKFRS 9 in its entirety. Before
this entire replacement, the guidance in HKAS 39 on impairment of
financial assets continues to apply. The previous mandatory effective
date of HKFRS 9 was removed by the HKICPA in December 2013
and a mandatory effective date will be determined after the entire
replacement of HKAS 39 is completed. However, the standard is
available for application now. The Group will quantify the effect in
conjunction with other phases, when the final standard including all
phases is issued.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 include a definition of an investment entity
and provide an exception to the consolidation requirement for entities
that meet the definition of an investment entity. Investment entities are
required to account for subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss in
accordance with HKFRS 9 rather than consolidate them. Consequential
amendments were made to HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 (2011). The
amendments to HKFRS 12 also set out the disclosure requirements for
investment entities. The Group expects that these amendments will not
have any impact on the Group as the Company is not an investment
entity as defined in HKFRS 10
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

Notes to Financial Statements
B SRR M

31 December 2013 —E—=F+_-A=+—H

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (CONTINUED)
The HKAS 32 Amendments clarify the meaning of “currently has a
legally enforceable right to set off” for offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities. The amendments also clarify the application of the
offsetting criteria in HKAS 32 to settlement systems (such as central
clearing house systems) which apply gross settlement mechanisms
that are not simultaneous. The amendments are not expected to have
any impact on the financial position or performance of the Group upon
adoption on 1 January 2014.

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the
Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the
current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company's statement
of profit or loss to the extent of dividends received and receivable.
The Company's investments in subsidiaries that are not classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 are stated at cost less any
impairment losses.
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Notes to Financial Statements
B SRR M

31 December 2013 —T—=F+-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term interest of
generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over which
it is in a position to exercise significant influence. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee, but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of
the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of
control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the
relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control.

The Group's investments in associates and joint ventures are stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at the Group's share of
net assets under the equity method of accounting, less any impairment
losses.

Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting
policies that may exist.

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures is included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated
other comprehensive income, respectively. In addition, when there
has been a change recognised directly in the equity of the associate
or joint venture, the Group recognises its share of any changes,
when applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between the
Group and its associates or joint ventures are eliminated to the extent
of the Group’s investments in the associates or joint ventures, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associates
or joint ventures is included as part of the Group's investments in
associates or joint ventures.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 FESTHBERZME ()

(CONTINUED)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not remeasured. Instead,
the investment continues to be accounted for under the equity
method. In all other cases, upon loss of significant influence over the
associate or joint control over the joint venture, the Group measures
and recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any difference
between the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture upon
loss of significant influence or joint control and the fair value of the
retained investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit
or loss.

The results of associates and joint ventures are included in the
Company's statement of profit or loss to the extent of dividends
received and receivable. The Company's investments in associates and
joint ventures are treated as non-current assets and are stated at cost
less any impairment losses.

When an investment in an associate or a joint venture is classified as
held for sale, it is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method.
The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition date fair
value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the
former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the
Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For each business
combination, the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the
event of liquidation either at fair value or at the proportionate share
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs
are expensed as incurred.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 FESTHBERZME ()

(CONTINUED)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial
instrument and within the scope of HKAS 39 is measured at fair value
with changes in fair value either recognised in profit or loss or as a
change to other comprehensive income. If the contingent consideration
is not within the scope of HKAS 39, it is measured in accordance with
the appropriate HKFRS. Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate
of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised for non-
controlling interests and any fair value of the Group's previously held
equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items
is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference
is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 FESTHBERZME ()

(CONTINUED)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs
its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the
Group's cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units,
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are
assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which the
goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or group
of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within that unit is
disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of
is included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining
the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these
circumstances is measured based on the relative value of the operation
disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties and equity investments
at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price
that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence
of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset
or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act
in their economic best interest.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Fair value measurement (continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in
the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant

to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1: based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities

Level 2: based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3: based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is

unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements
on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 FESTHBERZME ()

(CONTINUED)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories, construction
contract assets, financial assets, investment properties, goodwill and
non-current assets/a disposal group classified as held for sale), the
asset's recoverable amount is estimated. An asset's recoverable amount
is the higher of the asset's or cash-generating unit's value in use and
its fair value less costs to sell, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which
case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment
loss is charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which
it arises in those expense categories consistent with the function of
the impaired asset, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount,
in which case the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with
the relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill and certain financial
assets is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to
an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such
an impairment loss is credited to the statement of profit or loss in
the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is accounted
for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that revalued
asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family
and that person,

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group
or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity
(or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other
entity);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third
party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a); and

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the entity).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 FESTHBERZME ()

(CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost or valuation less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its

intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have
been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount
of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and
depreciates them accordingly.

Valuations are performed frequently enough to ensure that the fair
value of a revalued asset does not differ materially from its carrying
amount. Changes in the values of property, plant and equipment are
dealt with as movements in the asset revaluation reserve. If the total
of this reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit, on an individual asset
basis, the excess of the deficit is charged to the statement of profit or
loss. Any subsequent revaluation surplus is credited to the statement of
profit or loss to the extent of the deficit previously charged. An annual
transfer from the asset revaluation reserve to retained profits is made
for the difference between the depreciation based on the revalued
carrying amount of an asset and the depreciation based on the asset's
original cost. On disposal of a revalued asset, the relevant portion of
the asset revaluation reserve realised in respect of previous valuations
is transferred to retained profits as a movement in reserves.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)
Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost
of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value
over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this
purpose are as follows:
Leasehold land and buildings Over the lease terms
Leasehold improvements 20%

10% to 25%

9% to 20%

10% to 25%

Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Motor vehicles
Plant and machinery

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the statement of profit or
loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under construction,
which is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is not
depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of construction and
capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds during the
period of construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 FESTHBERZME ()

(CONTINUED)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings held to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such
properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at
fair value, which reflects market conditions at the end of the reporting
period.

Properties under construction or development for future use as
investment properties are classified as investment properties under
construction. If the fair value cannot be reliably determined, the
investment properties under construction will be measured at cost until
such time as fair value can be determined or construction is completed.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in the statement of profit or loss in the year in
which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the year of
the retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied properties
or inventories, the deemed cost of a property for subsequent
accounting is its fair value at the date of change in use. If a property
occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied property becomes
an investment property, the Group accounts for such property in
accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant and equipment
and depreciation” up to the date of change in use, and any difference
at that date between the carrying amount and the fair value of the
property is accounted for as a revaluation in accordance with the policy
stated under “Property, plant and equipment and depreciation” above.
For a transfer from inventories to investment properties, any difference
between the fair value of the property at that date and its previous
carrying amount is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 FESTHBERZME ()

(CONTINUED)

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale
Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale
if their carrying amounts will be recovered principally through a sales
transaction rather than through continuing use. For this to be the case,
the asset or disposal group must be available for immediate sale in its
present condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary
for the sale of such assets or disposal groups and its sale must be
highly probable. All assets and liabilities of a subsidiary classified as a
disposal group are reclassified as held for sale regardless of whether
the Group retains a non-controlling interest in its former subsidiary after
the sale.

Non-current assets and disposal groups (other than investment
properties and financial assets) classified as held for sale are measured
at the lower of their carrying amounts and fair values less costs to sell.
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets classified as held
for sale are not depreciated or amortised.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business
combination is the fair value as at the date of acquisition. The useful
lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the
useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Vehicle licences acquired by the Group are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives of 15 to 20 years.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 FESTHBERZME ()

(CONTINUED)

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to the statement
of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where
the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under the operating leases are
charged to the statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over
the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially stated
at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms. When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and building elements, the entire lease payments
are included in the cost of the land and buildings as a finance lease in
property, plant and equipment.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-
maturity investments and available-for-sale financial investments, or as
derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge,
as appropriate. When financial assets are recognised initially, they are
measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial assets, except in the case of financial assets
recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 FESTHBERZME ()

(CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial
assets held for trading and financial assets designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets are
classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of
sale in the near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments as defined by HKAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with positive net changes
in fair value presented as other income and gains and negative net
changes in fair value presented as finance costs in the statement of
profit or loss. These net fair value changes do not include any dividends
or interest earned on these financial assets, which are recognised in
accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial recognition
and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are satisfied.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or
costs that are an integral part of the effective interest. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in other income and gains in
the statement of profit or loss. The loss arising from impairment is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss in finance costs for loans
and in other expenses for receivables.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 FESTHBERZME ()

(CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Held-to-maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and
fixed maturity are classified as held to maturity when the Group has the
positive intention and ability to hold them to maturity. Held-to-maturity
investments are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in other income and gains in the statement of profit or loss.
The loss arising from impairment is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in other expenses.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative financial
assets in listed and unlisted equity investments and debt securities.
Equity investments classified as available for sale are those which are
neither classified as held for trading nor designated as at fair value
through profit or loss. Debt securities in this category are those which
are intended to be held for an indefinite period of time and which may
be sold in response to needs for liquidity or in response to changes in
the market conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments are
subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains or losses
recognised as other comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve until the investment is derecognised, at
which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss in other income, or until the investment is determined
to be impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from
the available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve to the statement
of profit or loss in other expenses. Interest and dividends earned whilst
holding the available-for-sale financial investments are reported as
interest income and dividend income, respectively and are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss as other income in accordance with
the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot be reliably
measured because (a) the variability in the range of reasonable fair
value estimates is significant for that investment or (b) the probabilities
of the various estimates within the range cannot be reasonably
assessed and used in estimating fair value, such investments are stated
at cost less any impairment losses.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 FESTHBERZME ()

(CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell its
available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are still appropriate.
When, in rare circumstances, the Group is unable to trade these
financial assets due to inactive markets, the Group may elect to
reclassify these financial assets if management has the ability and
intention to hold the assets for the foreseeable future or until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-sale category,
the fair value carrying amount at the date of reclassification becomes
its new amortised cost and any previous gain or loss on that asset that
has been recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over the
remaining life of the investment using the effective interest rate. Any
difference between the new amortised cost and the maturity amount is
also amortised over the remaining life of the asset using the effective
interest rate. If the asset is subsequently determined to be impaired,
then the amount recorded in equity is reclassified to the statement of

profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part
of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e.,
removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position)
when:

« the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

«  the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset, or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the
Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 FESTHBERZME ()

(CONTINUED)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates
if and to what extent it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership
of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the
asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the
extent of the Group's continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset have an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the
group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include indications that a debtor or a group of debtors
is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and observable data
indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future
cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses
individually whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually
for financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively
for financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an
individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it
includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit
risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment.
Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not included in a
collective assessment of impairment.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.4 FESFBERZME (F)

(CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have
not been incurred). The present value of the estimated future cash
flows is discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate
(i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account and the loss is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced
carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used to
discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the
impairment loss. Loans and receivables together with any associated
allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future
recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been transferred to
the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment
loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-
off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to the statement of profit
or loss.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred
on an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried at fair value
because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, or on a derivative
asset that is linked to and must be settled by delivery of such an
unquoted equity instrument, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of
return for a similar financial asset. Impairment losses on these assets

are not reversed.

| 115 |
Shenzhen Investment Limited
RIERAB R A A
ANNUAL REPORT 2013 %R

ERMEERE (&)
BEBHKALSRH 2 BEE (&)
EREE R ERB RS RIRZ EERE
EREFARARBESRE (TRELRE
ERRREERR) RENEZRAE -
ERFARRASRENREASHEEN
BRI X (B RERE S ENE
BRAZK) 3]

ZEEMNREES S BEMRERMR
DU RBERERERE - FBWRATR
PROFERETHEEL - ARAE
B BRI A AT IR R RIR 2 E A
K25 - FRRKREAAEREAAE
HREEERICERTAEE - Rl
5B R % M R TR A (R R AR R R4

fisg 70 EL A& HA R i R TR (BB 18 2 B R FE R
BB 2 R IFEMSEHE ISR - RIE
B 8 B AR BRI AN =Rk > St A FERR O R
EEE - MR ERKEMARER - ZEK
EESRPNEE

BHA TR EE
HEREINRRAERER SFHAER
REMMERAEIIROERERAT
B EZEERERATEHBHEE
AR ZERERARTAEENTER
ECELRERE  AIEBESERZA
BERAERZAUSRBEER /ATH
BRBRFRZ AAARRRERERE
ZEEFHE  ZFEEZREBRETE
#Em o



Notes to Financial Statements
B SRR M

31 December 2013 —E—=F+_-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 FESTHBERZME ()

(CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses at the
end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that
an investment or a group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale investment is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment and
amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment loss
previously recognised in the statement of profit or loss, is removed
from other comprehensive income and recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale,
objective evidence would include a significant or prolonged decline in
the fair value of an investment below its cost. “Significant” is evaluated
against the original cost of the investment and “prolonged” against the
period in which the fair value has been below its original cost. Where
there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as
the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that investment previously recognised in
the statement of profit or loss — is removed from other comprehensive
income and recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Impairment
losses on equity instruments classified as available for sale are not
reversed through the statement of profit or loss. Increases in their fair
value after impairment are recognised directly in other comprehensive

income.

In the case of debt instruments classified as available for sale,
impairment is assessed based on the same criteria as financial
assets carried at amortised cost. However, the amount recorded for
impairment is the cumulative loss measured as the difference between
the amortised cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss
on that investment previously recognised in the statement of profit
or loss. Future interest income continues to be accrued based on the
reduced carrying amount of the asset and is accrued using the rate
of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss. The interest income is recorded as part
of finance income. Impairment losses on debt instruments are reversed
through the statement of profit or loss if the increase in fair value of
the instruments can be objectively related to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 FESTHBERZME ()

(CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities EWEeE

Initial recognition and measurement VIEZ Y

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial RYIZHERE - SRAEIBREBR

liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, or loans and borrowings, as SEAREFEZEBRABRIERRE

appropriate. o (EE) °

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the eEsmARYTRAABEER  WE

case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable transaction EREER AR EERERZK

costs. PN

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, an AEENERAREEREMNESERRK

amount due to the ultimate holding company, an amount due to the Hfth FEAT FE - B REERA AR

immediate holding company and interest-bearing bank and borrowings. A - BN EEER A RIFOA KT B RTT
ERRER o

Subsequent measurement H#E:E

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their ERMEBZHRFEIRRAD TS

classification as follows: S

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss BERAHEAAETEZZHEE

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial ERBHREAAEHEZERAERR

liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial RERZ zeBARRBVERRIEE

recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. REBBREAREFEZE/RARS -

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are acquired AEEANEE B W ikE s mAEE

for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category includes DERFIERS - WA BRAAEHE

derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group that are not FIMEWIEERE AR (EEAE

designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by AERTERIEIN) < TAZITAE

HKAS 39. Separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as held TRTA - HIARANITET AT

for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments. PRERIERS - RIFEMBIEERE

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the BHOE TR - FHERXR B2 AENRE

statement of profit or loss. The net fair value gain or loss recognised in RIEERER - REARERNAAE

the statement of profit or loss does not include any interest charged on BFFETEELES ARG AT

these financial liabilities. =

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value HERNE BB EREINR 2ITLE -

through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial recognition NH RIS ERE BB RRAARER

and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are satisfied. BZoRMABENTRERBEEE
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 FESTHBERZME ()

(CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
rate method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in
the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as
well as through the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those contracts
that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment
when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A
financial guarantee contract is recognised initially as a liability at its
fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition,
the Group measures the financial guarantee contract at the higher of:
(i) the amount of the best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period; and
(ii) the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative
amortisation.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification
is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition
of a new liability, and the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 FESTHBERZME ()

(CONTINUED)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously.

Properties under development
Properties under development are intended to be held for sale after

completion.

Properties under development are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value and comprise land costs, construction costs, borrowing
costs, professional fees and other costs directly attributable to such
properties incurred during the development period.

Properties under development are classified as current assets unless
the construction period of the relevant property development project is
expected to complete beyond normal operating cycle. On completion,
the properties are transferred to completed properties held for sale.

Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined by an apportionment of the
total land and buildings costs attributable to unsold properties. Net
realisable value is estimated by the directors based on the prevailing
market prices, on an individual property basis.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and, in the case of
work in progress and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable value
is based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be
incurred to completion and disposal.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 FESTHBERZME ()

(CONTINUED)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and
short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including term
deposits, which are not restricted as to use.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to
items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period,
taking into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 FESTHBERZME ()

(CONTINUED)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits
and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

. when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

. in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and
the same taxation authority.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be measured reliably,
on the following bases:

(a) income from the sale of properties and industrial and commercial
products, when the significant risks and rewards of ownership
have been transferred to the buyer, provided that the Group
maintains neither managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership, nor effective control over the
properties and goods sold;

(b) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease terms;

(c) income from the provision of transportation services, when the
transportation services have been rendered;

(d) services income, when the relevant services have been rendered;

(e) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective interest
method by applying the rate that discounts the estimated future
cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument to
the net carrying amount of the financial asset; and

(f) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive payment
has been established.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a separate
allocation of retained profits within the equity section of the statement
of financial position, until they have been approved by the shareholders
in a general meeting. When these dividends have been approved by
the shareholders and declared, they are recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because
the Company’'s memorandum and articles of association grant the
directors the authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently,
interim dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when they

are proposed and declared.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 FESTHBERZME ()

(CONTINUED)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure
on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised.
All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an
entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Where funds have been borrowed generally, and used for the purpose
of obtaining qualifying assets, an average capitalisation rate of 7.4%
(2012 (restated): 7.28%) has been applied to the expenditure on the
individual assets.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute
to the success of the Group's operations. Employees (including
directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-
based payments, whereby employees render services as consideration
for equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”), further details of
which are given in note 36 to the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date at which they are granted. The
fair value is determined by an external valuer using a binomial model,
further details of which are given in note 42 to the financial statements.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 FESTHBERZME ()

(CONTINUED)

Share-based payments (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together with
a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled in employee
benefit expense. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period until the vesting date
reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the
Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the statement of profit or loss
for a period represents the movement in the cumulative expense
recognised as at the beginning and end of that period. If the share
options granted vest immediately, the Group recognises the fair value
in the period in which the options are granted.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest,
except for equity-settled transactions where vesting is conditional
upon a market or non-vesting condition, which are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether or not the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service conditions
are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an
expense is recognised for any modification, that increases the total fair
value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the
employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had
vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised
for the award is recognised immediately. This includes any award
where non-vesting conditions within the control of either the Group or
the employee are not met. However, if a new award is substituted for
the cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement award on the
date that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as
if they were a modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional
share dilution in the computation of earnings per share.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 FESTHBERZME ()

(CONTINUED)

Other employee benefits

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefit scheme (the "MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those employees who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are
charged to the statement of profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the
MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme
except for the Group's employer voluntary contributions, which are
refunded to the Group when the employee leaves employment prior to
the contributions vesting fully, in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme.

Each of the subsidiaries operating in Mainland China participates
in the central pension scheme (the “CPS") operated by the local
municipal government for all of its staff. These subsidiaries are
required to contribute 8% to 20% of their payroll costs to the CPS.
The contributions are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the CPS.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company's functional and presentation currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are measured using
that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by
the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the
end of the reporting period. Differences arising on the settlement or
transaction of monetary items are recognised in the statement of profit
or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 FESTHBERZBE (8)

(CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates
of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was determined. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of
the item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value gain
or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As
at the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these
entities are translated into the presentation currency of the Company
at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period and
their statements of profit or loss are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the weighted average exchange rates for the year. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of
a foreign operation, the component of other comprehensive income
relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and any
fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
arising on acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout
the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected
in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from those
involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Income tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes. Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses
carried forward to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the unused tax losses can be
utilised, based on all available evidence. Recognition primarily involves
judgement regarding the future performance of the particular legal
entity or tax group in which the deferred tax asset has been recognised.
A variety of other factors are also evaluated in considering whether
there is convincing evidence that it is probable that some portions or
all of the deferred tax assets will ultimately be realised, such as the
existence of taxable temporary differences, tax planning strategies and
the periods in which estimated tax losses can be utilised. The carrying
amount of deferred tax assets and related financial models and budgets
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and to the extent that
there is sufficient convincing evidence that sufficient taxable profits will
be available within the utilisation periods to allow utilisation of the tax
losses carried forward, and that the asset balance will be reduced and
charged to the statement of profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Judgements (continued)

Land appreciation tax

Under the Provisional Regulations on Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT")
implemented upon the issuance of the Provisional Regulations of the
PRC on 27 January 1995, all gains arising from the transfer of real
estate properties in Mainland China with effect from 1 January 1994
are subject to LAT at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60%
on the appreciation of land value, being the proceeds of sales of
properties less deductible expenditures including amortisation of land
use rights, borrowing costs and all property development expenditures.

The subsidiaries of the Group engaging in the property development
business in Mainland China are subject to LAT, which has been
included in income tax. However, the implementation of these taxes
varies amongst various Mainland China cities and the Group has
not finalised its LAT returns with various tax authorities. Accordingly,
significant judgement is required in determining the amount of land
appreciation and its related taxes. The ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises
these liabilities based on management's best estimates. When the
final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, the differences will impact the income tax
and provisions of land appreciation taxes in the period in which the

determination is made.

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its
investment property portfolio. The Group has determined based on
an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangement that
it retains all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of these
properties which are leased out on operating leases.

Classification between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an investment
property, and has developed criteria in making that judgement.
Investment property is a property held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a
property generates cash flows largely independently of the other assets
held by the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Judgements (continued)

Classification between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties (continued)

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or
for capital appreciation and another portion that is held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. If these portions could be sold separately or leased out
separately under finance leases, the Group accounts for the portions
separately. If the portions could not be sold separately, the property is
an investment property only if an insignificant portion is held for use
in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes.

Judgement is made on an individual property basis to determine
whether ancillary services are so significant that a property does not
qualify as an investment property.

Classification between investment properties and properties
under development

The Group develops properties held for sale and properties held to
earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation. Judgement is made by
management on determining whether a property is designated as an
investment property or properties under development. In general, the
Group considers its intention for holding the properties at the early
development stage of the related properties. However, in response to
the market demand to investment properties, the Group would from
time to time amend the corporate strategies on the Group's property
portfolio. During the course of construction, the related properties
under construction are accounted for as properties under development
included in current assets if the properties are intended for sale after
their completion, whereas, the properties accounted for as investment
properties under construction included in non-current assets if the
properties are intended to be held to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation. Upon completion of the properties, the properties held
for sale are transferred to completed properties held for sale while
the properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation are
transferred to completed investment properties.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are described
below.

Impairment of assets

In determining whether an asset is impaired or the event previously
causing the impairment no longer exists, the Group has to exercise
judgement in the area of asset impairment, particularly in assessing:
(1) whether an event has occurred that may affect the asset value or
such event affecting the asset value has not been in existence; (2)
whether the carrying value of an asset can be supported by the net
present value of future cash flows which are estimated based upon the
continued use of the asset or derecognition; and (3) the appropriate
key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow projections
including whether these cash flow projections are discounted using an
appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions selected by management
to determine the level of impairment, including the discount rates
or the growth rate assumptions in the cash flow projections, could
materially affect the net present value used in the impairment test.

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an active market
for similar lease terms and other contracts. In the absence of such
information, management determines the amount within a range of
reasonable fair value estimates. In making its judgement, management
considers information from (i) current prices in an active market for
properties of a different nature, condition or location by reference to
available market information; (ii) recent prices of similar properties
in less active markets, with adjustments to reflect any changes in
economic conditions since the dates of transactions that occurred
at those prices; and (iii) discounted cash flow projections, based on
reliable estimates of future cash flows, supported by the terms of any
existing lease and other contracts, and (where possible) by external
evidence such as current market rates for similar properties in the same
location and condition, and using discount rates that reflect current
market assessments of the uncertainty in the amount and timing of
cash flows.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Estimation of fair value of investment properties (continued)
The carrying amount of investment properties at 31 December 2013
was HK$15,299,549,000. (2012: HK$9,210,339,000). Further details,
including the key assumptions used for fair value measurement and a
sensitivity analysis, are given in note 20 to the financial statements.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units
based on their products and services, and has five reportable operating

segments as follows:

(a) the property development segment engages in the development
of residential, industrial and commercial properties;

(b) the property investment segment invests in residential, industrial
and commercial properties for their rental income potential;

(c) the property management segment engages in the management
of both properties developed by the Group and external parties;

(d) the manufacture segment engages in the manufacture and sale of
industrial and commercial products; and

(e) the "others” segment comprises, principally, the manufacture and
sale of aluminum alloy products and other businesses.

Management monitors the operating results of the Group's business
units separately for the purpose of making decisions about resources
allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on reportable segment profit, which is a measure of
adjusted profit before tax from continuing operations. The adjusted
profit before tax from continuing operations is measured consistently
with the Group's profit before tax except that interest income, finance
costs, dividend income, fair value gains from the Group's financial
instruments as well as head office and corporate expenses are
excluded from this measurement.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 4.
Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets, pledged deposits,
restricted cash, cash and cash equivalents, equity investments at fair

value through profit or loss and other unallocated head office and
corporate assets as these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank and other borrowings,
an amount due to the ultimate holding company, tax payable, an
amount due to the immediate holding company, deferred tax liabilities
and other unallocated head office and corporate liabilities as these
liabilities are managed on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to the
selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the then prevailing
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 4. &EHEEFR (#)

Property Property Property
Year ended 31 December 2013 development investment management Manufacture Others Total
BE-Z-ZE+-P=t-HLFE MERE NERE NEER B Hitr am
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK3'000 HK3'000 HK$'\0070 HK$'000
THL THL THAL THAL Tir THL
Segment revenue: A EWE
Sales to customers iﬁ%%%)ﬁ 7,204917 547,859 1,110,636 354,927 560,468 9,778,807
Intersegment sales PERHE - 6,023 5,608 - 209686 221,317
7,204,917 553,882 1,116,244 354927 770,154 10,000,124
Reconciliation #%
Elimination of intersegment sales HENBREE (221,317)
Revenue from continuing operations &M AE K 9,778,807
Segment results before increase in & S%%Eﬁfﬁiﬁéﬂﬂﬁuz
fair value of investment properties NEEE 3,259,015 582,417 30,237 11,641 265,943 4,149,253
Increase in fair value of
investment properties BREMEREEM - 624,046 - - - 624,046
Segment results after increase in RENEDRERMEZ
fair value of investment properties PEEE 3,259,015 1,206,463 30,237 11,641 265943 4,773,299
Reconciliation i
Elimination of intersegment results HEABRES (30,282)
Finance income BHUA 446,186
Dividend income and unallocated gains ~ IRSMA B & DB IR 20,095
Gain on a bargain purchase (note 38)  —TAREBEFIS (HizE38) 637,945
Fair value gains on financial instruments,
net i%ﬂIEZ’&ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ 715
Corporate and other unallocated expenses AaREM AN EER (135,266)
Finance costs ﬂﬁﬁﬂ‘ (635,535)
Profit before tax from continuing
operations RERE K BRANER 5,077,157
Segment assets PEEE 44,357,392 18,921,005 142,511 170,647 4,077,519 67,669,074
Reconciliation 2‘/‘5@ .
Corporate and other unallocated assets DRI REMAAEEE 8,427,001
Assets related to a discontinued iﬁi#}*£‘”£“‘%¥i§ﬂﬁ%§2
operation (note 12) BE (fiti12) 795,450
Total assets BEE 76,891,525
Segment liabilities FEEE 12,094,403 2,477,705 325,609 46,535 1,111,154 16,055,406
Reconciliation Eord
Corporate and other unallocated liabilities 7 T&Hﬁﬁ YA 32,832,410
Liabilities related to a discontinued Eﬁiﬂif QR
operation (note 12) BfE (WE]Z) 424,363
Total liabilities BEf 49,312,179
Other segment information: A A EER
Depreciation (note 6) & (Mite) 27,838 10,539 11,434 6076 67,485 123,372
Amortisation of prepaid land lease B LA E TR
payments (note 6) B (Mito) - - - - 1,521 1521
Share of profits and losses of associates [EREEE A AR FIRER 659,540 133,319 5,968 - 33106 831,933
Share of profits and losses of
joint ventures fE Eé‘éﬂﬂmﬁ%‘l&%ﬁﬁ - - - - 219769 219,169
Impairment of an investment in —ERERARE
an associate W 96,000 - - - - 96,000
Investments in associates FENARE 5,636,740 82,303 18,264 15133 177,514 5929,954
Investments in joint ventures RERARE 63,595 - - - 280,124 343719
Capital expenditure* B ¥ 18,313,156 5,723,203 17,868 4176 1,128,314 25,186,717
* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and equipment, * BEAXHBERAEYE  BERK
investment properties, properties under development and completed e REWME  BFRBPWERSES
properties held for sale, and including assets from the acquisition of a BZERKYME  ARBEKE—HE
subsidiary. MEARZ BEE °
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 4.

Property Property Property
Year ended 31 December 2012 (Restated) development investment  management  Manufacture Others Total
BE-Z-—F+-A=t-BLILFE (£57)) NERE NERE NEER 2 Hify &%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
THT THT THEL THEL THET THET
Segment revenue: AENE
Sales to customers HEFRF 6,013,545 499,396 1,059,024 333,785 406,976 8,312,726
Intersegment sales DERHE - 6,412 3,640 - 192660 202,712
6,013,545 505,808 1,062,664 333,785 599,636 8515438
Reconciliation /3
Elimination of intersegment sales HHHERHE (202,712)
Revenue from continuing operations SEREERNG 8,312,726
Segment results before increase in REMERAERMAZ
fair value of investment properties PNEEE 2,505,954 532,699 30,849 9,882 29,452 3,108,836
Increase in fair value of investment
properties REMERAEEM - 469,674 - - - 469,674
Segment results after increase in fair REWNEAAEENEZ
value of investment properties PEEE 2,505,954 1,002,373 30,849 9,882 29,452 3,578,510
Reconciliation %
Elimination of intersegment results HESBREE (42,841)
Finance income BB 461,046
Dividend income and unallocated gains ~ IREMA R A DB IR 19,320
Gain on bargain purchases }%@%EW? 200,586
Remeasurement gain on investments in - S ERA iR B :H 8
associates in step acquisitions BENRRE 2 g 39,188
Fair value gains on financial instruments,
net eRIEZARENEFE 2,269
Corporate and other unallocated expenses 2 &R Ef A B E (96,429)
Finance costs BERA (469,929)
Profit before tax from continuing BEEEXEL
operations B AR A 3,691,720
Segment assets PREE 29,984,330 13,275,299 102,739 150,407 2,386,636 45,899,411
Reconciliation B
Corporate and other unallocated assets ~ AEREMRAEHEE 7,911,209
Assets related to a discontinued operation EIEFBLEEREEZEE 581,387
Total assets BEE 54,392,007
Segment liabilities B8R 6,137,842 974,519 276,055 39363 1,248259 8,676,038
Reconciliation ;f %
Corporate and other unallocated liabilities A FREM A EE E 25,849,549
Liabilities related to a discontinued Eﬁ?ﬂ*ﬂ&‘é%ﬁﬁ Bz
operation 8 356,577
Total liabilities R 34,882,164
Other segment information: At A EEH .
Depreciation Vil 26,318 6,694 9315 3,841 21,490 67,658
Amortisation of prepaid land lease BT AEFE
payments & - - - - 1378 1378
Share of profits and losses of associates 1535%%?’& AlaA R EE 651,554 152,002 5,581 - 21379 830516
Share of profits and losses of 5 BATRFIR
joint ventures B - - - - 48524 48524
Investments in associates BERFRE 4,881,970 97,003 16,432 15,133 162,993 5,173,531
Investments in joint ventures ABNTRE 62,195 - - - 55929 118,124
Capital expenditure éMHﬁ 7863542 2424201 10,435 6,208 1,020,733 11325119

As the Group generates substantially all of its revenues from customers

domiciled in the PRC, no geographical information is presented.
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31 December 2013 —T—=F+-A=+—H

PSR AL

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Revenue, which is also the Group's turnover, represents proceeds from
the sale of properties, commercial and industrial goods, rental income,

management fee income and others.

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows:

ek EMAEBRARRE

WA SR ALE B8 - 1KA
WEME  BERIEERFERE -
BEWA - ERBIMAREMYA

Ias - EARARFEZ AT -

2013 2012
—E—=fF —2——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
(Restated)
(=35)
Revenue Wz
Sale of properties HEME 7,204,917 6,013,545
Gross management fee income BIRE WAL 1,110,636 1,059,024
Gross rental income from investment
properties HEYMERSBALEE 547,859 499,396
Sale of commercial and industrial goods HEmMENRTIEER 354,927 333,785
Others HAh 560,468 406,976
9,778,807 8,312,726
Other income Hglr A
Bank interest income ERITH B U A 80,466 92,750
Interest income from: ATEIEZFEWA :
A held-to-maturity investment —EEERIEHKRE - 39,827
A joint venture —R&ERT] 363,676 198,235
A non-controlling shareholder of —fHfB ARz —%
a subsidiary FEPERL IR ER 2,044 -
Associates Nl - 7,294
Finance income from REBLE=HZ
independent third parties BISUEA - 122,940
Management fee income from KERZEMBAAZ
a fellow subsidiary EBEUA - 6,147
Estate agency fee income from ’E—HERMERAR 2
a fellow subsidiary SR B UL A 70,220 =
Others* H 321,147 77,725
837,553 544918
Gains g
Gain on disposal of a held-for-trading HE—ERERSHKREZ
investment EES - 4,779
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEME - WEREEEE
plant and equipment ZHE 730 728
Gain on disposal of investment properties &R EYE 2 7|15 134,979 =
Gain on a bargain purchase (note 38) —IEREBENS (ME38) 637,945 200,586
Remeasurement gain on investments DHEBREHREFN2
in associates in step acquisitions R /NCIE S - 39,188
Others Hfy - 5,552
773,654 250,833
Other income and gains HEMBARFEF 1,611,207 795,751

< Others included an amount of HK$207,604,000 (2012: Nil) which
represented compensation received from the local authorities for

resumption of certain lands of the Group.
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BR Bt A 2 A
REEREEEEB 2 BHAENE N
B/ (FtA) THIEERES :

PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6.
The Group's profit before tax from continuing operations is arrived at
after charging/(crediting):

2013 2012
—E—= —T——F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
iz FER FAT
(Restated)
(&=75)
Cost of properties and inventories sold BEEMERFERAR 4,620,028 3,912,150
Cost of services provided RAERFS AR 887,834 889,701
Auditors' remuneration e 2 5,250 5,100
Depreciation e 123,372 67,658
Impairment of trade receivables JEU R FURE 87 2,189
Reversal of impairment of trade receivables & U 38 5 (& # @) - (CARRD)
Impairment of other receivables H At R R IE R E 1,093 14,793
Impairment of an investment in —EBERRREZ
an associate* S E* 96,000 -
Direct operating expenses (including repairs &M%~
and maintenance) arising on rental- BEELETH
earning investment properties (BREEERRE) 95,159 66,903
Minimum lease payments under operating +HRIEFZLLHE
leases in respect of land and buildings =IEHEE 7,424 8,358
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments FB1t 4= ih 7l & 7 T8 # 54 1,521 1,378
Employee benefit expense EERAFX
(excluding directors’ and chief executive's (TMEEEEREEITH
remuneration, note 8): AEB&E - MizEs) -
Wages and salaries TERFHS 759,984 722,696
Equity-settled share option expense VARR AR 2 A5 2 H AR e Al =2 2,325 11,439
Pension scheme contributions RIREFTEIH R 104,771 100,801
Less: Amount capitalised D= N i | (31,431) (30,240)
Net: Pension scheme contributions BRAREEEIHFFE 73,340 70,561
835,649 804,696
Foreign exchange differences, net HNE 2= EIFE 8,369 (3,061)
Rental income on investment properties less REMER S WA B ZEE
direct operating expenses of % 195,159,000/ 7T
HK$95,159,000 (2012 (restated): —E—F (KF5)) -
HK$66,903,000) 66,903,000/ 7T.) (452,700) (432,493)
Gain on disposal of a held-for-trading HE—ERERSHKREZ
investment ME - (4,779)
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEME - BEREKBEEE Z
plant and equipment lEES (730) (728)
Gain on a bargain purchase** — I GRBME B A1+ 38 (637,945) (200,586)
Gain on disposal of investment properties  H&E& &Y% 2 715 (134,979) -
Remeasurement gain on investments DHEBEREHPENGE
in associates in step acquisitions NG~ gl et - (39,188)
*  The impairment of an investment in an associate is included in “Other * —HEBERARRE ZRER ARER

mikZ [ EMFAS ] F e

expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

*  Gain on a bargain purchase is included in “Other income and gains” in the o —HREBENSEHAGEERERZ
consolidated statement of profit or loss. [E AU A BRG] o
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7. FINANCE COSTS 7. MERX
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: RERARZDHTMT :
Group
REE
2013 2012
—F-= e
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
(Restated)
(&=7)
Interest on: FETH :
Bank loans RITER 1,176,329 1,092,794
Other borrowings HibEE 97,015 81,366
Loans from the ultimate holding company Eff &&= A 7l 2 B 5K 263,535 -
Loans from fellow subsidiaries ENRZREHB AR ZER 30,083 17,711
Loans from non-controlling shareholders ~ FE{FEFRARAR SR ~ &K 9,469 =
Total interest expense on financial liabilities 7 3E:E BRI AR EFE 2
not at fair value through profit or loss TRBECNERERE 1,576,431 1,191,871
Less: Interest capitalised B R BB (940,896) (721,942)
635,535 469,929
= /= =
8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EERBRBTHARMS

REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’'s remuneration for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the Listing Rules and Section 161 of the Hong Kong

REFRE ETRRREE R RIS
I6IEREZEERERTTRAENE

Companies Ordinance, is as follows: LU
Group
REME
2013 2012
—E-=5F —E—_4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET
Fees e 1,552 1,520
Other emoluments: HAaEi < :
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R EEYA S 7,955 3,853
Equity-settled share option expense VARR 7R 32 5% 2 Fi s i el =2 2,125 1,675
Pension scheme contributions RIREETEIH R 1,629 1,056
11,709 6,584
13,261 8,104
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8.
REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

During the year, certain directors and chief executive were granted

share options, in respect of their services to the Group, under the share

option scheme of the Company, further details of which are set out

in note 36 to the financial statements. The fair value of such options,

which has been recognised in the statement of profit or loss over the
vesting period, was determined as at the date of grant and the amount
included in the financial statements for the current year is included in

the above directors’ and chief executive's remuneration disclosures.

(a) Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during the

year were as follows:

ESRBEITRAEME (&)

RAFER > ETREZERERTERA
BRRERAKEREMRIEARALZ
R B ERE  ARE—FH
BRI RRMEION » ZFHBR
BzAnE (REREBHRNERR
WHER) ENRE BEBETE - Mat AR
FEMBHRRZEBEAALXEER
R TBABMEZ WEERA

(a) B FBTES
AEEENBYENGESES
T

Employee
share option
Fees expense Total
EEBRE
ik % i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET TET
2013 —E-=F
Wong Po Yan* EHRR* 190 - 190
Wu Wai Chung, Michael RI{EEE 330 - 330
Li Wai Keung FIEo 380 - 380
Wong Yau Kar, David** HR 222 - 222
1,122 - 1,122
2012 —E-—F
Wong Po Yan |EIRR 380 - 380
Wu Wai Chung, Michael RIEFE 330 - 330
Li Wai Keung EXEE 380 - 380
1,090 = 1,090

* Wong Po Yan resigned as an independent non-executive director on

13 June 2013.

**  Wong Yau Kar, David was appointed as an independent non-
executive director on 13 June 2013.

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent

non-executive directors during the year (2012: Nil).
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EERBEITHAEME (&)
REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

(b) Executive directors and non-executive directors

(b) BITESRIHTES

Salaries,
allowances
and benefits

Employee
share option

Pension
scheme

Fees in kind expense contributions Total
¥4 2H EEBRE BAREEE
e REOFAZ 553 HR e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET TET TET FET
2013 —Z-=F
Executive directors: HITES
Lu Hua S - 2,484 768 452 3,704
Gao Shengyuan* SET* - 2,031 303 361 2,695
Mou Yong £5 - 1,094 347 258 1,699
Liu Chong EIES - 1,636 347 390 2,373
Wang Minyuan** T B - 710 360 168 1,238
- 7,955 2,125 1,629 11,709
Non-executive directors: FHITES : -
Wu Jiesi RER 330 - - - 330
Huang Yige 1% 100 - - - 100
430 - - - 430
430 7,955 2,125 1,629 12,139
g Gao Shengyuan was appointed as an executive director on 13 June & RETR-_ZE—=F,AT=HEZ
2013. ERATES -
*% \Wang Minyuan resigned as an executive director on 13 June 2013. ¥»OEHER-_T—=FAT=HEE

WITES -
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EERERTRARMS (&)
REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)
(b) Executive directors and non-executive directors (b) BITEERFHUTES (H)
(continued)
Salaries,
allowances Employee Pension
and benefits  share option scheme
Fees in kind expense  contributions Total
e 2 EEERE RAKEFE
we KREWMNZ FX K kL

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TAT TAT

2012 B

Executive directors: HITESE
Guo Limin PR - 401 (612) 163 (48)
Lu Hua B - 1,180 762 282 2,224
Mou Yong 25 = 835 762 226 1,823
Liu Chong S - 1,253 762 341 2,356
Wang Minyuan s - 185 - 44 229
- 3,854 1,674 1,056 6,584

Non-executive directors: EHITES :

Wu Jiesi HEER 330 - - - 330
Liu Biao 2z - - - - -
Huang Yige 518 100 - - - 100
430 - - - 430
430 3,854 1,674 1,056 7,014
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31 December 2013 —T—=F+-A=+—H

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9.

The five highest paid employees during the year included three
directors (2012: two directors), details of whose remuneration are set
out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the
remaining two (2012: three) highest paid employees who are neither

a director nor the chief executive of the Company are as follows:

IEREHES
AFEEZhAGm T EERE=42ES
(ZZ——F WMEBES) ZFES
S FEEMN LTS - R TR
(ZE2E—ZF: =%) F#XRAEER
BRTBRAEZERHEERAFEZ
SFFBIT -

Group

KEB
2013 2012
—E-=5F —E—_4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FH&T
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R REYMAZR 7,079 4,077
Equity-settled share option expense VARG A S+ 2 BE AR B =2 174 1,814
Pension scheme contributions R ETEIHR 295 499
7,548 6,390

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid
employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as

follows:

HEeBATHEZIFEFERIFZFHITR
ABZEHEEHBWT

Number of employees

EBE®E
2013 2012
—E—= ===
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001/ 22,000,000/ 7T 1 =
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7L = 2,500,000 7T - 3
HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,000,000 5,500,001 7T £ 6,000,000/% 7T 1 —
2 3

In prior years, share options were granted to two non-director and non-
chief executive highest paid employees in respect of their services to
the Group, further details of which are included in the disclosures in
note 36 to the financial statements. The fair value of these options,
which has been recognised in the statement of profit or loss over the
vesting period, was determined as at the date of grant and the amount
included in the financial statements for the current year is included
in the above non-director and non-chief executive highest paid

employees’ remuneration disclosures.
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10. INCOME TAX

Notes to Financial Statements
B SRR M

31 December 2013 —E—=F+_-A=+—H

10. Fr 8

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2012:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong
during the year. No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made
as the Group had no assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the
year (2012: Nil).

Taxes on profits assessable in Mainland China are calculated at the
rates of tax prevailing in the provinces in which the Group operates.

Under the relevant income tax law, the PRC subsidiaries are subject
to corporate income tax (“CIT") at a statutory rate of 25% on their
respective taxable income during the year.

PRC LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60%
on the appreciation of land value, being the proceeds from sales of
properties less deductible expenditures including amortisation of land
use rights, borrowing costs and all property development expenditures.
LAT of HK$1,072,851,000 is charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss for the year (2012: HK$461,419,000).

REBEZBBNERERBFANRES
EEZHAERBENIZI65% (=ZF
— % :16.5%) ZHEFH - FA
AEBVWEEESEELTAEREEG
A - B BB S REE (=
T——F &\

R B A [ E R 5 I B A > B A AR
AEEEEL D2 RITHEHE -

RIBEBAFEE  FA - PEMNER
BIZABLE B BRI AREE R E25%
BREEAEHR ([REMER]) -

B - b 3 (B B 4 T B (E 2 30% %
600 2R R FU - THIZEEILEY
XS RIER B IE T (E AR - (8
BRI B YR 2 AT 8 H
X o AFE  BEHFEERKXFNRL
Hh 3% B $71,072,851,0008 7t (=& —
—4F : 461,419,000/7T) °

2013 2012
—F—-= —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHET
(Restated)
(% E75)
Group: REEE -

Current — Mainland China BNHER — A B K B 913,760 540,421
LAT in Mainland China R[50 K [ £ S (B A 1,072,851 461,419

Deferred Mainland China corporate RIER B R PEEFTS
income tax (note 34) (PfisE34) (10,414) 128,116
Total tax charge for the year ANFERIAL T BT 1,976,197 1,129,956
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10. 8% (&)
TXErE A OEER R E 2 EARSE
BB 2 BB AR A 2 B TR B S 62
RAEEARFEAUBETE 2 B
XZEERRERTE (WEEHRE) H

10. INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax
from continuing operations at the statutory income tax rate to the tax
expense at the Group's effective income tax rate for the year, and a
reconciliation of the applicable rate (i.e., the statutory tax rate) to the

effective tax rate, are as follows: BRB R 2 HE
2013 2012
—_E—= —T——F
HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
FER FAT
(Restated)
(&=75)
Profit before tax from continuing REEEEB 2
operations R 35 A g A 5,077,157 3,691,720
Tax at the statutory tax rate in BABAEEERXRAE
Mainland China 2B 1,269,289 25.0 922,930 25.0
Lower tax rates for specific provinces or B E & 103kt 5 & /&l E
enacted by local authorities AR & 35,591 0.7 18,442 0.5
Profits and losses attributable B N AR R A &
to associates &8 (207,983) (4.1)  (207,629) (5.6)
Profits and losses attributable to BN AEMER R
joint ventures E518 (54,792) (1.1) (12,131) (0.3)
Income not subject to tax BAERBUA (160,116) (3.2) (62,588) (1.7)
Tax losses not recognised AMERZ FiIEEE 110,579 2.2 16,216 0.4
Tax losses utilised EBA 2 BIEEE (12,313) (0.2) (38,524) (1.0)
Expenses not deductible for tax RIS IA R 2 F 2 82,326 1.6 58,709 1.6
Effect of withholding tax on distributable Fdﬁ$‘i Bz RWBA T2
profits of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries ks A 2 TEINF R 2 108,978 2.1 92,431 25
LAT iiﬂziﬁ@’% 1,072,851 21.1 461,419 12.5
Tax effect of LAT T I ER 2 B IR R 2 (268,213) (5.3)  (119,319) (3.2)
Tax charge at the Group's effective RS B G M EHBR 2
rate IR 1,976,197 38.9 1,129,956 30.6
The share of taxes attributable to associates and joint ventures DIEBE AR RE E R ABIES

amounting to HK$628,839,000 (2012: HK$933,546,000) and
HK$72,976,000 (2012: HK$16,038,000), respectively, are included
in “Share of profits and losses of associates” and “Share of profits and
losses of joint ventures” on the face of the consolidated statement of

profit or loss.
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11.

12.

Notes to Financial Statements

PSR AL

31 December 2013 —E—=F+_-A=+—H

LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE PARENT
The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the parent for the
year ended 31 December 2013 includes a loss of HK$457,673,000
(2012: HK$259,084,000) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company.

DISCONTINUED OPERATION

On 31 December 2013, Shum Yip Taifu Logistics Group Holdings
Co., Ltd. (“Shum Yip Taifu"), a subsidiary owned as to 95.37% by
the Group, and Shum Yip Shumkang (Group) Co., Ltd. (“Shum Yip
Shumkang”), a subsidiary owned as to 80% by the Group, entered
into a sale and purchase agreement. Pursuant to the agreement,
Shum Yip Taifu agreed to acquire the 36% equity interest in Shenyang
Wuai Shumkang Transportation Centre (Limited) (“Wuai") held by
Shum Yip Shumkang and the shareholder's loan due by Wuai to
Shum Yip Shumkang for cash considerations of RMB144,000,000
(equivalent to HK$183,154,000) and RMB84,890,732 (equivalent
to HK$107,973,000), respectively. As at 31 December 2013, the
remaining 45.875% and 18.125% equity interests in Wuai are owned
by other subsidiaries of the Group and independent third parties,
respectively.

Wauai is principally engaged in property development and investment
and transportation station management. Upon the completion of the
intra-group transfer of the 36% equity interest in Wuai from Shum Yip
Shumkang to Shum Yip Taifu, Shum Yip Shumkang will focus on the
provision of passenger transportation services, automobile maintenance

and other related services.
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12. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (CONTINUED) 12. FFEEERYE (R)

Pursuant to another sale and purchase agreement entered into between
the Group and Shum Yip Holdings on 31 December 2013, the Group
agreed to dispose of its 80% equity interest in Shum Yip Shumkang
to Shum Yip Holdings at a cash consideration of RMB340,208,000
(equivalent to HK$432,711,000). The directors of the Company are
of the view that as the transportation services operated by Shum Yip
Shumkang are not core business activities of the Group, the disposal
of such operation will strengthen the Group's ability to focus on its real
estate business and improve its management and operation efficiency.
As at 31 December 2013, other than the 36% equity interest in Wuai
held by Shum Yip Shumkang to be transferred to Shum Yip Taifu, the
assets and liabilities of Shum Yip Shumkang were classified as assets
and liabilities of a disposal group held for sale in the consolidated
statement of financial position accordingly.

The results of the disposal group for the year are presented below:

BEASEERE (58) R=T—=
F+-A=1+—RHiIuz2 S BHEEW
% AEERE N ARE340,208,000
7t (B & 1432,711,0008 L) 28R &
KRB - BENRERE 280007 &
THRE (B - ARRAEEFERE ' &
EREMEEZERRBIIEAEEZ
ORI A EER 2 HERILR
RNEEEREREFEMEEBHRY
WIRAHBTEREERE - Bt - K=
T—=F+-A=+—8 BRERS
RAEE R ERERE T RERS 236%
BRAESN - RERB 2 BERBBERNGRE
MBMRRARAE D ERRBIEFEZHE
HEzEERERE-

FAHEESEEWT ¢

2013 2012
—E-=5 —EF——4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT T
Revenue Wz 287,295 255,528
Cost of sales SHE KA (184,651) (162,557)
Other income and gains E bl A KI5 10,033 17,671
Increase in fair value of investment
properties WEMER AN 357 1,221
Share of profits and losses of associates — JE{h B <& A 5l | & &8 1,230 (11,579)
Administrative expenses TERF X (86,374) (77,125)
Other expenses Hibfx (1,435) (3,458)
Finance costs A A (10,419) (9,620)
Profit before tax from the discontinued HREEE 2
operation R B Al b A 16,036 10,081
Income tax expense FrAS B X (6,007) (11,605)
Profit/(loss) for the year from the HRBEEEBFEA
discontinued operation wmAl (EE) 10,029 (1,524)
Attributable to: TR -
Owners of the parent BAREAR A 5,278 (1,636)
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR M A 4,751 112
10,029 (1,524)
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B SRR M

31 December 2013 —ZT—=F+_-H=+—8H

12. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (CONTINUED) 12. FFEEERYE (R)

The major classes of assets and liabilities of the disposal group R-F-—Z=F+-A=t—BDBRH
classified as held for sale as at 31 December 2013 are as follows: EFECHEHEZEERAREESD
T
2013 2012
—=E—= T
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt s FTHET FHET
Assets BE
Property, plant and equipment M BB R 15 238,729 -
Investment properties wEYZE 20 177,710 -
Prepaid land lease payments AR i E5RIA 17 4,040 -
Intangible assets BV EE 16 118,250 -
Investment in associates B A RIREAE 23 55,597 -
Available-for-sale investments AHHERE 7,423 -
Other long term assets Hi REAEE 35,566 -
Deferred tax assets RIERIIE & B 34 3,016 -
Trade receivables FEY B 5 BRFK 3,311 -
Prepayments, deposits and BNFIE - 7&Kk
other receivables H h fE U IR 37,801 -
Inventories & 2,678 -
Cash and cash equivalent ReRBEFEY 111,329 -
Assets of a disposal group classified DI ARFIEFEZ
as held for sale HEMAG 2 EE 795,450 -
Liabilities BE
Interest-bearing bank and SEERITR
other borrowings HiEE 124,901 -
Trade payables FEFH & 5 BR 3K 948 -
Other payables and accruals Hih IR R EER 274,520 -
Tax payable FE 18 1,466 -
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIAEE 34 22,528 -
Liabilities directly associated with BEOBRFIERFEZ
the assets classified as held for sale BEBZEMRBEEE 424,363 -
Net assets directly associated with HHEHSEEERZ
the disposal group BEFE 371,087 -
Attributable to: TG
Owners of the parent NEEA A 236,266 -
Non-controlling interests FEFERR M 2 134,821 -
371,087 =
Asset revaluation reserve of HEHEEZ
the disposal group B EShHE 57,346 =
Exchange reserve of the disposal group H&E#HE 2 IE 5 A 90,162 =
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31 December 2013 —T—=F+-A=+—H

12. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (CONTINUED) 12. FFEEERYE (R)

The net cash flows incurred by the disposal group are as follows:

HEAAELEZRSREFENT

2013 2012

—E-=F —E—_F

HK$'000 HK$'000

T T

Operating activities L TEE) 168,224 56,435

Investing activities K& EE (147,176) (43,154)

Financing activities BEE & 57,264 (105,747)

Net cash inflow/(outflow) BemA S Crd) #E 78,312 (92,466)
Earnings/(loss) per share: gRERN (EE) :

Basic, from the discontinued operation BER  REFFELEES HK$0.1138 7T HK$(0.04)78 7T

Diluted, from the discontinued operation — #5% - R IFFBERKE LXK HK$0.1158 7T HK$(0.04)7% 7T

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share from

the discontinued operation are based on:

FRERLEREB 2 BREARBER
R/ (B18) TR T 55185 H

2013 2012
—E—-=fF —ET——fF
Profit/(loss) attributable to ordinary equity A &) E@BEEZSE A A
holders of the parent from JEIRIERBREEE 2
the discontinued operation m A (E518) HK$5,278,000 T HK$(1,636,000)78 7T
Weighted average number of ordinary shares FIATE & B A
in issue during the year used in the basic &aF (&) 2
earnings/(loss) per share calculation FARETEBR

(note 14)

IR R (FHEE14)

Weighted average number of ordinary sharesf LAt & & %55

used in the diluted earnings/(loss)
per share calculation (note 14)

& (EE) 2ZE%
nEFHE (MaE14)

4,643,891,403 3,640,042,538

4,676,968,482 3,640,042,538

| 147 |
Shenzhen Investment Limited
RIERAB R A A
ANNUAL REPORT 2013 %R



13.

14.

Notes to Financial Statements

PSR AL

31 December 2013 —E—=F+_-A=+—H

DIVIDENDS 13. RE
2013 2012
—E2—= —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR T
Interim — HK7 cents (2012: HK7 cents) FRHEARR B —
per ordinary share BRI BAR7 AL
(ZZT——4F : 750) 371,160 253,822
Proposed final dividend of HK12 cents R R B PR B & AR B AR
(2012: final dividend of HK11 cents) 128 (ZF—=4%:
per ordinary share REIAR S 1EAL) 645,727 410,192
1,016,887 664,014

On 31 March 2014, the board of directors proposed a final dividend
of HK12 cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2013 (Year
ended 31 December 2012: HK11 cents per share). The proposed final
dividend will be paid in cash but shareholders will be given the option
of receiving such dividend wholly in new fully paid share(s) of the
Company (“scrip shares”) in lieu of cash, or partly in cash and partly in
the form of scrip shares.

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval
of the Company's shareholders at the forthcoming annual general

meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amounts is based
on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the parent, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
4,643,891,403 (2012: 3,640,042,538) in issue during the year.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amounts is based
on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
parent. The weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the
calculation is the number of ordinary shares in issue during the year,
as used in the basic earnings per share calculation, and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares assumed to have been issued at
no consideration on the deemed exercise or conversion of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.
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Notes to Financial Statements
B SRR M

31 December 2013 —T—=F+-A=+—H

14. BR B EBRERTE ABMSL
FRAFN (&)
SREARR MG R TE TSR

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT (CONTINUED)

The calculations of the basic and diluted earnings per share amounts

st

are based on: =
2013 2012
—F—-= —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHER FET
(Restated)
(&=75)
Earnings 25
Profit/(loss) attributable to ordinary equity FlLAGT & G IEAR K 258
holders of the parent, used in the basic AR 2 AR LB ER
and diluted earnings per share calculations 3545 ARG RF(Ei8)
From continuing operations REFECEETR 2,733,154 2,157,705
From a discontinued operation REFFELEET 5,278 (1,636)
2,738,432 2,156,069
Number of shares
R & B
2013 2012
—g—-= —E——4F
Shares iav)

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue during the year used in
the basic earnings per share calculation

Rt E S RER
BNz FRBET
BB NE T

4,643,891,403

3,640,042,538

Effect of dilution — weighted average
number of ordinary shares:
Share options

BERE — WRRIE
Y
FEARIE

33,077,079

4,676,968,482

3,640,042,538
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B SRR M

31 December 2013 —ZE—=F+=-A=+—H

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15. W% - BMERRE

Group rERE
landand  Land and
buildings in  buildings in
Hong Kong  Mainland
under China Fumniture,
medium under medium  Leasehold fixturesand ~ Motor  Plantand Construction
term leases  term leases improvements equipment  vehicles  machinery in progress Total
HWHEBEAR  NRBaNR
BiERE  TEAERE HENx  HA%E
JIHRET 2iBREF 58 k& AE  BERRE  ARIR e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TEn TER TER TéEn  TER TER Tén TR
31 December 2013 ZE-ZE+ZA=+-B
At 31 December 2012 and R-E-—#+-f=1-H
at 1 January 2013: k=Z-=%-A-R:
Cost or valuation HAgfhE 3109 2218457 145539 214888 325790 192,457 33,188 3,133,428
Accumulated depreciation ZifiNE (108)  (206,127) (65,606)  (142,261) (197,230)  (107,844) - (719,176)
Net carrying amount REFE 3,001 2,012,330 79,933 12,627 128,560 84,613 33,188 2,414,252
At 1 January 2013, net of RZ2-=5-F-R"
accumulated depreciation BARZE 3,001 2,012,330 79,933 72,627 128,560 84,613 33,188 2,414,252
Additions AE - - 59,446 20,397 120,002 3,289 - 203,134
Acquisition of a subsidiary Ll
(note 38) (Fit38) - 341,942 4506 1,470 297 25 - 348240
Transfer fiom properties under ~ EEAEERNE
development (note 19) (R3£19) - 99,319 - - - - - 99319
Redlassification £ ] - - 24,708 - - - (24,708) -
Transfer from completed ERBEREL
properties held for sale BERIE - 1,186 - - - - - 7186
Disposdls te - (4859)  (2544) (1103 (5743 (113) - (14362)
Included in assets held forsale  FFAREGEEE
(note 12) (at12) (3069  (62706) (8)  (1428) (170893 (589) - (238729)
Depreciation provided RERHE
during the year B - (54829)  (14702)  (34438) (45015) (12221) - (161,205)
Exchange realignment EXAE 68 27,454 1,655 6,071 1,867 1,928 747 39,790
At 31 December 2013, REF=%
net of accumulated TZA=+-R"
depreciation BARZHE - 2,365,837 152,958 63,596 29,075 76,932 9,227 2,697,625
At 31 December 2013; RZB-Z%
tZA=t-8:
Cost o valuation HAgfhE - 2614347 233281 229332 85510 198,297 9227 3,369,994
Accumulted deprciaton ziHE - (48510) (80323 (165736) (56435) (121,365) - (672369)
Net carrying amount KEAE - 2365837 152,958 63,596 29,075 76,932 9227 2,697,625
Analysis of cost or valuation: HASHEA :
At cost A - 2,435,042 233281 229,332 85510 198297 9,227 3,190,689
At valuation e - 179,305 - - - - - 179,305
- 2614347 233281 229332 85510 198,297 9227 3,369,99%
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31 December 2013 —T—=F+-A=+—H

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED) 15. Y15 ~ BERRHE (&)
Group (continued) REH (&)

Land and Land and
buildingsin ~ buildings in
Hong Kong Minland

under China Fumniture,
medium  under medium Leasehold ~ fixtures and Motor Plantand  Construction
term leases  term leases  improvements  equipment  vehicles machinery  in progress Total

DRdEen b ERAR
BifEL  PEAERE BEhx  AR-RE
THERT  DHRET L Rff g BERRE  RRIE a5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
ThL AL AL TEn  TEn TEn  TEn AL

31 December 2012 ZEZ-Z#+ZB=1-H
At 31 December 2011 and R=F—&
at 1 January 2012: TZA=t-Rk
RZE-Z§-f-B:
Cost or valuation HASfEE 3,083 443719 101,555 98,993 285,229 169,053 33,188 1134820
Accumulated depreciation ZiHTE (107) (91,523) (58991)  (74048) (181300) (98,691) - (504,660)
Net carrying amount RERE 2976 352,196 42,564 24945 103,929 70,362 33,188 630,160
At 1 January 2012, net of R-F-—%-f-H"
accumulated depreciation Bk ZGTE 2976 352,19 42,564 24945 103929 70362 33188 630,160
Additions hE - 1,696 64,653 31542 70738 9318 - 17194
Acquisition of subsidiaries WENBAR - 1,304,376 - 31372 1439 = - 1337187
Transfer from properties under ~ EEEZRERYE
development (note 19) (FzE19) - 368,045 - - - 15,501 - 383546
Disposals & - (2,487) (4.921) (2258) (319 (323) - (13181)
Depreciation provided during AEEHE
the year B - (13,294) (22466)  (13,026)  (44652) (10,713) - (104151)
Exchange realignment EiAZ 25 1,798 103 52 298 468 - 2,744
At 31 December 2012, i S
net of accumulated +-A=t-H"
depreciation TRZ2E 3,001 2,012,330 79,933 72627 128,560 84613 33188 2414252
At 31 December 2012: R-E——%
t-A=t+-8:
Cost or valuation BASfhE 3,109 2218457 145539 214888 325790 192457 33188 3133428
Accumulated depreciation ZithE (108) (206,127) (65606)  (142261) (197,230)  (107,844) - (119,176)
Net carrying amount FEFE 3,001 2,012,330 79933 72627 128560 84613 33188 2414252
Analyss of cost or valuation: RAREEA :
At cost A 1,293 2,043,097 145539 214888 325790 192457 33188 2,956,252
At valuation B 1816 175,360 - - - - - 177,176
3,109 2218457 145539 214888 325790 192457 33188 3133428
| 151 |

Shenzhen Investment Limited
RIERAB R A A
ANNUAL REPORT 2013 %R



Notes to Financial Statements
B SRR M

31 December 2013 —E—=F+_-A=+—H

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED) 15. Y15 ~ BERRHE (&)

The Group's land and buildings were revalued at 31 December 2006
by Greater China Appraisal Ltd., an independent firm of professionally
qualified property valuers. The land and buildings were revalued at
their open market values based on their existing use.

Had the land and buildings been carried at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation, their carrying amount would have been
approximately HK$64,468,000 (2012: HK$67,733,000).

As at 31 December 2013, the Group has not yet obtained the
ownership certificates in respect of the buildings with a net book value
of HK$348,982,000 (2012: HK$351,862,000).

At 31 December 2013, certain of the Group's land and buildings
in Mainland China with a net book value of approximately
HK$879,033,000 (2012: HK$1,205,866,000) were pledged to secure
bank loans granted to the Group (note 31(a)(i)).

AEEBZITHEETFER_TTRF+
“H=T-"HAaBYEXAERYER
BEEVEEFEFRDRETEMR - it
REFREBEARMEEEZERRZ
REETER °

Ran L i RIEFIRE S AR BT E
HIER - HERHEE 2 & & #64,468,000
BT (ZZE——% : 67,733,000/ 7T) °

R-ZE—=F+=-A=+—8 K&£H
i# 7% R 45 AR % {8 /348,982,000 7T
(ZZ——4 : 351,862,00087T) Z21&
FrEHEE -

R-ZZE—=%+-_A=+—H K&
5 TR EFE 4 A879,033,000/% 7T
(== — =% :1,205,866,000/8 L) Z
R B ARER A 2 i RIEF TR
RAEEMERRITERZER (M
31@a)(@)) °

Furniture Motor
Company AN and fixtures vehicles Total
BRREE RE B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
31 December 2013 —E—=%+=A=+—H
At 1 January 2013, net of R-_ZE—=F—H—8 "
accumulated depreciation R 2T E 111 858 969
Additions VA= 70 - 70
Depreciation provided during the year —~ ANEE I E B (45) (406) (451)
At 31 December 2013, net of R-ZTE—=F+=-A=+—8 "
accumulated depreciation KA E 136 452 588
At 31 December 2013: R—ZE—=F+_-_A=+—H:
Cost PR 1,404 4,324 5,728
Accumulated depreciation REtih & (1,268) (3,872) (5,140)
Net carrying amount AREDFE 136 452 588
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31 December 2013 —T—=F+-A=+—H

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED) 15. Y15 ~ BERRHE (&)

Furniture Motor
Company P NN and fixtures vehicles Total
BRREE E HE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHT
31 December 2012 —E-—-H+=ZH=+—H
At 1 January 2012, net of accumulated R=Z—=F—H—H
depreciation R 2T E 113 1,389 1,502
Additions NE 41 - 41
Depreciation provided during the year —~ ANEE I & B (43) (531) (574)
At 31 December 2012, net of R-TE——FE+=-A=+—8 "
accumulated depreciation R 2T E 111 858 969
At 31 December 2012: R-ZE——F+-_A=+—8:
Cost AN 1,334 4,324 5,658
Accumulated depreciation E i (1,223) (3,466) (4,689)
Net carrying amount AREDFE 111 858 969
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B SRR M

31 December 2013 —E—=F+_-A=+—H

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. BLEE
Group AEHE HK$'000
FHT
Vehicle licences AR
31 December 2013 —E—=%+=-HA=+—H
Cost at 1 January 2013, net of accumulated RZE—=F—A—HZKA -
amortisation bR R 5T 5 75,986
Addition NE 49,986
Amortisation provided during the year R GRS (9,522)
Assets included in a discontinued operation ATAFERBEREEEZEE
(note 12) (PFsE12) (118,250)
Exchange realignment BE 5 B 1,800
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=F+=-A=+—8H -
At 31 December 2013: R=F—=F+=—A=+—8:
Cost B -
Accumulated amortisation EGE -
Net carrying amount BREDFE -
31 December 2012 —E——H+=-H=+—H
Cost at 1 January 2012, net of accumulated RZE——F—H—-BZKA
amortisation AP 25T 5 81,372
Addition NE 311
Amortisation provided during the year AN T A (6,332)
Exchange realignment BE K B 635
At 31 December 2012 RZE——F+-_A=+—H 75,986
At 31 December 2012: R-ZB——F+_-_A=+—8:
Cost DN 139,272
Accumulated amortisation ZETHE (63,286)
Net carrying amount R FE 75,986
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B SRR M

31 December 2013 —T—=F+-A=+—H

17. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 17. A L HEE
Group
AEH
2013 2012
—E—= —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FHIT
Carrying amount at 1 January R—R—RHZKRHE 50,559 50,617
Transfer from properties under HEERERPYE
development (note 19) (FF5E19) 1,540 1,031
Recognised during the year FNER (2,206) (1,497)
Assets included in a discontinued AR E ER 2
operation (note 12) BE (HaE12) (4,040) -
Exchange realignment b 5, A 2 1,087 408
Carrying amount at 31 December Rt-—A=+—HzEmE 46,940 50,559
Current portion included in prepayments, s AFBFIE * 51 &
deposits and other receivables E i R YR IE 2 BN ERER 9 (1,477) (1,514)
Non-current portion JEBNHAER > 45,463 49,045

HE T IARBMBNRE - LR T

The leasehold lands are held under medium term leases and are

situated in Mainland China. AP o
18. GOODWILL 18. &
Group REE HK$'000
THT
Cost at 1 January 2012 N-BE——F—A—B 2K 322,704

PE AR 2 40

Exchange realignment

Cost and carrying amount at 31 December 2012 R-Z——F+-A=+—HZHRARLKEAE 322,744
At 31 December 2012: R-B——F+-_A=+—8:

Cost DN 322,744

Accumulated impairment 25HRIE =

Net carrying amount AREDFE 322,744
Cost at 1 January 2013 R-ZZE—=F—H—H2ZKA 322,744
Exchange realignment BEE 5 B 112
Cost and carrying amount at 31 December 2013 R -Z—=F+-A=+—HZRAKKHAE 322,856
At 31 December 2013: R-—ZE—=F+_A=+—H":

Cost [D#N 322,856

Accumulated impairment 2B -

Net carrying amount BREDF(E 322,856
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31 December 2013 —E—=F+_-A=+—H

18. GOODWILL (CONTINUED) 18. BB ()

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill arising from the acquisition of interests in subsidiaries has
been allocated to the following cash-generating units, for impairment
testing:

Property development cash-generating unit
. Property investment cash-generating unit

The recoverable amounts of the cash-generating units have been
determined based on a value-in-use calculation using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets covering a five-year period
approved by senior management. The key assumptions adopted on
growth rates and discount rates used in the value-in-use calculations
are based on management's best estimates. The growth rate of 2%
(2012: 29%) is determined by considering both internal and external
factors relating to the relevant segments. The discount rate applied to
the cash flow projections is 12% (2012: 12%).

Management believes that any reasonably possible change in the
key assumptions on which the recoverable amounts of goodwill are
based would not cause the carrying amounts of goodwill to exceed its
recoverable amounts.
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PSR AL

31 December 2013 —T—=F+-A=+—H

19. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 19. BEAPYR
Group
AEH
2013 2012
—E—= —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Land in Mainland China held under LA A BA AR 4958 FR B K P
medium term leases, at cost: BEZITH - RRRK ¢
At beginning of year F1 10,933,166 10,575,799
Additions NE 2,462,889 1,855,414
Acquisition of a subsidiary U i — R B A )
(note 38) (FfFEE38) 8,700,613 88,949
Transfer to completed properties held EREREFEZ
for sale BIERK (1,964,935) (1,615,258)
Transfer from investment properties ERBIREYE
(note 20) (FfFEE20) 668,002 -
Transfer to investment properties ER S EYE
(note 20) (FfF5E20) - (58,193)
Transfer to prepaid land lease payments ~ EEEEN +iHE
(note 17) 18 (KisE17) (1,540) (1,031)
Exchange realignment B 7 5 B 277,866 87,486
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 21,076,061 10,933,166
Development expenditure, at cost: FEE S - R :
At beginning of year F4 4,790,707 4,535,953
Additions NE 4,998,497 5,094,250
Acquisition of a subsidiary U i — R B 2 )
(note 38) (FfF5E38) 819,797 352,780
Transfer to completed properties EREREFEZ
held for sale [=h3 %7 ES (3,759,476) (4,840,860)
Transfer from investment properties EE AN EYE
(note 20) (FfFEE20) 418,070 =
Transfer to investment properties ER S EYE
(note 20) (Ff5E20) - (3,807)
Transfer to property, plant and equipment EEE % - BE LR E
(note 15) (PffizE15) (99,319) (383,546)
Exchange realignment B 5 5 B 112,534 35,937
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 7,280,810 4,790,707
28,356,871 15,723,873
Properties under development expected to 8 £ a] 4 [@] % /& b
be recovered: I
Within one year —FR 8,862,652 5,437,133
After more than one year B —F 1% 19,494,219 10,286,740
28,356,871 15,723,873
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19. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT (CONTINUED)

20.

Notes to Financial Statements
B SRR M

31 December 2013 —E—=F+_-A=+—H

Properties under development included interest expense of
HK$939,324,000 (2012: HK$706,010,000) for the year ended 31
December 2013 that was incurred and capitalised.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group's properties under development
with a net book value of approximately HK$1,826,242,000 (2012:
HK$1,498,849,000) were pledged to secure bank loans granted to the

Group (note 31(a)(ii)).

As at 31 December 2013, the application for certificates of land use
rights in Mainland China for land held under medium term leases with
a net book value of RMB1,204,260,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$1,531,689,000) (2012: HK$1,912,838,000) was still in progress.

19. REFYE (&)

BRPYEBEHE_ZT—=F+_A8
“t+—HLEFEEEARDEALZ
A B 51 52939,324,0008 7 (—E——
£ : 706,010,000/ 7T) °

RZZE—=F+=-A=+—8 K"&HF
Z BR % B 491,826,242,0005%8 7T (=
T — — 4F : 1,498,849,000 L) <
BRAEVEEAEASEEERRITERZ
A (FEE31(a) (i) °

RZZE—=5+=ZA=+—8" KA
(B A R #1,204,260,0007T (#F 7
#91,531,689,000/8 TT) (ZZF — — 4 :
1,912,838,000/ 7t.) 2 LA #F HAFH 49
FREKREERE 2 T (B A 2 BB
HEITH o

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 20. REYE
Group
AEH
Investment
properties
Investment under
properties  construction
at fair value at cost Total
RAREIIER BREFRIIERZ
ZREYHE EEPREYHE R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FET FET
Carrying amount at RZBE—=F—H—HBZ
1 January 2013 fRmEE 9,132,939 77,400 9,210,339
Additions NE 369,722 146,885 516,607
Acquisition of a subsidiary U BE — R B A A
(note 38) (Fff5E38) 6,116,333 - 6,116,333
Transfer to properties under ERERREPYE
development (note 19) (fFzE19) (861,787) (224,285)  (1,086,072)
Net gain from a fair value adjustment RIBZEFHER 2 AL EFE
recognised in profit or loss oy 624,403 - 624,403
Disposal He (139,076) - (139,076)
Assets included in a discontinued STAREREEK
operation (note 12) & (MsE12) (177,710) - (177,710)
Exchange realignment [ 234,725 - 234,725
Carrying amount at 31 December RZTE—=F+=A=+—H
2013 ZARHEE 15,299,549 - 15,299,549
Unrealised gains for the year STAER 2 FARER
included in profit or loss Wz 618,664 - 618,664
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20. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

Notes to Financial Statements

PSR AL

31 December 2013 —T—=F+-A=+—H

20. REWE (&)

Group
RNEE
Investment
properties
Investment under
properties construction
at fair value at cost Total
BRARMEIR  BEARIIERZ
ZIREME ERTFREME B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAT FHET
Carrying amount at 1 January 2012 RZ-Z—=-"F—F—HZ
AREE 5,560,792 = 5,560,792
Additions NE 190,848 15,400 206,248
Acquisition of subsidiaries s B BT /8 A A 2,149,199 - 2,149,199
Transfer from properties under EEeERPYE
development (note 19) (BF5E19) - 62,000 62,000
Net gain from a fair value adjustment MIBRP R Z AL EFHE
recognised in profit or loss v 470,895 - 470,895
Reclassified from completed B ERE 2B R TE
properties held for sale EEiipay | 711,794 = 711,794
Exchange realignment PE 3 FA 2 49,411 - 49,411
Carrying amount at 31 December R—E——F+—-fF=+—H
2012 2 REE 9,132,939 77,400 9,210,339
Unrealised gains for the year STAER 2 FARER
included in profit or loss =5 470,895 - 470,895

The Group's investment properties are situated in Mainland China and

are held under medium term leases.

Investment properties under construction included interest expense
of HK$1,572,000 for the year ended 31 December 2013 (2012:
HK$15,932,000) that was incurred and capitalised.

Certificates of ownership in respect
of the Group with a net carryi
HK$2,092,941,000 as at 31

of certain investment properties
ng amount of approximately
December 2013 (2012:

HK$2,620,892,000) have not yet been issued by the relevant PRC
authorities. The Group is in the process of obtaining the relevant

certificates.
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Notes to Financial Statements

PSR AL

31 December 2013 —E—=F+-A=

20. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2013, the Group's investment property with
a net book value of approximately HK$4,157,621,000 (2012:
HK$4,614,496,000) was pledged to secure bank loans granted to the
Group (note 31(a)(iii)).

The Group's investment properties consist of several commercial
and industrial properties in Mainland China. The directors of the
Company have determined that the investment properties consist
of two classes of asset, i.e., commercial and industrial, based on
the nature, characteristics and risks of each property. The Group's
investment properties were revalued at 31 December 2013 based
on valuation performed by Asset Appraisal Limited, an independent
firm of professionally qualified property valuers, at approximately
HK$15,299,549,000.

+-8

20. REWE (&)

RZE—=%F+=-A=+—H  &~&
B R AR E S E 44,157,621,0007 7T
(ZZF— 4% :4,614,496,000/87T) &
BENMEERAEEMERITERZE
R (H3E31(a)(ii)) °

AEEZREMEDREZEMRFEAR
BEZRERTIEETF - ARAIEFER
BEUMEZEE  FERERIGIZREYE
EBEEAMEEE  IEERTE - K&
B HREMER_ZT—=F+=-A=+
—HIRBE T HEES BRI ERN R
EEENEERRAERARZHEERR
#915,299,549,000/8 T °

The Group's investment properties under construction are measured REBZEZPREMETIIEK ARG
at cost until such time as fair value can be determined reliably or 2 BEQA(EREAEMETF SRR
construction is completed. PR IE ©
Fair value hierarchy RAEERERE
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy of TRINFAREREMEZ RAEAE
the Group's investment properties: ZMAEE
Fair value measurement
as at 31 December 2013 using
RAUTHER=-Z2-=5+=A=+—H
ETZARERE
Quoted
prices in  Significant  Significant
active  observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
RWiER BRA Ep N
TEZRE BEAAE BEAAE
(B—-8) (B=R8) (B=RE) st
Recurring fair value measurement for: &R ERAREFE HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TERT TERT TER
Commercial properties BEETF - - 11,303,852 11,303,852
Industrial properties T¥EF - - 3995697 3,995,697
- - 15,299,549 15,299,549
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31 December 2013 —T—=F+-A=+—H

20. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

20. REWE (&)

Fair value measurement

as at 31 December 2012 using

RANTHER -F——F+-A=+—H
ETZARERE

Quoted

prices in  Significant

active  observable

Significant
unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
KA R EvN| EARA]
mizzHE BERBEAE BEHAE
(F—FE) (F=FE) (B=E) st
Recurring fair value measurement for:  AEMEALEFE ¢ HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHET FAT FHET
Commercial properties BEET - — 5394773 5,394,773
Industrial properties T¥EEF - - 3,738,166 3,738,166
= - 9,132,939 9,132,939
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements REFERN  F-—EBRE_EBAAER
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3. Iﬂiﬁyﬂlﬂﬁiiiﬁfﬁz

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the key

inputs to the valuation of investment properties:

Valuation technique

INTREEMFRGEEMB 2 EETER

T2HARB MR

Significant
unobservable inputs

Range (weighted average)

BT A BERTAIEIEBAE &= (nEFHE)
As at 31 December 2013
RZZE—=F+=ZA=+—H
Commercial properties Comparison method ~ Market unit sale rate (RMB/sg.m.) 8,000 — 27,000 (16,000)
HEETF LhEE MIBEMERE (AR, FHK)
Industrial properties Comparison method ~ Market unit sale rate (RMB/sg.m.) 5,000 — 24,000 (11,000)
TEBF hESE mIBBEMEE (ARBT,FEHXK)
As at 31 December 2012
R=F——F+-H=+—H
Commercial properties Comparison method ~ Market unit sale rate (RMB/sg.m.) 6,000 — 26,000 (14,500)
BEET hESE mBBEMEE (ARBT,FEHXK)
Industrial properties Comparison method  Market unit sale rate (RMB/sg.m.) 4,000 — 24,000 (8,200)
TEET LhEVE miSBEAEE (ARBT,FHXK)
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31 December 2013 —E—=F+_-A=+—H

20. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

21.

The fair values of investment properties are determined using the
comparison method by making references to comparable sale evidence
as available in the relevant market. Comparable properties of similar
size, character and location are analysed and selected for each
investment property in order to arrive at a fair comparison of their
fair values. The fair value measurement is positively correlated to the
market unit sale rate.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

20. REWE (&)

REMEZ A EESRBAETS T H
KR ZHERBRRALBETIAE
E o REBRFZARELE  BAZ
BREWMEIMPEEREAN)  WERME
BUZATLBYE - AREFEETS
BUEE2EARRME -

21. B ATRE

Company
ARAF
2013 2012
—E-=F —E—_4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET AT
Unlisted shares, at cost JE TR TEEZ$ 11,136,984 5,988,792
Due from subsidiaries* NG E 1,005,940 1,119,259
Capital contribution in respect of employee EE\LAJ&@E%%Z
share-based compensation A% AR R 25,259 20,957
Classified as held for sale DEAEFER (71,220) -
12,096,963 7,129,008
Impairment** B (5,000) (5,000)
12,091,963 7,124,008
w3 The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured and have no fixed terms & FE WX Bt B A 0 IE A R

of repayment. The amounts due from subsidiaries of HK$949,546,000
(2012: HK$949,546,000) are interest-free, while the remaining balance of
HK$56,394,000 (2012: HK$169,713,000) bears interest at rates ranging
from 5% to 6.31% (2012: 5% to 6.31%) per annum.

*¥* An impairment was recognised for certain unlisted investments with a
carrying amount of HK$5,000,000 (before deducting the impairment loss).

The amounts due from and to subsidiaries included in the Company's
current assets and current liabilities are unsecured, interest-free and are
repayable on demand. The carrying amounts of amounts due from and
to subsidiaries approximate to their fair values.
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21. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
As detailed in note 12 to the financial statements, the Group will
dispose of its 80% equity interest in Shum Yip Shumkang to Shum Yip
Holdings at a cash consideration of RMB340,208,000 (equivalent to
HK$432,711,000). The cost of the investment in Shum Yip Shumkang
amounting to HK$71,220,000 was classified as an asset held for sale
in the Company's statement of financial position accordingly.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Nominal value of

21. B ARKRE (&)

B TS SRR T AR 1 2P B 2 IS - ARE
#5 A A R #340,208,00070 (1857
432,711,000 7T) BB MR % (5
E) HEERNFRERS 2800 - &
B /371,220,000 T 2 IR FE R B 2
/& K AKEIE D AR AR B SRR
RIBEGFEEE -

TEMBARFBENOT -

Place of issued and fully Percentage of
incorporation/ paid-up capital/ equity interest
registration registered attributable to
Name and business capital the Company Principal activities
KL/ ERTRBERE NG e
A8 REFBH EMEREE REBDL TEXEH
2013 2012
—E-=fF —E-——-F
Shum Yip Southern Land (Holdings) PRC/Mainland China HK$1,702,500,000 100 100 Property investment and
Co., Ltd. (note b) CE AN 1,702,500,0007 7 development
REBAME (RE) BRAF (MiFb) MERERFE
Shum Yip Centre Development (Shenzhen)  PRC/Mainland China HK$40,000,000 100 100 Property investment
Co,, Ltd. (notes a & ) HE /HhERRE 40,000,000/ 7T MERE
RERLER ORI BRAA (Fake)
Shum Yip Shumkang (note d) PRC/Mainland China RMB95,500,000 80 80 Provision of transportation
RERS (MiEd) HE /HhERRE AE#95,500,0007C services
RAEH RS
Shum Yip Terra (Holdings) Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB800,000,000 75.05 75.05 Property investment and
(note d) B o AR AE#800,000,0007T development
RERN (RE) RABRAF (MizEd) MERERFE
Shenzhen Terra Construction Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 75.05 75.05 Manufacture and sale of
(notes a & ¢) HRE /B KR AEK#10,000,0007C aluminum products
A HARERAERTRBERAR BERHERSEEMR
(Hizake)
Shenzhen Terra Property Management Service PRC/Mainland China RMB5,060,000 75.05 75.05 Property management
Co., Ltd. (notes a & ¢) HRE /B KR AE#5,060,0007C NEER
AT RANEERRBER AR (Hizrake)
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21. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 21. HEARKRE (M)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (continued) FEMBARFENOT : (8)

Nominal value of

Place of issued and fully Percentage of
incorporation/ paid-up capital/ equity interest
registration registered attributable to
Name and business capital the Company Principal activities
B3/ G ERTRABRKRE KRR Z
A% RERBE HEMERHEE REBSIL TEXHK
2013 2012
—BE-=F —T——F
Wuhan Shum Yip Terra Property Development PRC/Mainland China RMB137,000,000 75.05 75.05 Property development
Co,, Ltd. (notes a & ) HE /B AR#137,000,0007 MERE
REMAERAEHEREERAR
(fiake)
Shum Yip TaiFu (notes a & ¢) PRC/Mainland China RMB85,966,370 95.37 95.37 QOperation of warehouses
#rEZE (fztake) HE / HEARE AR#85,966,3707 and property
development
BeBERRMERYE
Shum Yip Pengji Holdings Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB932,050,000 100 100 Property investment and
(note b) R /B ARE AR#932,050,0007C development
REBE (RE) BRAA (Msb) MERERRE
Shenzhen Pengji Property Management PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 100 100 Property management
Services Limited (notes a & c) RE B AR AK#20,000,0007C MEEE
A TEEY X ERREERAT
(FiFake)
Shenzhen Shum Yip Steel Centre Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB19,920,000 100 100 Manufacture of steel
(notes a & ¢) B/ B ARE AE#19,920,0007T products
ARER2BERAR (fiztake) ETEEm
Shenzhen Wondershine Residence Company ~ PRC/Mainland China RMB15,000,000 100 100 Property management
Limited (notes a & c) HE /HhEIRRE AR 15,000,000 NEER
AHBEEXERAR (fiztake)
Shum Yip Investment (Shenzhen) PRC/Mainland China US$150,000,000 100 100 Investment holding
Co,, Ltd. (note b) hEhEARE 150,000,000 T RERR
REZR ORI BRAR (Fizkb)
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MEARKRE (&)
TEMBAAFEMT : ()

21. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 21.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

Nominal value of

Place of issued and fully Percentage of
incorporation/ paid-up capital/ equity interest
registration registered attributable to
Name and business capital the Company Principal activities
B3/ G ERTRABRKRE AREEZ
A% RERBE HEMERHEE REBSIL TEXHK
2013 2012
—BE-=F —T——F
Changsha Pengji Property Limited PRC/Mainland China RMB75,000,000 80 80 Property development
(notes a & c) HE /B AR AR #75,000,0007 MERE
KOBEMEERAR (Mirtake)
Huizhou Pengji Investment Limited PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 100 100 Property development
(notes a & c) HE /hERRE AER#10,000,0007C Bk
BMNBEREFRAR (Miztake)
Shum Yip (Shenzhen) Property PRC/Mainland China RMB30,000,000 100 100 Property management
Management Limited (notes a & c) HE B AR AK#30,000,0007T MEEE
REEE (R MEEBERAA
(Fizake)
Dongguan Shum Yip Property Development ~ PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 100 100 Property development
Limited (notes a & c) HE /HhEARE AEK10,000,0007T MERE
REmAXEHMERRAR (fiztake)
Foshan Shunde Shum Yip Property PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 100 100 Property development
Development Limited (notes a & c) R B AR ARK#20,000,0007C MR
BILTIEER REFEHEFRAA
(Ffztake)
Changzhou Shum Yip Property PRC/Mainland China US$99,800,000 100 100 Property development
Development Limited (note b) HRE /B AR 99,800,000 MERE
BMAREMEBRAF (M)
Shum Yip Land Company Limited PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 100 100 Property development
(notes a & c) HE /B KR AR¥50,000,0007C B
REEMBRAR (Fizake)
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21. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 21. HEARKRE (M)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

Nominal value of

TEMNBARFENT - (&)

Place of issued and fully Percentage of
incorporation/ paid-up capital/ equity interest
registration registered attributable to
Name and business capital the Company Principal activities
B3/ G ERTRABRKRE KRR Z
A% RERBE HEMERHEE RERSE TEXR
2013 2012
—BE-=F —T——F
Shum Yip East China Property Development  PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 100 100 Property development
Co,, Ltd. (notes a & ) HE /B AR #50,000,0007 MERE
REZERMERERRA (fitake)
China Shum Yip (Group) Property Investment B.V.I./Mainland China US$200 100 100 Investment holding
Company Limited (note a) RBERES/ 200%TT BREER
REIRE (£B) HEREBRATF YN
GEL)
Wuai (notes a & c) PRC/Mainland China RMB400,000,000 74.675 74.675 Property development
1% (FizEake) HE/ HEARE AE 400,000,000 and investment and
transportation station
management
MERERREUR
BHIER
Suzhou New Development Investment PRC/Mainland China RMB350,000,000 100 100 Property development and
Limited (notes a & c) HE /B RRE AK#350,000,0007T hotel operation
FNHERRERRAR MERBRAESE
(Hizake)
Shenzhen Silicon Valley Hi-tech B.V.I/Mainland China US$1 100 - Investment holding
Investment Limited RERTES )/ 1ET REER
(“Shenzhen Silicon Valley") (notes a) AR
RYEAREBRAR
(MRIEER ) (feEa)
Shenzhen Kezhigu Investment Limited PRC/Mainland China RMB784,528,950 100 - Property development and
("Kezhigu") (notes a & c) B o AR AR#784,528,9507T property investment

RHRZAREBRAR
(M2 ]) (Matake)
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The Group's other receivables due from the joint ventures are disclosed
in note 28 to the financial statements.
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. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 21. B ARKRE (&)
On 31 May 2013, the Group acquired the 100% equity interest in RZE—=FAHA=+—H &xEEK
Shenzhen Silicon Valley from Shum Yip Holdings. Further details of this IR (R E) RIRYIEEA Z100%7H%
acquisition are included in note 38 to the financial statements. o Wi 2 — T EH RN MmN
F38/A °
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the EREVNESRABAFEEEBKE
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or EXENEN AN EEEEFBE 2 EEH
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give DRZARAMNBRABIEZE - EFRE
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, S EMITE AR FIEEERERBR
result in particulars of excessive length. Tk °
Notes: BT
a.  Indirectly held by the Company a. HBARRBEEE
b.  Established in Mainland China as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise b. RHEBRERIZAINEBERE
c.  Established in Mainland China as a domestic enterprise with limited liability c. MRHEBREXRZAEANGREERSE
d.  Established in Mainland China as a Sino-foreign joint venture enterprise d. RHPBRERZ RPN ERE
INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 22. BELNTRRE
Group
REE
2013 2012
- F—= —2——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT TET
Share of net assets FEIEEEFE 333,357 108,285
Loans to a joint venture BT —EEERNFER 10,362 9,839
343,719 118,124
The loans to a joint venture are unsecured, interest-free and are BT —HEERRIZERRERR &
repayable after twelve months from the end of the reporting period. S RARRERREF @A RE

AilE CI

o

NEERWA LR B 2 H b fE W IE R
ISR R MIFE28 K EE o
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22. INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

Particulars of the Group's joint ventures are as follows:

22. BEATIRE (#)
REMY SBATHBHT -

Percentage of

Place of itz B ot
Nominal value of registration and Ownership Voting Profit  Principal

Name registered capital business interest power sharing activities
=L S EAEE AR EREE A EER RERE BNIE ZEXEH
Taizhou Shum RMB100,000,000 PRC/Mainland 51 50 51 Provision of

Yip Investment AR%100,000,0007t  China development

Development BB KR service

Limited hetH F R AR TS
BMRERE ER

BRAF
Shenzhen ShumYip  RMB100,000,000 PRC/Mainland 50 50 50 Property

Pengji Baohua

Investment Limited
RYTRE ISR TS

KEERAT]

AE®100,000,0007t China

R EARE

Both of the above investments in joint ventures are indirectly held by

the Company.

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial information of the

Group's joint ventures:

development

VEIGE

FRARMEBERAE AR ZIREREALAR

BIREA °

TRINTAEBEZA
M

BRI ZHBEER

2013 2012
—E-=F —E—_F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHIT
Share of the joint ventures’ profit PEEERRZEN

for the year il 219,169 48,524

Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s ANEBEGERRKEE 2
investments in the joint ventures BRI (E4E%E 343,719 118,124
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23. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 23 BENTRE
Group Company
REE R T
2013 2012 2013 2012
—Eg-=F T —E-=F —E-—_—F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FET FERx FHEL
Unlisted shares, at cost JE LR @ AR - - 15,133 15,133
Shares listed in Hong Kong, at cost REB ETRR - KA - - 920,399 920,399
Share of net assets EHEEFE 6,481,455 5,630,234 - -
Goodwill on acquisition WEREL 2 EHE 91,577 91,577 - =
Loans to associates BTHENRZER 79,519 72,706 - =
Included in assets held for sale FIAREREEE
(note 12) (RzE12) (55,597) - - -
Provision for impairment ERE (667,000)  (571,000) (667,000)  (571,000)
5,929,954 5,223,517 268,532 364,532
Market value of listed shares EmiihmE 1,728,513 1,716,920 227,193 347,176

The loans to associates of HK$79,519,000 (2012: HK$72,706,000)
are interest-free, unsecured and are repayable after twelve months

from the end of the reporting period. Additionally, an amount due from

an associate included in the Group's deposits and other receivables are

disclosed in note 28 to the financial statements.

The loans from associates included in the Group's other payables and

accruals are disclosed in note 33 to the financial statements.
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23. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

Notes to Financial Statements
B SRR M

31 December 2013 —E—=F+_-A=+—H

23. BMERNTRE (F)

The provision for impairment is related to the Company’s investment
in Coastal Greenland Limited (“Coastal Greenland”). The recoverable
amount of the investment in Coastal Greenland of HK$462,795,000
has been determined based on a value-in-use calculation using
the Company's share of the present value of the estimated future
cash flows expected to be generated by the associate from financial
budgets covering a five-year period. The projected cash flows have
been updated to reflect the current financial performance of Coastal
Greenland. The key assumptions adopted for growth rates and discount
rates used in the value-in-use calculations are based on management's
best estimates. Growth rates are determined by considering both
internal and external factors. The pre-tax discount rate applied to the
cash flow projections is 14% (2012: 14%). As a result of this analysis,
management has recognised an impairment charge of HK$96,000,000
during the year ended 31 December 2013. The impairment charge is

recorded within other expenses in the statement of profit or loss.

Particulars of the principal associates are as follows:

BEREEAQRNEEFZERERR
rEl(DnEReERE]) 2REGH -
R B4 B REIRE 2462,795,000/%8
AR ERE - IIRERER AF AR
WS TEE TR 2 B N R EE 2 THHIZAR
RAlD M ZAREEREZRE
ZEAEEFGEEE EARERE
EEH RUEAAESZEREZHY
BRI - HRABEEFERRIEREREL
BERMZEZBEIREBEEEEBZ &
EREMEE - BRETIEBERINEE
BRERX - EFRARRSTREEAZFATHT
WEE14% (ZF——F : 14%) ° 1B
Bazom BRERNBE_T—=F+
“R=+—BLEFE WRAREEA
96,000,000/ 7t ° & B & A 4 A E A
FZRIEER AR °

TEEBERRFBEOT

Nominal value
Place of of issued and Percentage of
incorporation/ fully paid-up ownership interest
Business registration capital/registered attributable to
Name structure  and business capital the Group Principal activities
B/ BRIRAR AEEESLZ
A% E3 2 REXH BA/EMEREE FERERZEAL FEXH
2013 2012
“B-=f —T——F
Coastal Greenland* (note a) Corporate  Bermuda/ HK$279,058,000 22.62 22.62 Property development
ke RE* (fiiita) A Mainland China 279,058,000 75 and investment
BRE/FEARE MERERIRE
Road King Infrastructure Ltd. Corporate Bermuda/ HK$73,518,000 27.52 27.27 Development, operation
("Road King")** (note b) NG Mainland China 73,518,000 7T and management of
BYERBRAR ([BH]) * BRE /PEARE toll roads and property
(FitzEb) development and
investment
WERR ER  EER
ERARMERE RIRE
Shenzhen Tianan Cyber Park Corporate PRC/Mainland China US$62,000,000 37.53 37.53 Property investment
(Group) Co,, Ltd. (note b) NG R AR 62,000,000 T and development
RREWEH (KE) BRAA MERERFE
Gy
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23. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

None of the associates are audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or
another member firm of the Ernst & Young global network.

< Coastal Greenland is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda
and its ordinary shares with a nominal value of HK$0.10 each are listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The principal
location of Coastal Greenland's business is Mainland China.

On 24 January 2014, Coastal Greenland announced a plan to issue
1,395,291,428 open offer shares at a price of HK$0.25 per open offer
share by way of one open share for every two existing shares held by the
shareholders. The Company did not take up its entittements under the
open offer. Upon completion of the open offer on 14 March 2014, the
equity interest held by the Company in Coastal Greenland decreased from
22.62% as at 31 December 2013 to 15.08% (note 46(iii)).

**  Road King is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda and its
ordinary shares with a nominal value of HK$0.10 each are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The principal
location of Road King's business is Mainland China.

Notes:
a.  Directly held by the Company

b.  Indirectly held by the Company

The above table lists the associates of the Group which, in the opinion
of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or formed
a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details
of other associates would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

The financial years of the above associates are coterminous with that
of the Group, except for Coastal Greenland which has a financial year
ending 31 March. The consolidated financial statements are adjusted
for the material transactions between Coastal Greenland and group
companies between 1 January and 31 March. Coastal Greenland uses
31 March as its financial year end date to conform with that of its
holding company.
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23. BMERNTRE (F)
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BeARRE (H)
BORRASTEEZ EEREQT

23. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 23.
Road King, which is considered a material associate of the Group, is
engaged in the development, operation and management of toll roads FEREREER  BENREEARY
and property development and investment, and is accounted for using EHRZERKRE  THASEUEZREA
the equity method by the Group. iR e

TREAREMNSABRRERFLFHE
ZHEYHZMBENBE  LEHRFE

The following table illustrates the summarised financial information
of Road King adjusted for any differences in accounting policies,

and reconciled to the carrying amount in the consolidated financial EEREMBHRET ZREE
statements:
2013 2012
—E—-= —_=F=—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Current assets BB E 37,303,877 30,574,895
Non-current assets FEMENEE 6,125,586 6,700,446
Current liabilities nBEE 21,555,269 16,322,548
Non-current liabilities FERBEE 8,510,942 8,729,920
Non-controlling interests FEIE R M = 691,483 429,742
Net assets BEFEE 12,671,769 11,793,131
Reconciliation to the Group's interest in HEZEASEREE QA
the associate: IR
Proportion of the Group’s ownership NEBATERE Z LB 27.52% 27.27%
Group's share of net assets of the REEREE DB EIGZ
associate, excluding goodwill BEFE TRERE 3,487,495 3,215,987
Goodwill on acquisition WEEEE ZHE 91,577 91,577
Carrying amount of the investment & ZREE 3,579,072 3,307,564
Revenues WA 11,456,048 9,344,130
Profit for the year N A 1,023,367 852,734
Other comprehensive income Hfth 2w 290,954 206,023
Total comprehensive income for the year FRAZE NS5 1,314,321 1,058,757
Dividend received 2R 96,972 80,809
The following table illustrates the aggregate financial information of the TR B R R [ B A B S R B A R TR TS
Group's other associates: EH
2013 2012
—_F—-= —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT FAT
Share of the associates’ profits for the year FE{5HE AT 2 4 A A 542,783 630,440
Share of the associates’ total JEIEEE AR Z
comprehensive income/(loss) 2mE= (&) B35 104,808 (12,278)
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s AREBERBAAFTIRE 2
investments in the associates BRI (E 4858 2,350,882 1,915,953
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24. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

25.

24, B ERE

Group Company
rEE NG|
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=f T —F ZB-Z=fFf T _F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAT FER FET
At fair value: BRARIE :
Listed equity investments in FERBARE Em
Mainland China Z R E 22,467 28,266 - -
Club memberships {AgazR e ZE 4,570 4,507 1,720 1,720
27,037 32,773 1,720 1,720
At cost: LR
Unlisted equity investments JE TR AERE 12,753 19,698 - =
39,790 52,471 1,720 1,720

During the year, the net loss in respect of the Group's available-for-sale
investments recognised in other comprehensive income amounted to
HK$4,827,000 (2012: gain of HK$1,975,000).

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on quoted
market prices.

As at 31 December 2013, unlisted equity investments with a carrying
amount of HK$12,753,000 (2012: HK$19,698,000) were stated
at cost less impairment because the range of reasonable fair value
estimates is so significant that the directors are of the opinion that their
fair value cannot be measured reliably. The Group does not intend to
dispose of them in the near future.

OTHER LONG TERM ASSETS

As at 31 December 2013, other long term assets mainly represented
prepayments of HK$1,571,337,000 (2012: HK$1,365,383,000)
related to the acquisition of land use rights. The remaining balance of
HK$12,719,000 (2012: HK$12,439,000) included receivable from an
independent third party, which is unsecured, interest-free and repayable
after 12 months from the end of the reporting period.
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TT) °

LHEREREZ AR EBETIRETSRE
BE o

R-ZEBE—=F+=A=+—H EE
18 /412,753,0007% 70 B9 JE £ T AR R 4%
& (ZZ— 4 :19,698,000/ 7T) %
AR ESER - REAGEARER
STHEEEA  EERAEQRETEE
A SEHET 2 o AN ER A B ASH
£ o

HitRHMEE

R-ZEBE—=%F+_-_A=+—0H Hft
RMEEFTZRR BB TG RE
m 3  # 8  501,571,337,0007% 7T
(ZZ— =4 :1,365,383,000/% 7T ) °
H #212,719,000%& 7T (ZF — Z F :

12,439,000/ 7T ) 4% fE W H {38 37 55
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INVENTORIES 26. &
Group
REE
2013 2012
—E2—= —=F=—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Raw materials JRAM 36,776 36,850
Work in progress TEED 54,150 37,722
Finished goods BIRK B 35,048 34,535
125,974 109,107
TRADE RECEIVABLES 27. EWERRX
Group
REH
2013 2012
—E-=F —E—CF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Trade receivables JE W BR 3R 446,222 285,796
Impairment A (30,100) (30,939)
416,122 254,857

Under normal circumstances, the Group does not grant any credit
terms to its customers. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over
its outstanding receivables and to minimise credit risk. In view of the
aforementioned and the fact that the Group's trade receivables relate
to a large number of diversified customers, there is no significant
concentration of credit risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements over its trade receivable balances. Trade
receivables are non-interest-bearing.
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27. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 27. BUWERRX (&)
An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the reporting R EHRAS 4 A BT E I MR B
period, based on the contract date and net of provision, is as follows: ZTEWEBER BRI T ¢
Group
rEE
2013 2012
—E-=5F —E—_4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FET
Within one year —FR 407,207 252,580
One to two years —FEMEFNRN 8,915 2,076
Two to three years MEE=FNA - 201
416,122 254,857
The movements in the provision for impairment of trade receivables FEUW BRI Z R ERE Z Ehan T

are as follows:

Group
AEH
2013 2012
—EB-= =
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FHET
At 1 January n—A—H 30,939 38,260
Impairment losses recognised EERZRERE 783 3,758
Impairment losses reversed B E 2R ERE - 9111
Amount written off as uncollectible i 5H 7= AR IR Bl 2 FRIE - (2,189)
Included in assets held for sale SAREREEE (2,330) =
Exchange realignment DEE 34 S B 708 221
30,100 30,939
Included in the above provision for impairment of trade receivables is a A F it W R FURERE R ERE
provision for individually impaired trade receivables of HK$30,100,000 BB 2 K& W BR 3R 530,100,000
(2012: HK$30,939,000) with a carrying amount before provision of 7L (ZF — = £ : 30,939,000/ 7T) *
HK$30,100,000 (2012: HK$31,986,000). MzEWRERREHER 2 REAE
#330,100,000% T (= & — = F:

31,986,000/ 7C) ©
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27. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 27. EWERR ()

The individually impaired trade receivables relate to customers that
were in financial difficulties or were in default in payments and the full
amount is not expected to be recovered.

The aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not individually nor
collectively considered to be impaired is as follows:

118 51 30 {2 M B 5K 7 B2 T B 765 R 86
KRN RZEF B - BHRZEFHA
EAEEKD o

18 5l 2k 2[Rl R A & B IR E 2 B S
IR BRE DI T

Group
REME
2013 2012
—E-=5F —E—_F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT FHT
Neither past due nor impaired REERINARRE 407,207 251,734
Less than one year past due B DRA—F 8,915 2,076
416,122 253,810

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a large
number of diversified customers for whom there was no recent history
of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number
of independent customers that have a good track record with the
Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the Company are of
the opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary in respect
of these balances as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.
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28. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES  28. R E ~ Fl &€ R H L FEUR

15
Group Company
rEE NG|

2013 2012 2013 2012
—B-=F - —F —%¥-=F T %
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT FER FAT
Prepayments SEUNE/ S 137,030 1,493,355 - =
Deposits and other receivables 5] & M EH A e WG IE 731,484 879,089 2,176 31,772
Loans to a joint venture BT—HEERRZER 3,248,844 2,148,394 - =
4,117,358 4,520,838 2,176 31,772

Included in the Group's prepayments, deposits and other receivables
are loans to a joint venture totalling HK$3,248,844,000 (2012:
HK$2,148,394,000), which are unsecured and have no fixed terms of
repayment, and bear interest at 12% per annum (2012: 12%).

Included in the Group's deposits and other receivables is an amount
due from an associate of HK$147,570,000 (2012: Nil), which is
unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed terms of repayment.

Included in the Group's deposits and other receivables are
amounts due from fellow subsidiaries of HK$13,273,000 (2012:
HK$7,378,000), which are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed
terms of repayment.

Included in the Group's deposits and other receivables are amounts
due from non-controlling shareholders of certain subsidiaries of
the Group of HK$2,578,000 (2012: HK$29,389,000), which are
unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment.

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. The financial
assets included in the above balances relate to receivables for which
there was no recent history of default.
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29. EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 29. EBBREBRAANEFHE ZRE
PROFIT OR LOSS BE
Group Company
TEH RAF
2013 2012 2013 2012

—B-=F —T—_—F —ZB-=F —ZT——F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT FERT FHT

Listed equity investments, FikERE -
at market value: &miE
Hong Kong Ei 11,011 10,296 11,011 10,296
11,011 10,296 11,011 10,296
The above equity investments as at 31 December 2013 and 2012 MR =T =R T ——F+-A
were classified as held for trading. ST BZREREDSBERFER
= .
30. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED 0. RERBESEEYREERFR
DEPOSITS N
Group Company
rEE RAF
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E2-=F —T-——F ZB-=F —FT—_F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHExT FTER FHIT
Cash and bank balances Re RRTHER 6,379,869 5,197,802 22,754 47,832
Time deposits EHFER 1,098,434 2,108,006 888,503 746,374
7,478,303 7,305,808 911,257 794,206
Less: Pledged time deposits: A BIEHE B
Pledged for long term bank REURITE R 2 47
loans (note 31(a)(iv)) (MEE31@)(v)) (17,277)  (137,323) - -
Pledged for short term bank RHRITERZ EH
loans (note 31(a)(iv)) (BzE31(a)(iv)) (13,594)  (129,905) - -
Restricted cash* PR HI3R & (913,383)  (304,528) - -
Cash and cash equivalents BeRReEEY 6,534,049 6,734,052 911,257 794,206
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DEPOSITS (CONTINUED)
Included in the Group's restricted cash is an amount of HK$26,315,000
deposited in an escrow account jointly operated by a subsidiary and an
independent third party as at 31 December 2013 (31 December 2012:
Nil).

The remaining balance of HK$887,068,000 (31 December 2012:
HK$304,528,000) in the Group's restricted cash was limited to use in
the development of certain property projects. In accordance with relevant
documents issued by the PRC State-Owned Land and Resource Bureau,
certain property development companies of the Group are required to
place in designated bank accounts certain amounts of presale proceeds of
properties as guarantee deposits for the construction of related properties.
The deposits can only be used for purchases of construction materials
and the payments of construction fees of the relevant property projects
when approval from the PRC State-Owned Land and Resource Bureau is
obtained. Such guarantee deposits will only be released after completion
of the related pre-sold properties or issuance of the real estate ownership
certificates, whichever is the earlier.

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and cash equivalents
of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB") amounted to
HK$5,079,885,000 (2012: HK$5,441,750,000). The RMB is not freely
convertible into other currencies. However, under Mainland China's
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement,
Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying periods
of between one day and three months depending on the immediate
cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective
short term time deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

| 179 |
Shenzhen Investment Limited
RIERAB R A A
ANNUAL REPORT 2013 %R

300 BERBEEEEYRCERE

= (8])

*  RZT—=F+=ZA=+—80" &K%
BrRBRFHREBIE—EFHRAEH—
FHEARR—EBUE=FXRAE
B 2B RPN 2 51E26,315,000/%
T(ZE——F+=-A=t+—H: &)

REBZRHIR & 2 4 #:887,068,000
BT (ZE—=—F+=-A=+—8:
304,528,000/ T) Er] AER &
FHHIEE - BEFEEE T HER
EEBEMGHEBRXH  AEEHE
FHERABZQRAREERITESTE
WETHENEEMEMERE - £
BEAYEREZROERTR - %
GRETRESTREBEA LHERE
BRAESAREBERMEINER
MEBENREERR - BHAERER
EERNHBAEEMERIREZEEH
ERE (UREREER®E) 27 TR
]}/.?_\ °

REBEBHR AEEBUARK (TA
REDSHEzH e REcEEYH
5,079,885,000/ T (= & — = 4 :
5,441,750,000%87T) - AR 0] B
BAEBAHMER o A - BIFEFH B
T Bl i 0l R 45 [ - BIE RN EE IR
E - ANEBEEE BB RETINESRE
ZIRITHHA R H IR E o

FHRBTZHESREABRITERE
LIZFE K BREUFI B © 52 HAE HTF 3K
ZEFHR—BRE=EATE  BRFER
SEZARREFTEME - WRARBE
HITE HATF SRR R BRERA 8. o SRITAEERTY
RN ETRIER  EERIFZ
RIT -



Notes to Financial Statements

PSR AL

31 December 2013 —ZE—=F+=-A=+—H

31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER

3. 5T ERITREMEE

BORROWINGS
2013 2012
Z§-=F 5F%
Effective/ Effective/
contractual contractual
interest rate (%) Maturity HK$'000  interest rate (%) Maturity HK$'000
BB/ B/
Group rER RHFE (E) 3 TEn  A0FE(E) 55 TAT
Current ikl
Bank loans-secured RTEH - AEA 6.00- 7.995 2014 1,362,446 6.00-7.88 2013 1043259
—E-QE —T-=f
Bank loans-unsecured ROEH - EHA 2.48-738 2014 9,685,939 4519225 2013 7035371
HIBOR + 1.95- HIBOR + 0.70-
HIBOR + 2.95, HIBOR + 2.85,
LIBOR + 2- LIBOR + 2
LIBOR + 2.95
ERABOEER —E-m% BERIRER %=
B+1.95-F#% §+070-%
BIRERE RRORAERE
+2.95 1 fREER +2.85 * R
fTR%ERE+2 - fIRZERE+2
ECEEEST
£42.95
Other borrowings-unsecured EfpfeE - RER 6.0-9.8 2014 1,073,484 7.2-85 2013 895,608
ZE-mE “E-=f
12,121,869 8,974,238
Non-current E ik
Bank loans-secured ROER - FHEA 6.396-738 20152021 2,401,712 6158913 20142021 2,719,144
%-RF- ZFHF-
—E--f B
Bank loans-unsecured BOEH - BEA 6.157.38 20152023 9,765,792 615966 20142016 9,422,348
HIBOR + 2.2- HIBOR + 2.2-
HIBOR + 2.95, HIBOR + 2.95,
LIBOR + 2.4- LIBOR + 2-
LIBOR + 2.95 LIBOR + 2.95
EABAAE —E-1fE- BERORAER —F-ME-
KE+22-F -EC=E B+22-%% ZE-0F
BRIRER BIRERE
84295 % +2.95 " RFE
BIRERE IRERE+2-
+2.4 - RBRT RIBITRER
FERE+2.95 £42.95
Other borrowings-unsecured e E - EHA - 8598 2014 1,094,632
—T-|F
12,167,504 13,236,124
24,289,373 22210,362
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31 December 2013 —T—=F+-A=+—H

31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER

BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

3.5 ERITREMEE (&)

2013 2012
ZE-Zf “5-F%
Effective/ Effective/
contractual contractual
interest rate (%) Maturity HK$'000  interest rate (%) Maturity HK$'000
BB/ B/
Company KAF EHFE (B) L) TEn  A0FE(E) 55 TAT
Current ikl
Bank loans-unsecured ROEH - BHA HIBOR + 1.95- 2014 3818818  HIBOR +0.70- 2013 968,956
HIBOR + 2.95, HIBOR + 2.85,
LIBOR + 2- LIBOR + 2
LIBOR + 2.95
ERBORER —E-m% BERTRER —Z-=F
B+1.95-FR B+070- &%
BIRERE GIEEST
+2.95 » ¥R +2.85 * R
fTRERE+2- IRZERE+2
RARTRER
£42.95
Non-current ik
Bank loans-unsecured ROEH - BHA HIBOR +22-  2015-2018 4436658  HIBOR+22- 20142015 6196205
HIBOR + 2.95, HIBOR + 2.95,
LIBOR + 2.4- LIBOR + 2-
LIBOR + 2.95 LIBOR + 2.95
ERRTALRE —3-1F- EABORERE —F-NE-
+22-BERT  ZB-N\E +22-BE%T —E-1F
RE57E+295 FAERE+295
RARTRERE RHARTRAERE
+2.4 - REST +2 — REERITR
RERE+2.95 F7E+2.95
8,255,476 7,165,161
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31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER

BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

3.5 ERITREMEBE (&)

Group Company
rEE NN
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=F —T—-F ZE-=f —=T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FET FHT
Analysed into: il
Bank loans repayable: JEEEZRITER
Within one year —FR 11,048,385 8,078,630 3,818,818 968,956
In the second year MERA 6,351,766 7,343,876 2,582,059 3,614,654
From third to fifth years =FERFR 4,462,480 3,833,004 1,854,599 2,581,551
Over five years AENUE 1,353,258 964,612 - =
23,215,889 20,220,122 8,255,476 7,165,161
Other borrowings repayable: RZHMER
Within one year FRA 1,073,484 895,608 - -
In the second year MERN - 1,094,632 - -
1,073,484 1,990,240 - =
24,289,373 22,210,362 8,255,476 7,165,161

(a) Bank loans amounting to HK$3,764,158,000 (2012:

HK$3,762,403,000) were secured by:

(i) certain of the Group's land and buildings in Mainland China
with a net book value of approximately HK$879,033,000
(2012: HK$1,205,866,000) (note 15);

(i) certain of the Group's properties under development with a
net book value of approximately HK$1,826,242,000 (2012:

HK$1,498,849,000) (note 19);

(iii) certain of the Group's investment properties with a net
book value of approximately HK$4,157,621,000 (2012:

HK$4,614,496,000) (note 20); and
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879,033,000 7L (=& —=
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BTN BAREZ i K&
BF (Mfizk15)

N £ Bk EOF E D
1,826,242,000% 7T (= =
— = % :1,498,849,000/
TL) ZETERBYE (W
19) :
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31.

32.

Notes to Financial Statements

PSR AL

31 December 2013 —T—=F+-A=+—H

INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)
(a) (continued)

(iv) certain of the Group's bank deposits with a net book value
of HK$30,871,000 (2012: HK$267,228,000) (note 30).

In addition, Shum Yip Group, the ultimate holding company,
has guaranteed certain of the Group's bank loans of
HK$3,179,750,000 as at 31 December 2013 (2012: Nil) (note
42(b)(0)).

(b) Except for the bank loans equivalent to approximately
HK$5,337,023,000 (2012: HK$4,871,517,000) and
HK$2,776,000,000 (2012: HK$2,116,000,000), which are
denominated respectively in United States dollars and Hong Kong
dollars, all borrowings of the Group are in RMB.

(c) The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company's
borrowings approximate to their fair values, which have been
calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows at the
prevailing interest rates.

TRADE PAYABLES

An aged analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the reporting
period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

3.5 ERITREMEBE (&)

(a)

(b)

©

(&)

(iv) 75 B BR M5 {E30,871,000
B oz & — =
267,228,000/ 0) 2 & TR
1R (FiFE30) °

BEoh - BB ARFREEER
—E2—=f+=-A=+—RH" B2
PSS E 4 %83,179,750,000/%8 7T
T ——F  E) ZRITENE
HIER (HisE42(b) (1)) °

B 18 & R 495,337,023,00078 T

—F — — % :4871,517,000/%
JT) %X2,776,000,000/% 7T (= =
— — 4 :2,116,000,0007& JT) Z
BITERD RIAET KRBT E
SN FTEAREBZEEYAAR
BEEtE -

AEBERARRZEEZREE
BEANALERE  DRBTHNE
HEHRRBESREETHBA
HiSH o

32. E{TERRX
RBEBMRREEARAE T ENBS
R ERAONMT :

Group

AEE
2013 2012
—ZE—= —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Within one year —FR 948,763 649,910
One to two years —FEEWENR 39,465 12,099
Two to three years MEE=FNX 1,337 1,197
Over three years =LAk 39,410 40,280
1,028,975 703,486

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing.
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33. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 33. HthERIEREFTER
Group Company
rEE NN

2013 2012 2013 2012

—Eg—-= —EF—= —Eg—-= —EF—=
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
FET FHET FHERT FHET
Receipts in advance BERIE 6,116,166 3,546,652 - -
Other payables H A JE T FRIE 2,710,419 3,053,729 - -
Loans from associates BENTER 278,649 325,273 30,208 29,543
Accruals &R 1,029,289 1,358,002 22,173 21,164
10,134,523 8,283,656 52,381 50,707

The loans from fellow subsidiaries included in the Group's other
payables are unsecured and have no fixed terms of repayment.
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries of HK$283,276,000 (2012:
HK$263,994,000) bear interest from one-year to three-year benchmark
lending rates of the People’s Bank of China (“PBOC"), while the
remaining balance of HK$93,806,000 (2012: HK$159,736,000) is
interest-free.

The loans from non-controlling shareholders of certain subsidiaries of
the Group included in the Group's other payables are unsecured and
have no fixed terms of repayment. Amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders of HK$122,686,000 (2012: Nil) bear interest at the one-
year benchmark lending rate of the PBOC, while the remaining amount
of HK$28,580,000 (2012: HK$322,504,000) is interest-free.

The loans from associates included in the Group's other payables
and accruals totalling HK$278,649,000 (2012: HK$325,273,000) are
unsecured, interest-free and are payable on demand.
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AAREEZHEMEMNKEBEZRZR
MEBARERAEER R EETE
BEXHR ENRRKEB 2 AR
18283,276,000% T (= & — = 4 :
263,994,000/ t) & B A R 17
(THFBRAARRIT]) 2 —FE=FHE
B A EF B - M #5E93,806,000
77T (ZZF— =4 : 159,736,000/ 7T )
BRE o

AEBZ EMENREREREASE
BOWBARIEERRRZER - AE
IR R I 4 B E R AR o BT IR R
% R FRE 122,686,0008 7T (ZF ——
FE) RPBRARRITZ —FHEE
B R A EE B - 82 5628,580,0007%8
T (Z & — = F : 322,504,000/ 7T)
BBE -

REBZHEMEMNTERETERAE
EE = N B ERE $£278,649,000% 7T
(ZZF— =4 :325273,000/87L) * %
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34. DEFERRED TAX 34, EEHIR
The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year are AEEGREMREBEEABEREEZEEN
as follows: TS ¢
Deferred tax liabilities: BEERESE :
Group REE
2013
ZE-=F
Fair value
adjustment

arising from  Accelerated

Revaluation  acquisition tax
Withholding  Revaluation of available- of subsidiaries ~ depreciation
taxon of investment  Revaluation for-sale and on investment
dividend  properties of assets investments  associates  properties Total
B
WEARR
aft BEAREE  RENERZ
RERAK RENEER KEEf NEREEfR 20RERE MBHANE At

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THT THT THT THR FHR TAT THL

At 1 January 2013 W-E-=%-R-H 204,596 1,063,879 12,375 1,244 190,423 148,501 1,627,018
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to ~ REBELLHEhing /
continuing operations (note 10) (tARBIEESEK) 2

BRI (FzE10) 77813 131,828 - - (2182) 9,164 216,623

Deferred tax charged to a discontinued RIESBEEEHH N2

operation BREHE - - - - - 629 629
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to ~ REERERR P/

the statement of profit or loss ((tABRZR) LELHE

during the year 77,813 131,828 - - (2,182) 9,793 217,252
Deferred tax credited to equity during AN 5 AR 21T

the year i - - - (1,609) - - (1,609)
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 38)  WEE—EHEBAR (Fix38) - 688,982 - - 2573278 - 3262260
Included in liabilities held for sale s AB{ERERRE

(note 12) (M3E12) - (10,878) - - - (11,650) (22,528)
Exchange realignment I 5 5% 6,064 14,351 414 134 - 3,733 24,696
Gross deferred tax liabilities at RZE-=F+-fA=1-RHz

31 December 2013 BRRBakeE 288,473 1,888,162 12,789 5769 2,761,519 150377 5,107,089
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34. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)
Deferred tax liabilities: (continued)

34 JREHE (&)
EEBEEE - (F)

Group KEE
2012
Fair value
adjustment
arising fom ~ Accelerated
Revaluation acquisition tax
Withholding ~ Revaluation of available- ~ of subsidiaries  depreciation
tacon  of investment  Revaluation for-sale and  on investment
dividend properties of assets  investments associates properties Total
RigEs
KEAAR
It BEAREE  REWEZ
REENH REWZER BESf WHEREER JANEAER MERERE CEl
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL TET TEL TAL TEL TEL
At 1 January 2012 R-E--%-f-H 146,207 770,727 13,853 6,543 35,337 134629 1,107,296
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to ~ AEEREHERFNG /
the statement of profit or loss GIABRE) Z
during the year BRI 56,700 117,637 (1,558) - (3,436) 13,551 182,894
Deferred tax charged to equity during  AEFRMERHNE 2
the year BREHE - - - 657 - - 657
Acquisition of subsidiaries BB A - 162,710 - - 158,522 - 321232
Exchange realignment & H % 1,689 12,805 80 44 - 21 14,939
Gross deferred tax liabilites at RZE-ZF+ZA=1-Rz
31 December 2012 ERENEEELE 204,59 1,063,879 12,375 71244 190,423 148,501 1,627,018
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34. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED) 34, REBE (&)
Deferred tax assets: EEBEEE :
Group REE

2013
Losses

available for
offsetting
against
future
taxable Tax effect Unrealised

profits of LAT profits Others Total
I F 3K 85 +ith
RRERE  BEBIZ
BAZEE BERE RERER Hits a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET FTHERT FET
At 1 January 2013 R-ZT—=
—H—H 82,796 342,170 74,703 28,589 528,258
Deferred tax credited/ ST ABECE TS S
(charged) to continuing (RFFEKE R
operations (note 10) %) ZEERIA
(FF3E10) 19,202 211,550 (3,935) 220 227,037
Deferred tax credited/ T ASERHRA R
(charged) to a (R B
discontinued operation EEHNR) 2EE
HIE 632 - - (134) 498
Deferred tax credited/ REFFABREK
(charged) to the (BaRPHRKR) 2
statement of profit R IE
or loss during the year 19,834 211,550 (3,935) 86 227,535
Acquisition of a subsidiary W& —REH B A )
(note 38) (Pf5E38) 125,379 - - - 125,379
Included in assets held FFARHERSEE
for sale (note 12) (PFsE12) (1,890) - - (1,126) (3,016)
Exchange realignment bE o 2,024 11,048 717 780 14,569
Gross deferred tax assets HRZ-ZT—=F+=7
at 31 December 2013 =t+—BZEER
REERRE 228,143 564,768 71,485 28,329 892,725
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34. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)
Deferred tax assets: (continued)

34 JREHE (&)
EEHBEE : (&)

Group KEE
2012
—T——fF
Losses
available for
offsetting
against
future
taxable  Tax effect Unrealised
profits of LAT profits Others Total
A B EHR 3H
RIRFERTE T HIEET
wAZEE BMBTE RERRF HAh, Gl
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FHET FAT FHET
At 1 January 2012 R-Z——F
—B—H 45,006 324,171 39,469 30,199 438,845
Deferred tax credited/ AEFHABRE S
(charged) to the (BmEPHR) 2
statement of profit RIET A
or loss during the year 1,559 15,193 34,814 (1,877) 49,689
Acquisition of subsidiaries W& B A 7] 35,848 - - - 35,848
Exchange realignment BEE 5 F B 383 2,806 420 267 3,876
Gross deferred tax assets R-EBE——F+_H8
at 31 December 2012 =+—BZIELER
HEEMAR 82,796 342,170 74,703 28,589 528,258
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31 December 2013 —T—=F+-A=+—H

34. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED) 34, REBE (&)

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of HK$322,367,000
(2012: HK$322,367,000) that are available indefinitely for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses
arose. The Group also has tax losses arising in Mainland China of
HK$442,023,000 (2012: HK$240,943,000). Accumulated losses
amounting to HK$15,864,000, HK$22,877,000, HK$39,464,000,
HK$77,241,000 and HK$286,577,000 as at 31 December 2013
will expire in 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017 and 2018, respectively, for
offsetting against future taxable profits. Deferred tax assets have
not been recognised in respect of these losses as they have arisen
in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for years and it is not
considered probable that taxable profits will be available against which
the tax losses can be utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding tax
is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign
investment enterprises established in Mainland China. The requirement
is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31
December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there
is a tax treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the
foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 5%. The Group
is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by
those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of earnings
generated from 1 January 2008. As at 31 December 2013, the
Group recognised a deferred tax liability of HK$288,473,000 (2012:
HK$204,596,000) in respect of the withholding tax on future dividend
distribution by these PRC subsidiaries.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of
dividends by the Company to its shareholders.
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35. SHARE CAPITAL 35. ]
Shares IR 5
2013 2012
—E—=F —2——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAET
Authorised: JETE
10,000,000,000 (2012: 5,000,000,000) 10,000,000,0008% (=& ——4 :
ordinary shares of HK$0.05 5,000,000,000/% ) &R EIE0.05%
(2012: HK$0.05) each (a) T (ZZ—=%F : 0.0587L) 2 &8
B (a) 500,000 250,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRAR
5,381,055,305 (2012: 3,729,015,408) 5,381,055,305/% (=& — —4 :
ordinary shares of HK$0.05 3,729,015,4080%) S ME{H0.057
(2012: HK$0.05) each T (ZE—ZF :00587T) 2&#
5 269,053 186,451
During the year, the movements in share capital were as follows: FA - RAEEWOT -
Number of Issued Share
shares in share premium
issue capital account Total
ERITROBGBE SBIABRE ROEER st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT TERT THERT
At 1 January 2013 N-—ZE—=%—H—H 3,729,015,408 186,451 5,714,001 5,900,452
Share options exercised (b) S 0)) 10,570,230 528 31,736 32,264
Final 2012 dividend in the form of REFRHER 2 —B——F
new shares (c) REARR 2 () 157,340,008 7,867 412,860 420,727
Issue of shares relating to acquisition of AW iE—EKIE A Rl 1T
a subsidiary (d) Z &3 (d) 1,410,117,262 70,506 4,568,780 4,639,286
Interim 2013 dividend in the form of ~ MFRHFRA 2 =T —=4F
new shares (e) FHEIRR B (e) 74,012,397 3,701 236,840 240,541
At 31 December 2013 RZZE—=%+=A
=+—H 5,381,055,305 269,053 10,964,217 11,233,270
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35. SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(@

(b)

©

(d

(e

On 18 April 2013, the Company passed an ordinary resolution to increase
the authorised share capital of Company from HK$250,000,000 to
HK$500,000,000 by the creation of an additional 5,000,000,000 unissued
shares of nominal value of HK$0.05 each, which rank pari passu in all
respects with the existing shares in the share capital of the Company.

The subscription rights attaching to 10,570,230 share options were
exercised at the weighted average subscription price of HK$2.39 per share,
resulting in the issue of 10,570,230 shares of HK$0.05 each for a total
cash consideration, before expenses, of HK$25,263,000. An amount of
HK$7,001,000 was transferred from the share option reserve to the share
premium account upon the exercise of the share options.

On 27 March 2013, the board of directors resolved to declare the
2012 final dividend of HK11.00 cents per share for the year ended 31
December 2012. The Board further resolved that this final dividend will be
satisfied wholly in the form of an allotment of new fully paid share(s) of
nominal value of HK$0.05 each in the share capital of the Company (“scrip
shares") but shareholders will be given the option of receiving this final
dividend wholly in cash in lieu of this allotment, or partly in cash and partly
in the form of scrip shares. The final dividend in the form of scrip shares
resulted in the issue of 157,340,008 shares at an issue price of HK$2.674
per share for a total consideration, before expenses, of HK$420,727,000.

On 31 May 2013, 1,410,117,262 new shares of HK$0.05 each were
issued as the consideration for the acquisition of the 100% equity interests
in Shenzhen Silicon Valley as detailed in note 38.

On 27 August 2013, the board of directors resolved to declare an interim
dividend of HK7.00 cents per share for the six months ended 30 June
2013. The board of directors further resolved that this interim dividend
will be satisfied wholly in the form of scrip shares but shareholders will be
given the option of receiving this interim dividend wholly in cash in lieu
of this allotment, or partly in cash and partly in the form of scrip shares.
The interim dividend in the form of scrip shares resulted in the issue of
74,012,397 shares at an issue price of HK$3.25 per share for a total
consideration, before expenses, of HK$240,541,000.
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35. B4 (48)

FRE

(a)

®)

©

(d)

©

RZZE—=FWA+N\B ' KQF
BRA-—BETBREER UEHBSD
5,000,000,0008% + & A% & ™ {80.05
BT 2 FANREATIRGD AR RDE
7 % 78 $1250,000,0007% JT # i1 =
500,000,000 7T * &% EMR M5 EAR R A
BRARZRERNDEMEFEZAER
ERER o

10,570,23017 & A& 4 B Ff 75 2 72 B 4
ERNEFHAREEBZR239ETIT
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SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

Share options

Details of the Company's share option scheme and the share options
issued under the scheme are included in note 36 to the financial
statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operated a share option scheme (the “Old Scheme"),
which had become effective on 5 June 2002 and expired on 5 June
2012. Upon expiry of the Old Scheme, no further options may be
granted but in all other aspects the provisions of the Old Scheme shall
remain in full force and effect. Therefore, the expiry of the Old Scheme
will not in any event affect the terms of the exercise of any outstanding
options that have already been granted under the Old Scheme and
such outstanding options granted under the Old Scheme shall continue
to be subject to the provisions of the Old Scheme.

A new share option scheme (the “New Scheme") was approved and
adopted on 22 June 2012 for the purpose of providing incentives
and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success of
the Group's operations. The eligible participants of the New Scheme
include any employee or director (including executive, non-executive
and independent non-executive directors) of any member of the
Group, or any employee, partner or director of any business consultant,
joint venture partner, financial adviser and legal adviser of and to
any member of the Group, as absolutely determined by the board of
directors. The New Scheme became effective on 22 June 2012 and,
unless otherwise cancelled or amended, shall be valid and effective
for a period of 10 years from that date, after which period no further
options will be issued but in all other respects the provisions of the
New Scheme shall remain in full force and effect.
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36. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED) 36. R RESTE (&)

The maximum number of ordinary shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the New Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company shall not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the total number of shares in issue as at the date of
approval of the New Scheme unless the Company obtains a fresh
approval from its shareholders. Options lapsed in accordance with
the terms of the New Scheme will not be counted for the purpose of
calculating such 10% limit. Notwithstanding the above, the maximum
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under the New Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company shall not exceed 30
percent of the shares in issue from time to time.

The maximum entitlement of each participant under the New Scheme
is that the total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to each participant (including both
exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall not
exceed 1% of the total number of shares in issue.

The period under which an option may be exercised will be determined
by the board of directors at their absolute discretion and notified by the
directors to each grantee as being the period during which an option
may be exercised, and shall expire no later than 10th anniversary of
the date upon which the option is granted and accepted in accordance
with the New Scheme. Unless otherwise determined by the board of
directors and specified in the offer letter at the time of the offer, there
is no minimum period for which an option must be held before the
option can be exercised.

An option is open for acceptance for a period of 28 days from the date
of offer. The amount payable on acceptance of an option is HK$1. The
full amount of exercise price for the subscription for shares has to be
paid upon exercise of an option.

The exercise price shall be a price determined by the board of directors
and notified to a participant and shall be at least the highest of (i)
the closing price of the shares as stated on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited's daily quotations sheet on the date of offer of
grant, which must be a business day, (i) a price being the average of
the closing prices of the shares as stated on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited's daily quotations sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of offer of grant, and (iii) the nominal
value of a share of the Company.
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36. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

The following share options were outstanding under the Old Scheme

36. B RERT & ()
AT RIS PR 15 B 5181 BT <t B 14

and the New Scheme during the year: RATE 2 FERRAE -
2013 2012
—E-=F —T——fF

Weighted Weighted

average average
exercise Number exercise Number
price  of options price of options

i Nt
THTHEE  BREHE  THOORE  BREHE

HK$ HK$

per share per share

BRET FRET
At 1 January n—A—H 2.4086 91,578,000 2.4289 98,778,000
Granted during the year RERK L 3.1600 11,052,000 = =
Exercised during the year RERTTE 2.3900 (10,570,230) - -
Forfeited during the year RERZ I 2.5021  (9,116,400) 2.3900  (3,780,000)
Lapsed during the year REREH 2.5021  (6,077,600) 3.0158  (3,420,000)
Cancelled during the year RE R85 2.3900 (8,518,661) - -
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—~H 25145 68,347,109 2.4086 91,578,000

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share

options exercised during the year was HK$3.1819 per share (2012: No

share options were exercised).
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36. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options

36. B RERT & ()
RIRE BRI R AT 8 2 BB 2 (T 62/

outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: RATEHMAT ¢
2013 —E-—=F
Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period
BREHE THEE* TR
HK$ per share
BRET
11,052,000 3.1600 19-7-2014 to 18-7-2015
—E—NMELAT+HIBAE=Z-HFLtA+N\A
57,295,109 2.3900 19-7-2012 to 18-7-2015
—E——HtAT+hBAE=Z-FFtA+NR
68,347,109
2012 —F——F
Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period
RS T E* 1718 2R
HK$ per share
BRET
87,562,000 2.3900 19-7-2012 to 18-7-2015
R —FtAThBREZZT—RAFEATNH
4,016,000 2.8140 19-7-2012 to 18-7-2015
—E——HFtLtATAREZZE-—RAFEAT/NR
91,578,000

& The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in the case
of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company's share
capital.

The fair value of the share options granted during the year was
HK$5,916,240 (HK$0.54 each). The Group recognised a share option
expense of HK$6,088,000 (2012: HK$17,018,000) during the year
ended 31 December 2013.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted during the year
was estimated as at the date of grant using a binomial model, taking
into account the terms and conditions upon which the options were

36.

Brrsta (&)

REREHARA S 2 BIREZ AR
BEREE B AER—EER - @GR
BRI SR 2 IR R AR A S - TR

granted. The following table lists the inputs to the model used: RERFTER 28 AR :
2013
—E-=F
Dividend yield (%) & 2 45 75 2 (%) 5.22
Volatility (%) B8 (%) 39.431
Risk-free interest rate (%) F L P ) 2 (%) 0.189
Expected life of options (year) AR ST FR () 0.6-1.6

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into the
measurement of fair value.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 68,347,109 share
options outstanding under the Old Scheme and the New Scheme.
The exercise in full of the outstanding share options would, under
the present capital structure of the Company, result in the issue of
68,347,109 additional ordinary shares of the Company and additional
share capital of HK$3,417,000 and share premium of HK$168,442,000
(before issue expenses).

On 28 January 2014, the Company granted a total of 123,134,000
share options at an exercise price of HK$2.85 per share to certain
directors, officers and employees of the Group under the New Scheme.
The relevant share options shall be exercisable for the period from the
expiry of 2 years from the grant date and up to 5 years from the grant
date on proportional basis (note 46(iv)).

As at the date of this report, options carrying rights to subscribe for
191,481,109 shares remain outstanding and yet to be exercised, which
represented approximately 3.44% of the Company's shares in issue as
at that date.

RESERVES

(a) Group
The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated

statement of changes in equity on pages 80 to 81 of the financial
statements.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations for Sino-foreign
joint venture enterprises, a portion of the profits of the Group's
subsidiaries and associates in Mainland China has been
transferred to the statutory reserve which is restricted as to use.

Other reserve represents the difference between the consideration
paid and the book value of the share of net assets acquired in
respect of the acquisition of non-controlling interests, and the
difference between the consideration received and the book value
of the share of net assets disposed of in respect of a change in
the ownership interest in a subsidiary without a loss of control.
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37. RESERVES (CONTINUED)

37. e (&)

(b) Company (b) &7
Share Capital Share
premium redemption option Retained
account reserve reserve profits Total
RA&
47 5 E R BERE BRERE REEF wam
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
k3 FET TET THT FET TET
At 1 January 2012 RZE—_F
—HA—H 5,537,268 2,036 35,659 270,939 5,845,902
Total comprehensive AEEEHENE
income for the year ek = - - 755,279 755,279
Dividend in the form of R Z
new shares 5] 176,733 = = = 176,733
Transfer of share option PR AR AR 2K 2B
reserve upon the lapse BRI
of share options B - - (1,921) 1,921 -
Equity-settled share option  BAR AR S i 2 88 i 2
expense i - - 17,018 - 17,018
Interim 2012 dividend - _FRHRE - - - (253,822) (253,822)
Proposed final 2012 dividend #tE =% — = F K5
LSS - - - (410,192)  (410,192)
At 31 December 2012 and R=Z——&£+=A
1 January 2013 =t—-HRK
—E-=F
—RA—H 5,714,001 2,036 50,756 364,125 6,130,918
Total comprehensive AEE2ERE
income for the year ek - - - 802,133 802,133
Share options exercised 1T AR i 35 31,736 - (7,001) - 24,735
Transfer of share option REBRE R R
reserve upon the lapse and ~ FEEEE A
cancellation of share options R #& - - (9,807) 9,807 -
Equity-settled share option  BABRAN S i 2 B A 2
expense Fx - - 6,088 - 6,088
Final 2012 dividend B & RABRIDT A
in the form of cash and 2T ——FKRH
new shares ) 35 412,860 - - (155,542) 257,318
Acquisition of a subsidiary Wi —FIHTB AR 35 4,568,780 - - - 4,568,780
Interim 2013 dividend —T-FhHKRE 35 236,840 - - (371,160)  (134,320)
Proposed final 2013 dividend #E =% —=F K
8 13 - - - (645,727)  (645,727)
At 31 December 2013 R-B-=%+=A
=t—H 10,964,217 2,036 40,036 3,636 11,009,925
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37. RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(b) Company (continued)
The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share options
granted which are yet to be exercised, as further explained in the
accounting policy for share-based payments in note 2.4 to the
financial statements. The amount will either be transferred to the
share premium account when the related options are exercised, or
be transferred to retained profits when the related options lapsed.

38. BUSINESS COMBINATION

On 17 January 2013, the Group entered into an acquisition agreement
with Shum Yip Holdings to acquire the 100% equity interest in
Shenzhen Silicon Valley (the “Acquisition Agreement”). Shenzhen
Silicon Valley is an investment holding company, which together with
its subsidiaries, Shenzhen Shum Yip Technology Development Limited,
Shenzhen lJizhaoxin Investment Limited and Kezhigu (collectively
referred to as the “Shenzhen Silicon Valley Group”) are engaged in
property development and property investment in Shenzhen, the
PRC. Further details of the transaction are set out in the circular of
the Company dated 28 March 2013. The acquisition was made as
part of the Group's strategy to increase the Group's land bank in
Shenzhen. The purchase consideration for the acquisition was satisfied
by the Company through the allotment and issue of 1,410,117,262
new shares of the Company. In addition, Kezhigu was required to
pay additional land premium to FINTTREIME+EREZEE (the
Bureau of the Urban Planning and Land Resources Commission of
Shenzhen) (the “Land Bureau”) in respect of the sale of apartments,
hotels and commercial service facilities under construction on a parcel
of land. Pursuant to the Acquisition Agreement, the Group has agreed
to pay Shum Yip Holdings an amount by which the actual additional
land premium payable to the Land Bureau by Kezhigu in respect of
the sale of apartments is less than RMB2,000,000,000. The actual
land premium was RMB1,597,798,000 according to a notice issued
by the Land Bureau dated 9 May 2013. Accordingly, an amount of
RMB402,202,000 (equivalent to HK$508,907,000) was liable to Shum
Yip Holdings by the Group.

The acquisition was completed on 31 May 2013. The Group recognised
a gain on a bargain purchase of approximately HK$637,945,000 in
relation to this business combination, which mainly represented a
discount to the fair value of the assets obtained given by Shum Yip
Holdings.
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38. BUSINESS COMBINATION (CONTINUED) 38. ¥ a0t (&)
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the Shenzhen RUEBE - RIIEAEBR A #RIEE
Silicon Valley Group as at the date of acquisition were as follows: ReEzAREWT :
Fair value
recognised on
acquisition
RSB R a2
ZARE
Notes HK$'000
k=3 FHETT
Property, plant and equipment M - BRE KR 15 348,240
Investment properties BEMSE 20 6,116,333
Deferred tax assets RIERIIE & B 4 125,57
Cash and cash equivalents HeMEeEEY 355,159
Restricted cash SIRFIIR & 26,697
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TARTRRIE « 5] & R E A 8 Wk IE 1,923
Properties under development ERPYHE 19 9,520,410
Interest-bearing bank loans and other borrowings &t BIRITER K EMEE (632,650)
Other payables and accruals H Ao A FRIE K e AT B (2,267,397)
Due to the immediate holding company FEf B R A RIFRIE (15,618)
Due to the ultimate holding company e ER AR AR A B FRIE (4,530,078)
Deferred tax liabilities BB A E 34 (3,262,260)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value RAREIIRZAIHRNEEFERE 5,786,138
Gain on a bargain purchase recognised in RiREBmR 2 H A KRG H
other income and gains in the "R REBENEG
consolidated statement of profit or loss 637,945
Satisfied by: ATEIE AT
Consideration payable related to Rl =R AR S S S P b
an additional land premium of a parcel HIMER 2 B RE
of land held by Kezhigu 508,907
Fair value of shares issued BEITROZARE 4,639,286
5,148,193
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BUSINESS COMBINATION (CONTINUED) 38. ¥ a0t (&)
An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition of the BRAWBERINEAEB 2R REDNT
Shenzhen Silicon Valley Group is as follows: N
HK$'000
T
Cash paid BfRE =
Cash and cash equivalents acquired FriiE e KRR EEBY 355,159
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents ReRBFeFEEMRAFEE
included in cash flows from investing activities (GFAREREZBS 2 RERE) 355,159
Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the year, the MeFREVNEET BIARNFER
revenue from continuing operations and profit of the Group for the BREEBREREAEEZFER
year would have been HK$9,778,807,000 and HK$3,104,839,000,  FE 5 B 59,778,807,000% 7T &
respectively. 3,104,839,000/8 7T °
OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 39. KEMWRH
(i) As lessor (i) fEREBEE
The Group leases its investment properties (note 20) BELEEAOLHE - NEEMES
and property, plant and equipment under operating lease ETREYE (MiFE20) Rz
arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms ranging from two WMELZE HAREAMEER
to eighteen years. The terms of the leases generally also require TNERE - HOBEKRT—RE
the tenants to pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent KEPEBNRIE R ERT
adjustments according to the then prevailing market conditions. ERTSEREMAREHERS
As at 31 December 2013, the Group had total future minimum R—ZBE—=F+_A=+—8"
lease receivables under non-cancellable operating leases with its N5 B 0 LA A8 2R JE w2 T AT ER
tenants falling due as follows: H AR R R 2 B R AR
DAEFEMT
Group
AEH
2013 2012
—E—-=5F —E——4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FHT
Within one year —F R 363,171 338,422
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_FEFERF (BEEERF) 601,876 521,177
After five years B8 A 299,982 173,458
1,265,029 1,033,057
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39. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (CONTINUED) 39. REBHRH (H)

(i) As lessee (i) ERHEF
The Group leases certain of its properties under operating lease AREERBREEERHEAS
arrangements. Leases for the properties are negotiated for terms THE  HEHPEETA—FE
ranging from one to three years. =FRE -
As at 31 December 2013, the Group and the Company had total R-_ZE—=%+-_A=+—8 "
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating NEE B KRR BT HARE fE
leases falling due as follows: Z PR BUBREMOERRZ R
REMNHESEENT :
Group Company
AEH PN
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E—= —E——F ZE—= —T——F

HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FTERx TAT TR TAT

Within one year —FR 6,469 5,148 2,739 660
In the second to fifth years, E_EEENF
inclusive (PEEEME) 3,652 27 3,652 =
10,121 5175 6,391 660
40. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 40. EAREIE
In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note 39(ii) B b SCHT 5E39(i) il 2 A% & FH 49 A R
above, the Group and the Company had the following commitments at SN RIEIR - AEERARFZE
the end of the reporting period: RAEFEWAT :
Group Company
AEH KAF
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E—= —E——F ZEB—-= —T——F

HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FTERT TAT TR TAT

Commitments in respect of acquisition  FLULEE T3t RAEF LA K

of land and buildings, and ERAMEZRRKA

development costs attributable to LRPE

properties under development:

Contracted, but not provided for EHE ARG 6,566,422 4,262,180 - =
Authorised, but not contracted for EREERART L 39,534 502,724 - =

6,605,956 4,764,904 - =
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40. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED) 40. EAREE (F)
In addition, the Group’s share of a joint venture's own capital AN+ WARFEA _Ei 2 AN E 5 —H
commitments, which are not included in the above, is as follows: SEBNBARE ZERAEAYENT -
Group
AEE
2013 2012
—E-=fF —E——4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET

Commitments in respect of the provision 2 {533 fRAE < AIE
of development service:

Contracted, but not provided for EHENARE L] 674,591 539,730
41. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 41. AAREE
At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not provided for R|EHR - WERRMERE TR E
in the financial statements were as follows: IABELT :
Group Company
AEE RAE]
2013 2012 2013 2012

—B-=F —T—_—F —ZB-=F —ZT——4F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT FERT THTT

(i) Guarantees given to banks (i) ARMBAREREER

for credit facilities granted to i A ERTT1E H 2 B4R
subsidiaries - - 228,000 730,000
The guarantees given to banks for credit facilities granted to the RARAMERREREEMIR
subsidiaries by the Company will expire on 16 April 2016. RITER 2 ERBER ZZF—RF
MA+/SBEEE -

(i) As at 31 December 2013, the Group has given guarantees to a (i) RZE—=F+=ZA=+—8"
maximum extent of approximately HK$3,193,044,000 (2012: AEBHRBITHETAEEYEE
HK$1,948,307,000) to banks for housing loans extended by the R ERERMABITRETZ R
banks to the purchasers of the Group's properties. #93,193,044,000/8 L (=& — =

£ :1,948,307,000/87T) LR -
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41. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

(iD)

(iii)

(continued)

Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees, if there is default of the
mortgage payments by these purchasers, the Group is responsible
for repaying the outstanding mortgage loans together with any
accrued interest and penalty owed by the defaulted purchasers
to banks. The Group is then entitled to take over the legal title of
the related properties. The Group's guarantee period commences
from the date of grant of the relevant mortgage loan and ends
after the buyer of the Group’s properties obtained the individual
property ownership certificate.

The directors consider that in case of default in payments, the net
realisable value of the related properties can cover the repayment
of the outstanding mortgage loans together with any accrued
interest and penalty and therefore no provision has been made in
connection with the guarantees.

Fancheng Property Development Co., Limited (the "Plaintiff”)
had issued a claim dated 27 August 2002 against Shum Yip
Group (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (renamed as Shum Yip Southern
Land (Holdings) Co., Ltd. (“Shum Yip Southern Land") in 2007),
a subsidiary of the Company, for breach of the terms of a
cooperation agreement entered into by the Plaintiff and Shum
Yip Southern Land dated 8 July 1991. The Plaintiff claimed a
total compensation of approximately RMB170 million against
Shum Yip Southern Land, which had lodged a counter-claim
of RMB1.3 million against the Plaintiff on 22 October 2002.
The Plaintiff agreed to partially waive the claim on 4 January
2008. The remaining claim was RMB40,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$45,432,000).

On 23 December 2009, the High Court of Guangdong Province
(the “"Guangdong High Court”) overruled both the claim of the
Plaintiff and the counter-claim of Shum Yip Southern Land. On 2
February 2010, the Plaintiff appealed to the Supreme People’s
Court of the PRC and affirmed part of the original claims of
RMB26,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$29,530,800).
On 11 February 2011, the Supreme People’s Court of the PRC
overruled the judgement of the Guangdong High Court and the
case was remanded to the Guangdong High Court.

Pursuant to a settlement agreement entered into between Shum
Yip Southern Land and the Plaintiff on 11 December 2013, both
parties agreed to withdraw all the claims as abovementioned from
the Guangdong High Court.
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41. AIREE (FE)

(i)

(iii)

(%)
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42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(a) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these
financial statements, the Group had the following material
transactions with related parties during the year:

42. BB R B
(@) BZSHBBRREMTHEHi
2R ER AEBMBET
B S TUTEARS -

Group
rEE
2013 2012
—E—=F —2——F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
iz FHET FHET
(1) Shum Yip Group, the ultimate SRR/ ABIFRELE -
holding company:
— Interest expenses — M2
(note 42(d)(i)) (FsE42(d) () 263,535 =
(2) Shum Yip Holdings, the BEERERARIRSE
immediate holding company:  (§£E) :
— Rental expenses — e 0) 4,742 1,989
(3) Associates: NI
— Sales of products — HEEMm (i) 50,884 67,238
— Interest income — R BUYA - 17,825
(4) Fellow subsidiaries: BRHELRA :
— Sales of properties —SHEWE iii) 341,484 -
— Interest expenses (note 33) — A 8% (KfzE33) 30,083 17,711
— Management fee income —BEREBRA - 6,147
— Estate agency fee income — EREERA (iv) 70,220 -
(5) A joint venture: S Ea=Am:
— Interest income (note 28) — FEUWA (FFzE28) 363,676 198,235
(6) Non-controlling shareholders:  FEf &A% ¢
— Interest expenses (note 33) — A 8F% (HizE33) 9,469 =
— Interest income — R EUA 2,044 —
| 204 |

Shenzhen Investment Limited

RYERBRAT

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 %



Notes to Financial Statements

PSR AL

31 December 2013 —T—=F+-A=+—H

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(a) (continued)
Notes:

(b)

©

©)

©)

(iii)

(v)

)

The rentals were recognised at prices based on mutual agreement
between the parties.

The sales to the associates were made according to the published
prices and conditions offered to the major customers of the Group.

The sales to a fellow subsidiary were made according to the
published prices and conditions offered to the major customers of
the Group.

The estate agency fee income from a fellow subsidiary was charged
at prices based on mutual agreement between the parties.

In the opinion of the directors, the above related party transactions
were conducted on normal commercial terms and in the ordinary
course of the Group's business.

Other transaction with related parties

0)

(i)

The Group's bank loans amounting to HK$3,179,750,000
(2012: Nil) were guaranteed by Shum Yip Group.

On 31 May 2013, the Group acquired the 100% equity
interest in Shenzhen Silicon Valley from Shum Yip Holdings
for a consideration satisfied by the allotment and issue
of 1,410,117,262 new shares of the Company and a
consideration payable of HK$508,907,000. Further details of
the transaction are included in note 38 to the consolidated

financial statements.

Commitments with related parties:
The Group entered into certain operating lease arrangements with

Shum Yip Holdings. The amount of lease expenses for the year

is included in note 42(a) to the financial statements. The Group

expects total lease expenses in 2014, 2015 and 2016 to be
approximately HK$6,396,434, HK$2,738,880 and HK$912,960,
respectively.

| 205 |
Shenzhen Investment Limited
RIERAB R A A
ANNUAL REPORT 2013 %R

42. BEMAER5 (&)

(a

(b)

©

(&)
GEX

() MEEHREFTHEHEERE

o

(i) MBEARZHEDRERET
FEBIBEFZEHBBERE
Wtk -

(i) MRARMERRZHEIRERE
HFAERTEZZTPZETRE
&R ARAEE o

(v) REFAZRHBARZHERES
WA TYRET S0 E e 2 (B
it o

(v) EBEERAR LABEMIXZE
AEEREXEBPR-REEG
RETZRS e

ERRARE S 2 HtE R 5

(i) 7 & [®3,179,750,0007% JT
(ZF——%: |) 2R7E
AT BRFEBER o

(i) R=ZFE—=FRA=+—
H "&EEBKRERXREE
) ROR YA Z100%8%
O REZEBREEREALT
1,410,117,2628 2 A 737 A%
I & 1 X {8508,907,000
BILZARIZNMN - R ZE
—THBHRNEGE VB WK
fiFE38 A ©

EHER T 2 AR
REFERE (KF) FTua TR
EHEZE FRAEERXSE
MR FHERM FE42Q@)FPHE - &
SEEH RZT—WFE . =%
—RAER-T—AFEZHERY
4 %8 9 Rl %) 56,396,43458 T
2,738,880/ 0 % 912,960 IT °
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42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
(d) Outstanding balances with related parties:

0)

(i)

(iii)

Included in the aggregate amount due to the ultimate
holding company under current liabilities is an amount of
HK$1,967,123,000 as at 31 December 2013 (31 December
2012: Nil), which is unsecured, bears interest at the one-
year benchmark lending rate of the PBOC and is repayable
on demand. In addition, included in the aggregate amount
due to the ultimate holding company under current liabilities
is an amount of HK$1,717,065,000 as at 31 December
2013 (31 December 2012: Nil), which bears interest at
9.9% per annum, is unsecured and repayable from 30
October 2014 to 8 December 2014. The remaining amount
due to the ultimate holding company is unsecured, interest-
free and has no fixed terms of repayment.

The amount due to the ultimate holding company under
non-current liabilities of HK$1,221,024,000 as at 31
December 2013 (31 December 2012: Nil), which bears
interest at 9.9% per annum, is unsecured and repayable on
9 September 2015

As disclosed in the consolidated statement of financial
position, the Group had an amount due to the
immediate holding company of HK$31,446,000 (2012:
HK$14,158,000). The amount is unsecured, interest-free
and has no fixed terms of repayment.

Details of the Group's amounts due from its joint ventures
are disclosed in notes 22 and 28 to the financial statements.
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42. BEMAER5 (&)

(d) HERAET 2 RER

0}

(i)

(iii)

o)
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ERARRIELES BIE
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42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
(d) Outstanding balances with related parties: (continued)

(V)

W)

(vi)

(vii)

Details of the Group’s amounts due from/to its associates as
at the end of the reporting period are included in notes 23,
28 and 33 to the financial statements.

Details of the Group’s amounts due from/to its fellow
subsidiaries as at the end of the reporting period are
included in notes 28 and 33 to the financial statements.

Details of the Group’s amounts due from/to non-controlling
shareholders of certain subsidiaries of the Group as at the
end of the reporting period are included in notes 28 and 33
to the financial statements.

Included in the assets and liabilities of the disposal group
classified as held for sale (note 12) are outstanding balances
with related parties as follows:

i. amounts of HK$690,000 due from associates included
in investments in associates, which are interest-free,

unsecured and have no fixed terms of repayment.

ii. amounts of HK$5,276,000 due to associates included
in other payables and accruals, which are interest-free,
unsecured and have no fixed terms of repayment.

iii. amounts of HK$24,926,000 due to certain non-
controlling shareholders of the disposal group included
in other payables and accruals, which are interest-free,
unsecured and have no fixed terms of repayment.
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42. BEMAER5 (&)
(d) =R 2 RERE @ (B)

)

W)

(vi)

(vii)

RBERR - AEBEKR,
RN ERBFRZFBE
W B % ] 3R I 5523 - 28 %
35 ©

RIPERR - REBEW A
ERERENB R RZREZH
15 B R B 7% TR 3K KT sE28 &
330

RBERAR - AEEEWR
ENAEBRETHERRZ
FEFERR AR R R IE Z S B R
B TR AR M 7E28 ]33 o

AADBRBEGFEZLE
HezEERBE (HE12)
B ER BB 5 2 RIE R 8RR
™

. AABMERARKREZ
EWEE & ARl S E A
690,000/ 7T 2 K18 -
ZHERE - EEAE
42 B FE B AR o

il SIS

i RTAEAMRE IR K
AHERZEMEE QT
& A /35,276,0007% JT
ZHE  ZRERE
BRI B B & S
IR -

il BT AE fth B A 5RIE K E
SERZEMNEEERES
ETHEERRRESER
24,926,000 T Z
B ZHERE - &K
1B EE T E R -



Notes to Financial Statements
B SRR M

31 December 2013 —E—=F+_-A=+—H

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 42. BB RG (&)
(e) Compensation of key management personnel of the () ZEEXTEEEAESZHME :
Group:
2013 2012
—E-=F —ET——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Short term employee benefits REEERA 14,491 11,026
Post-employment benefits RIREF 3,232 2402
Equity-settled share option expense VARR AN 32 A 2 B AR A <2 3,220 4,752
Total compensation paid to ENEZEEAEHSE
key management personnel ok 20,943 18,190
Further details of directors’ and the chief executive’'s emoluments BEEMeRRSTHRASMEZ
are included in note 8 to the financial statements. H— BN TSRS o
The related party transactions in respect of items (a)(1), (a)(2), BB Eua@)(): @)Q): (@)1
(a)(4) and (b) above also constitute connected transactions or M(b)EZ @A RS IMEK T
continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of HAFEIAZEFREZBER HK
the Listing Rules. FERERS -
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

43, BEEBNI 2T A
RIBEHIF - RS BESA SR T A

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments

as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: ZEEEEWT ¢
2013 =B =4
Group
rEE
Financial
assets at
fair value
through Available-
profit or for-sale
loss - held  Loans and financial
for trading  receivables assets Total
BREEAR
EftE2Z
SREE - EXRR AHHEZ
Financial assets SREE XS FE Wk EREE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FTERT FTET THERT
Loans to a joint venture (note 28) R—HAERRREZER
(FidzE28) - 3,248,844 - 3,248,844
Other long term assets (note 25) Htb REEE (Fi15E25) = 12,719 - 12,719
Available-for-sale investments AHERE - - 39,790 39,790
Trade receivables FEUSBR 3R - 416,122 - 416,122
Deposits and other receivables 7l & R H At R R
(note 28) (Ft7E28) - 731,484 - 731,484
Equity investments at fair value BRBRBEAAENEZ
through profit or loss RiERA 11,011 - - 11,011
Pledged deposits [REER IR - 30,871 - 30,871
Restricted cash RRHIRE - 913,383 - 913,383
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREeEEY - 6,534,049 - 6,534,049
11,011 11,887,472 39,790 11,938,273
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 43, REERB 2SI A (&)
(CONTINUED)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments RBEHR @ S EE#IzEmT A
as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: (continued) ZEREEWT : (58)
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost Total
REBHEATE
ZeRmAE et
Financial liabilities SREE HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET
Trade payables JEASTBR R 1,028,975 1,028,975
Other payables (note 33) H e FIE (H7E33) 2,710,419 2,710,419
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings #8877 R EMEE 24,289,373 24,289,373
Due to the immediate holding company  [Eff E#ZEIEM&A AFKIE 31,446 31,446
Due to the ultimate holding company JES B AR IR A R FA 5,119,292 5,119,292
Loans from associates (note 33) Bt AR B (M1FE33) 278,649 278,649
33,458,154 33,458,154
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The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments

as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: (continued)

43,

RESHSNZEMITA (&)

RIBERR - REERBF 2SR T A
ZEEEEMT : (B&)

2012 —E—-F
Group
REE
Financial
assets at
fair value
through Available-
profit or loss for-sale
- held for  Loans and financial
Financial assets CREE trading receivables assets Total
BaRAR
BitE 2
CREE - ERREKR AHEE2
FER S I SREE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Loans to a joint venture (note 28)  [M—[EA & D AIRM 2 B (HfzE28) - 2,148,394 - 2,148,394
Other long term assets (note 25)  EftRHAEE (FIFE25) = 12,439 - 12,439
Available-for-sale investments AHHERE - - 52,471 52,471
Trade receivables JEUTBR 3R = 254,857 = 254,857
Deposits and other receivables 7l & R HE A R OR
(note 28) (Ft7E28) - 879,089 - 879,089
Equity investments at fair value BRERRARENEL
through profit or loss MR & 10,296 - - 10,296
Pledged deposits BHEMER - 267,228 - 267,228
Restricted cash MR HIE 2 = 304,528 = 304,528
Cash and cash equivalents Re kR EEY - 6,734,052 - 6,734,052
10,296 10,600,587 52,471 10,663,354
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 43, REERB 2SI A (&)
(CONTINUED)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments RBEHR @ S EE#IzEmT A
as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: (continued) ZEEEENT : (8)
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost Total
REBHHATE
Financial liabilities cHMEE ZemeE et
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHET
Trade payables FETARFR 703,486 703,486
Other payables (note 33) Hb et zoE (MisE33) 3,053,729 3,053,729
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings #8877 R EMEE 22,210,362 22,210,362
Due to the immediate holding company  [Eff E#ZEIEM&A AFKIE 14,158 14,158
Due to the ultimate holding company FE S S 4R IR A B 5RIE 64,579 64,579
Loans from associates (note 33) BN m B (MizE33) 325,273 325,273
26,371,587 26,371,587
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 43, ZEESIzemI A (&)
(CONTINUED)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments RBEER @ S EE#IzEmT A
as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: (continued) ZEREAEWT « (&)
Company
L]
2013 2012
ZE-cE “3--f
Financial Financial
assets assets
at fair value at fair value
through Available- through Available-
profit or for-sale profit or forsale
loss - held ~ Loans and financial loss-held ~ Loans and financial
fortrading  receivables assets Total  fortiading  receivables assets Total
FRRER FRRRR
METEZ AnEEL
SREE- EXR e SREE- 83k AfHHE
Financial assets EHEE KRS EhsE  2eREE Eh RS EiGE  2eRAE &t

HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000 ~ HKS000  HKS00D  HKS000  HKS00O
TERn TEn TR TER TR ThR TR TR

Avallableforsale investments AT HERE - - 1,720 1,720 - - 1,720 1,720
Fquity investments at fairvalue  BBIEREA R EE2
through profit or loss RERE 11,011 - - 11,011 10,296 - - 10,296
Deposits and other receivables £ & A EUE
(note 28) (fi3£28) - 2176 - 2176 - 31,772 = 31,772
Due from subsidiaries EUHEAFZE - 7,268,199 - 7,268,199 - 5832920 - 5832920
Cash and cash equivalents ReRALEEY - 911,257 - 911,257 = 794,206 = 794,206
11,011 8,181,632 1,720 8,194,363 10,296 6,658,898 1,720 6,670914
| 213 |

Shenzhen Investment Limited
RIERAB R A A
ANNUAL REPORT 2013 %R



Notes to Financial Statements
B SRR M

31 December 2013 —E—=F+_-A=+—H

43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 43, ZEESIzemI A (&)
(CONTINUED)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments RIMEHR @ LS EEE 2T A
as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: (continued) ZEEEENT : (8)
Company
AN
2013 2012
—E-=F —T——F
Financial Financial
liabilities at liabilities at
amortised amortised
cost Total cost Total
BEBEAAE R HRK AR
FEzEE STEZERE
Financial liabilities cHAE & st af& et

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TER TET TiET

Loans from associates (note 33) BENFER (HEE33) 30,208 30,208 29,543 29,543
Interest-bearing bank and FERITREMEE

other borrowings 8,255,476 8,255,476 7,165,161 7,165,161
Due to the ultimate holding company B &I A BIFE 159,905 159,905 12,204 12,204
Due to subsidiaries JEASIBH B 2 AR IR 234,199 234,199 204,790 204,790

8,679,788 8,679,788 7,411,698 7,411,698

| 214 |
Shenzhen Investment Limited
RIERAE R A A
ANNUAL REPORT 2013 %R



Notes to Financial Statements

PSR AL

31 December 2013 —T—=F+-A=+—H

44. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s and the Company's
financial instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that

44, EMIBEZPAAEBERDARESE

e

REBRAR
ARE (REESR

TAZEEER

AZ &
BN A ERE AR E R

reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows: AN) ZATE
Group REE
Carrying amounts Fair values
BREE ARE
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-—= —T——F =ZE-= —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAT FTER FET
Financial assets SREE
Pledged deposits — non-current portion 2 EIRFH — FEENEAZEH 17,277 137,323 17,277 137,323
Other long term assets Hii REAEE 12,719 12,439 11,999 11,735
Available-for-sale investments AEHERE 39,790 52,471 39,790 52,471
Equity investments at fair value FRBRR AR B EZRHE
through profit or loss ®E 11,011 10,296 11,011 10,296
80,797 212,529 80,077 211,825
Financial liabilities SHAE
Interest-bearing bank and other FTERAREMEE
borrowings — non-current portion — JERNERER 12,167,504 13,236,124 12,167,504 13,236,124
Due to the ultimate holding A BR AR AR AR A R FIE
company — non-current portion — JEENERE 1,221,024 - 1,221,024 -
13,388,528 13,236,124 13,388,528 13,236,124
Company ZA/N
Carrying amounts Fair values
BREE ARE
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=f T ZEB-= —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FET TERT FET
Financial assets SREE
Equity investments at fair value BERBREAREFEZ
through profit or loss PR & 11,011 10,296 11,011 10,296
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE 1,720 1,720 1,720 1,720
12,731 12,016 12,731 12,016
Financial liabilities cHAE
Interest-bearing bank and other FERTREMEE
borrowings — non-current portion — JEBNERES 5 4,436,658 6,196,205 4,436,658 6,196,205
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44. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 44 SRMIAZARERAARESE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, restricted cash, short term pledged deposits, trade
receivables, deposits and other receivables, amounts due from/to
subsidiaries, trade payables, other payables, an amount due to the
immediate holding company and an amount due to the ultimate
holding company approximated to their respective carrying amounts
largely due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

The Group's corporate finance team headed by the finance manager
is responsible for determining the policies and procedures for the fair
value measurement of financial instruments. The corporate finance
team reports directly to the chief financial officer and the audit
committee. At each reporting date, the corporate finance team analyses
the movements in the values of financial instruments and determines
the major inputs applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed
and approved by the chief financial officer. The valuation process and
results are discussed with the audit committee twice a year for interim

and annual financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at
the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation
sale. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate
the fair values:

The fair values of non-current portion of pledged deposits, other long
term assets, interest-bearing bank and other borrowings and non-
current portion of an amount due to the ultimate holding company
have been calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows
using rates currently available for instruments with similar terms, credit
risk and remaining maturities. The Group's own non-performance risk
for interest-bearing bank and other borrowings as at 31 December
2013 was assessed to be insignificant.

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on quoted
market prices.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of

the Group's financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:
Group
As at 31 December 2013

44, TRIBEZARERAAESE

A% ()

DREERRE
TERITAEESBIAZ AR EHE
SMPHE -

URAEGTEZEE -
AEE
R-ZE—=F+=-A=+—H

Fair value measurement using

RAUTBBZARENE

Quoted
prices  Significant Significant
in active  observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
WERBTE EATERE EBEATTEER
ZHE BWAE BWAE
(%5—8) (%5=8) (%=8) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FTET FTET THER
Available-for-sale investments A ERE 27,037 - 12,753 39,790
Equity investments at fair value FRERRANENE
through profit or loss 2 RAEIRE 11,011 - - 11,011
38,048 - 12,753 50,801
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Assets measured at fair value: (continued)

As at 31 December 2012

44, TRITBEZAREBERRDS

REE

R (|)
UAREBZEE  (H)

R-B-—F+=A=+-8

Fair value measurement using

RANTEEBZDAEE

Quoted
prices  Significant Significant
in active  observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
RERMYE BEARER BATAHEER
2B BAE BAE
(B—E) (B=E) (HE=E) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET FET FET
Available-for-sale investments AIHHERE 32,773 - 19,698 52,471
Equity investments at fair value FRERRAAEAEZ
through profit or loss fEHES & 10,296 - - 10,296
43,069 = 19,698 62,767

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair value

as at 31 December 2013.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements

between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 for
both financial assets and financial liabilities (2012: Nil).
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44. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 44, EMIBZAREBERAAESE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) WEEE (&)
Assets for which fair values are disclosed: ERBEAAEBZEE -
Group REME
As at 31 December 2013 N=—=T—=H+=H=+—H

Fair value measurement using

RANTEEZzAREHE

Quoted
prices  Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
RERME EATEE EATAHHE
Z2HE WAE WAE
(%—FE) (5=F) (B=FE) et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET THET FHET
Pledged deposits — non-current portion 2 FFEK — FEENEAEE H - 17,277 - 17,277
Other long term assets HERHAEE - 11,999 - 11,999
- 29,276 - 29,276
As at 31 December 2012 R-ZFB——F+=-HA=+—8H

Fair value measurement using
RAATEEZ AR ES

Quoted

prices Significant Significant

in active  observable  unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

RERMS BAAEBRE EBATAEE

2B PN i A B
(5—F) (B=/g) (B=R) HEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT FAT FET
Pledged deposits — non-current portion & #E3H1EFK — JERNEIEE = 137,323 - 137,323
Other long term assets B RHAEE = 11,735 = 11,735
= 149,058 = 149,058
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44, FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 44, EMIBZAREBERAAESE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) WEEE (&)
Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed: EHEAAEZEE
Group REME
As at 31 December 2013 N=—=T—=H+=H=+—H

Fair value measurement using

KANATEEZAREHE

Quoted
prices  Significant Significant
in active  observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
REBME EAATEE EATAHHE
ZHE WAE WAE
(5—F8) (5=8) (B=FE) et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHERT FHERT FET
Interest-bearing bank and other FEESRITREMEE
borrowings — non-current portion — JEBNERER & - 12,167,504 - 12,167,504
Due to the ultimate holding FERT B AAE AR R B FRIE
company — non-current portion — JEBNHRER & - 1,221,024 - 1,221,024
- 13,388,528 - 13,388,528
As at 31 December 2012 W—®——&#+—A=+—A
Fair value measurement using
RARTEIEZ AR EE
Quoted
prices  Significant Significant
in active  observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
GRS EEAAEBR SEANAER
2B B AE s AE
(5—F) (BB (B=FE) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT FHET
Interest-bearing bank and other FERTREMEE
borrowings — non-current portion — JEBNEREL & - 13,236,124 - 13,236,124
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44, FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 44, EMIBZAREBERAAESE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) WEEE (&)
Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed: (continued) EHBEAALEBZEE  (H#)
Company NN
As at 31 December 2013 N=—=T—=H+=H=+—H

Fair value measurement using

KANATEEZAREHE

Quoted
prices  Significant Significant
in active  observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
REBME EAATEE EATAHHE
ZHE WAE WAE
(%—FE) (5=F) (B=FE) et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHERT FHERT FET
Interest-bearing bank and other ATRRITREMEE
borrowings - non-current portion — JEBNERE - 4,436,658 - 4,436,658
As at 31 December 2012 R-—B——H+=-H=+—H
Fair value measurement using
KANTEE®EZ A ETE
Quoted
prices  Significant Significant
in active  observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
RERMS BAREBE BEATAEE
Z5RIE A B A E
(F—E) (F==E) - ==) #wEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT FAT
Interest-bearing bank and other STRRITMEMEES
borrowings - non-current portion — FERNEREL - 6,196,205 - 6,196,205
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES AND 45 I EBEE 2 BNRBE

POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings, cash and cash equivalents and equity
investments. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to
raise finance for the Group's operations. The Group has various other
financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables and trade
payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and
equity price risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The interest rate risk of the Group is mainly due to the interest rate
fluctuations of its bank borrowings. Interest on these bank borrowings
is computed based on market rates.

The Group will constantly assess the interest rate risk it encounters to
decide whether it is required to hedge against the possible interest rate
risk that may arise.

On 31 December 2013, if the interest rate of bank borrowings
had increased/decreased by 0.5% and all other factors remained
unchanged, the profit after tax for the year of the Group and the
Company would have decreased/increased by approximately
HK$61,004,000 (2012: HK$50,235,000) and HK$36,721,000 (2012:
HK$31,855,000), respectively.
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES AND 45 I EBEE 2 BNRBE

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Foreign currency risk

Most of the operating income of the Group's business is in RMB
and the Group's assets held and all of the committed borrowings of
the Group are mainly denominated in RMB, except for certain US$-
denominated bank loans held by the Company.

During the year, HK$ depreciated compared to RMB. Management
believes that depreciation will not have any negative effect on the
Group and the Company. Hence, the Group has not adopted any
financial instruments for hedging purposes. However, the Group will
constantly assess the foreign exchange risk it encounters so as to
decide the hedging policy required to hedge against the possible
foreign exchange risk that may arise.

On 31 December 2013, if HK$ had appreciated/depreciated by 1%
against US$ and all other factors remained unchanged, the profit after
tax for the year of the Group and the Company could have increased/
decreased by HK$40,158,000 (2012: HK$45,292,000). The change
is mainly due to the net value changes of the exchange gains in US$-
denominated bank loans held by the Company.
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES AND 45. B EMER 2 B RBE

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Credit risk

The credit risk of the Group’s financial assets, which comprise cash
and cash equivalents, available-for-sale financial assets, trade and other
receivables, arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these instruments. The
Company is also exposed to credit risk through the granting of financial
guarantees, further details of which are disclosed in note 41(i) to the
financial statements.

To manage the risk, deposits are mainly placed with licensing banks
which are all high credit quality financial institutions. The Group trades
only with recognised and creditworthy third parties for the sales
of goods. The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales are
made to buyers with appropriate financial strength and appropriate
percentage of down payments. The Group would not release the
property ownership certificates to the buyers before the buyers fully
settle the payment. It also has other monitoring procedures to ensure
that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group reviews regularly the recoverable amount of each individual
trade receivable to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amounts. The Group has no significant concentrations
of credit risk, with exposure spread over a number of counterparties
and customers.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's exposure to credit
risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note 27 to the

financial statements.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk arises when the Group is unable to meet its current
liabilities that fall due. The Group's objective is to maintain a balance
between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of short
and long term bank loans. Through maintaining a reasonable proportion
in its asset and liability structure, the Group is able to meet its ongoing
financial needs.
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 45. BB EREE 2 BN RBE
POLICIES (CONTINUED) (%)
Liquidity risk (continued) REp MR ()
The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at the end of REEZ SRABERREHREIBAE
the reporting period is as follows: WA :
Group rEE
2013
—E-=F%
On Within One to Two to Over
demand  oneyear  twoyears three years three years Total
BREX -8 -E@F WME=F BA=F o

HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER TER

Interest-bearing bank and ATERTRAMEE

other borrowings 8,467 13,356,947 6,630978 3,030,319 3,430,899 26,457,610
Trade payables FERTAR R - 1,028975 - - - 1,028,975
Other payables (note 33) Hiter0A (fi33) - 2,710,419 - - - 2,710,419
Due to the immediate holding RN EERRARZE

company 31,446 - - - - 31,446
Due to the ultimate holding FERSRAER AR FIE

company 282,668 4,002,204 1,311,685 - - 5,596,557
Loans from associates (note 33) B RAREM (fi7F33) 278,649 - - - - 278,649
Total @t 601,230 21,098,545 7,942,663 3,030,319 3,430,899 36,103,656
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES AND

45, B EREE 2 BWRBUER

POLICIES (CONTINUED) (#&)
Liquidity risk (continued) REp MR ()
2012
—T——F
On Within One to Two to Over
demand oneyear  twoyears three years  three years Total
REX —FR —EMF WE=F  BE=F @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET THET THET T THET
Interest-bearing bank and SRR RAMEE
other borrowings 9,951 10,146,323 8,927,640 3,175,023  2,225974 24484911
Trade payables JERTBR R = 703,486 = = = 703,486
Other payables (note 33) Hit 308 (fi33) - 3,053,729 - - - 3,053,729
Due to the immediate holding BN EERRARE
company 14,158 = = = = 14,158
Due to the ultimate holding B SRR A B TR
company 64,579 - - - - 64,579
Loans from associates (note 33)  EFSAREN (H:33) 325273 - - - - 325273
Total HE 413961 13,903,538 8,927,640 3,175,023 2225974 28,646,136
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 45. BB EREE 2 BN RBE
POLICIES (CONTINUED) (%)
Liquidity risk (continued) REp MR ()
The maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities as at the end RAFIZ 2B BERREHRZEIBAE
of the reporting period is as follows: WA :
Company NN
2013
—E-=F%
On Within One to Two to Over
demand  oneyear  twoyears three years three years Total
BREX -8 -E@F WME=F BA=F o

HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER TER

Interest-bearing bank and STERTRAMEE

other borrowings - 3,981,394 2,691,473 346,592 1,635,779 8,655,238
Loans from associates BERNAER 30,208 - - - - 30,208
Due to the ultimate holding ER SRR A R FR

company 159,905 - - - - 159,905
Due to subsidiaries FERTHR 2 RISA 234,199 - - - - 234,199
Total by 424312 3,981,394 2,691,473 346,592 1,635,779 9,079,550
Guarantees given to banks for BHBAREREE

credit facilities granted to M mERITHEH < AR

subsidiaries (note 41(i)) (Fi=E410)) - - - 228,000 - 228,000
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Liquidity risk (continued)

45, B EREE 2 BWRBUER
(48)
FEN RS ()

2012
—E-Cf
On Within One to Two to Over
demand oneyear  twoyears three years  three years Total
REX —FR —EMF WE=F BR=4F @t

HK$000  HK$000 ~ HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR TR

Interest-bearing bank and SRR RAMEE

other borrowings - 1,161,372 3,774,444 2,633,477 - 7,569,293
Loans from associates Bk e X 29,543 - - - - 29,543
Due to the ultimate holding BER AR FIE

company 12,204 - - - - 12,204
Due to subsidiaries FERTH B A Rl E 204,790 = = - - 204790
Total 246,537 1,161,372 3,774,444 2,633,477 - 7,815,830
Guarantees given to banks for R BLRABREE

credit facilities granted to MmERITHE L 2 R

subsidiaries (note 41(i)) (FIEE41()) - - - - 730,000 730,000

Equity price risk

The equity price risk of the Group mainly arises from the changes in

market prices for held-for-trading equity investments. The book values

of this type of financial assets held by the Group are recognised

according to market quotes as at the end of the reporting period.

On 31 December 2013, if the price of listed equity securities held

by the Group had increased/decreased by 10%, and all other factors

remained unchanged and excluding tax items, the book values of the

listed equity securities of the Group and the Company would have
increased/decreased by HK$1,101,000 (2012: HK$1,030,000) and
HK$1,101,000 (2012: HK$1,030,000), respectively.

| 228 |
Shenzhen Investment Limited
RIERAE R A A
ANNUAL REPORT 2013 %R

FR 1B = B
AEEZRERREZREFERSR
REREZMEZE - WERAKERE
ZERMEEZ REETRBNRESRR
Z IS REER

R-Z—=%+-A=+—0 fix&E
BEEr EMBRAES ZER LR
T#10% - A H i ERGRE T
(TEIEHE) AIREERAQFZE
TMRAZER ZEEEBS S E M
B 41,101,000 7t (Z & — = ¢
1,030,0005% 7t) & 1,101,0005 7t (=
T——4 : 1,030,000/87T) °



Notes to Financial Statements
B SRR M

31 December 2013 —T—=F+-A=+—H

45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES AND 45. B EMER 2 B RBE

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Capital management

The objectives of the Group's capital management policy are to ensure
the financing capabilities of the Company in running its operation on a
going concern basis, to maintain an optimal capital structure, to reduce
capital cost and to maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages and adjusts its capital structure appropriately
according to the specific features of the risks of its assets and the
changes in various economic conditions. Through adjustments
in dividend distribution, injections and repayments of capital by
shareholders or issuance of new shares, the Group is able to maintain
an optimal capital structure of the Company.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt
divided by equity attributable to owners of the parent. The Group's
policy is to keep the gearing ratio at a reasonable level. Net debt
is interest-bearing bank and other borrowings less cash and cash
equivalents, pledged deposits and restricted cash. The gearing ratios as
at the end of the reporting periods are as follows:

(&)

EXER

AEEEAEERRZ BRNREAR
BlZ AR ARG ELEEERL
LER - WRENEFBICNERRRE -
WD BEAREAREBREERAL

REEREE S EE I ERBRE R
BEREEANTHERE 2 B ES HE
BARBETERLAE - BRFER
Bk - BEREEREBEENLEITH
Mg REERAGARRZEREEE
FrEBILKF -

AEEEREARER (BFAGRMN
BRRABEEANRERER) BEEER -
AEBZBRIBERNABERERES
BKF - FERABFBRRITREMEE
BRERBESEEY  DEATERKRE
RERE - RBEPRRZERAERN
T~

Group AEE
2013 2012
—E2—-= —E——4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings & 8 R77T R EMEE (HizE31)
(note 31) 24,289,373 22,210,362
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (note 30) & : & RIS ZEY (KM3E30) (6,534,049) (6,734,052)
Pledged deposits — non-current EHEMIFR — JEBNEA R
portion (note 30) (Ft7£30) (17,277) (137,323)
Pledged deposits — current portion EEFRFR — BNEE D
(note 30) (fzE30) (13,594) (129,905)
Restricted cash (note 30) ZREIRE (MFE30) (913,383) (304,528)
Net loans FER 16,811,070 14,904,554
Equity attributable to owners of the parent &2 & B ARG H#ZS 25,337,811 17,547,896
Gearing ratio BEARBEXR 66% 85%
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46. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

0]

(iD)

On 27 January 2014, an acquisition agreement (the “Acquisition
Agreement”) was entered into by the Company, Shum Yip
Holdings, Shum Yip Group and Shenzhen Nongke Group
Limited (“Nongke”) (R 2%t & B A R 2 al). Nongke is a
fellow subsidiary of the Company. Pursuant to the Acquisition
Agreement, the Company has conditionally agreed to acquire the
entire issued share capital of Shenzhen Bio-Agriculture Company
Limited, the intermediate holding company of Nongke, from
Shum Yip Holdings for a consideration of RMB5,623,000,000
(equivalent to HK$7,228,760,110), subject to adjustments (if
any). Approximately 50% of the consideration will be paid by the
issue of shares of the Company to Shum Yip Holdings at the date
of completion of the Acquisition. The remaining portion of the
consideration will be paid by the Company in cash. Further details
of the Acquisition Agreement are set out in the announcement of
the Company dated 27 January 2014.

On 20 December 2013, the Group entered into an agreement
with Shenzhen Metro Group Co., Ltd. (“SZMC") (&I i 5
AR AA]) to acquire a 50% equity interest in Shenzhen Langtong
Property Development Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhen Langtong”) (&3
MEBEHEREZEARAF]), a subsidiary of SZMC, for a cash
consideration of RMB156,000,000. In addition, the Group shall
repay an amount of RMB1,052,000,000, which represented 50%
of the land premium of a parcel of land owned by Shenzhen
Langtong, to SZMC on behalf of Shenzhen Langtong. The land
premium was previously prepaid by SZMC to the relevant PRC
authorities on behalf of Shenzhen Langtong. Shenzhen Langtong
plans to build and operate residential and commercial properties
on the parcel of land as abovementioned. The transaction was
completed on 25 January 2014.

Because the acquisition of Shenzhen Langtong was effected
shortly before the date of approval of these financial statements,
it is not practicable to disclose further details of the acquisition.
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46.

47.

48.

Notes to Financial Statements

PSR AL

31 December 2013 —T—=F+-A=+—H

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(CONTINUED)

(i) On 24 January 2014, Coastal Greenland, an associate of the
Company, announced a plan to issue 1,395,291,428 open offer
shares at a price of HK$0.25 per open offer share by way of one
open share for every two existing shares held by the shareholders.
The Company didn't take up its entitlements under the open offer.
Upon completion of the open offer on 14 March 2014, the equity
interest held by the Company in Coastal Greenland decreased
from 22.62% as at 31 December 2013 to 15.08%. The loss
on deemed disposal before tax is expected to be approximately
HK$43,904,000.

(iv) On 28 January 2014, the Company granted a total of
123,134,000 share options at an exercise price of HK$2.85 per
share to certain directors, officers and employees of the Group
under the New Scheme. The relevant share options shall be
exercisable for the period from the expiry of 2 years from the
grant date and up to 5 years from the grant date on proportional
basis.

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

The comparative statement of profit or loss and operating segment
information have been re-presented as if the operation discontinued
during the current year had been discontinued at the beginning of the
comparative period (note 12).

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by
the board of directors on 31 March 2014.
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43,904,000/8 7T °
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Property List
ME—BEXR

Group | — Property interest held by the Company under development and for future development

B—8 —FARRARARRTREGHERRE ZYFER

Interest Expected

to the Land Area Total GFA  Completion

No. Project/Property Address Use Company (sqm) (sqm) Year

ARMFE hEE REAREEE
F% EE /WEER 3k B#& i (E5XK) (FAK) BIHATIFH
RIS

1 Dangxiao South Project Huizhou, Guangdong  Res./Com. 100% 72,922 297,505 2018
ERER BREZIMNM €/ 1%

2 Wanlin Lake South Land Huizhou, Guangdong ~ Res./Com. 100% 39,275 70,000 2015
EmmRin (HELEN) BREZINM FE /1%

3 Garden Hill (1) Huizhou, Guangdong ~ Res./Com. 100% 99,788 310,670 No Plans

EEYAES:0b BREZIMNM e/ B% REiEl

4 Garden Hill (3) Huizhou, Guangdong ~ Res./Com. 100% 129,506 365,461 2016-2018
eIy b:0b BREZINM FE /%

5 Noah Forrest A (remaining) Changsha, Hunan Res./Com. 100% 27,732 99,835 No Plans

o LM TO B AL MEARDT e/ B% REqEl

6 Taizhou land Taizhou, Jiangsu Res./Com. 100% 262,480 726,075 2018
ZM B LA L3 IERE RN FE /%

7 Ruicheng (remaining) Changsha, Hunan Res./Com. 80% 52,930 156,430 2017
S =5 HMEARAT FE /%

8 Splendid city (3-4) Jiangyan, Jiangsu Res./Com. 100% 46,675 140,025 2018
RAER3-45 BB ZIEM e/ B%

9 Splendid city south Jiangyan, Jiangsu Res./Com. 100% 106,003 300,027 No Plans

WAZH AR IBEZIEM FE/B% N EIR- |
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Property List
ME—BEXR

Group | — Property interest held by the Company under development and for future development

B—8 —FARRARARRTREGHERRE ZYFER

Interest Expected
to the Land Area Total GFA  Completion
No. Project/Property Address Use Company (sqm) (sqm) Year
ARG BEER RAREER
Fs% BR/W¥EE i3t JiikeS BE  (FHK) (EFK) RBrtxEIFEH
10 Yundonghai Garden Phase 1 Sanshui District, Res./Com. 100% 36,756 26,464 No Plans
Foshan, Guangdong
REZRE (R—) BRI LHERHH BREBUT=KE {=/ 8% AHfE
11 Yundonghai Garden Phase 2 Sanshui District, Res./Com. 100% 34,160 88,390 No Plans
Foshan, Guangdong
REERE (WRZIBE) EREBLUT=KE FE/B% ABaTEl
12 Yundonghai Garden Phase 3 Sanshui District, Res./Com. 100% 221,480 303,253 No Plans
Foshan, Guangdong
REZRE (HR=) BREBUT=KER {EX/B% AEaEl
13 Yundonghai Garden Phase 4 Sanshui District, Res./Com. 100% 332,598 246,275 No Plans
Foshan, Guangdong
REZRE RUEER)SE) BREBUT=KE {X/ 8% AATEl
14 Huizhou West Train Station Huizhou, Guangdong ~ Res./Com. 70% 148,858 446,492 2017
BN KBTS BREZMM /%
15 Saina Bay Phase 2 Heyuan, Guangdong  Res./Com. 100% 137,805 45,085 2016
IR 2 BRE MR /%
16 Saina Bay highrise Heyuan, Guangdong  Res./Com. 100% 19,333 100,824 2017
RENERERIE BRE MR /%
17 Saina Bay (remaining) Heyuan, Guangdong  Res./Com. 100% 551,448 792,841 2017
REREZEIIAE BRE R e
18 Wuhan Nanhu Rose Bay Phase 4 Wuhan, Hubei Res. 75% 43,922 107,439 2016
RN ERABREN S LA ET FE
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Property List
ME—BEXR

Group | — Property interest held by the Company under development and for future development

B—8 —FARRARARRTREGHERRE ZYFER

Interest Expected
to the Land Area Total GFA  Completion
No. Project/Property Address Use Company (sqm) (sqm) Year
ARfE  BHEE REBRFEEE
F% EB/WEEE 3k Jiike BE (EHX) (EHXK) BAEIER
19 Chengdu Yihu Rose Bay Phase 2-4 Chengdu, Sichuan Res. 53% 76,000 383,000 2016
RAKE BB - = - T M)l B & fFE
20 Chengdu North New District Chengdu, Sichuan Res. 75% 119,000 530,955 No Plans
RAKEILHFEIEE M)l B FE AEEHE
21 Wuhan Bio Valley Phase 1-2 Wuhan, Hubei Complex 53% 347,000 816,653 2016-2018
RARNEEYABE— =5 LR EN e
22 Chegongmiao redevelopment project Futian, Shenzhen Ind. & Com. 75% 7,945 107,450 2016
BRARME-EHMET—H wmEHE TXREE
23 Guanlan Rose Garden Baoan, Shenzhen Res. & Com. 38% 26,695 154,830 2016
RABRITRY AIMEZE FEREE
24 Kashi Phase 1 Kashi, Xinjiang Res. 100% 17,129 59,952 No Plans
FERTEEAE—H HERA £ AEaHE
25 Kashi Phase 2.1 Kashi, Xinjiang Res. 100% 32,245 78,000 No Plans
FERTEEAEZHIR HERA £ AEaHE
26 Kashi Phase 2.2 Kashi, Xinjiang Res. 100% 32,245 78,000 No Plans
FERTEEAEZME HERA FE AEaHE
27 Chaohu Royal Spring South Phase 1 Chaohu, Anhui Resort landscape 100% 59,978 17,673 2016
SHERETHER ZHAE RN REE R
28 Chaohu Royal Spring South Phase 2 Chaohu, Anhui Resort landscape 100% 59,978 17,673 2018
SR EE_#EE ZHAE RN REE R
29 Chaohu Royal Spring North Phase 1 Chaohu, Anhui Resort landscape 100% 41,345 31,485 2015

EHtRET—HER

ZHAEMH

R R
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Property List
ME—BEXR

Group | — Property interest held by the Company under development and for future development

B—8 —FARRARARRTREGHERRE ZYFER

Interest Expected

to the Land Area Total GFA  Completion

No. Project/Property Address Use Company (sqm) (sqm) Year

ARG BEER RAREER
Fs% BR/W¥EE i3t JiikeS BE  (FHK) (FAK) BizIFEH
30 Chaohu Royal Spring North Phase 2 Chaohu, Anhui Resort landscape 100% 38,699 33,170 2017
SREEE-HER ZHEE MM A
31 Chaohu Sport Garden Chaohu, Anhui Resort landscape 100% 114,399 - 2016
EHBEAREE ZHEE MM A
32 Yundonghai Hotel Sanshui District, Com. 100% 90,016 90,016 2016
Foshan, Guangdong

SKREEE BREHLT=KE HEF

33 Sungang project Luohu, Shenzhen Complex 95% 35,076 264,300  2016-2022
R ARE YT Fa

34 Qingshuihe Auto Park Phase 3 Luohu, Shenzhen Ind. 95% 6,533 26,100 2017
BBl A E R E X B =5 YA I

35 Qingshuihe Auto Park Phase 4 Luohu, Shenzhen Ind. 95% 8,727 26,000 No Plans

BT BB S B i 5 B YR Ix AATE

36 Maanshan Shumyip Phase 2 Ma'anshan, Anhui Res. 99.5% 189,927 643,574 2020
REERT_H ZREBRILT FE

37 Maanshan Shumyip Phase 3 Ma'anshan, Anhui Res. 99.5% 98,765 334,832 2017
REERF=H ZREBRILT FE

Sub-total /N5 3,765,373 8,316,754
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Property List
ME—BEXR

Group | — Property interest held by the Company under development and for future development

B—8 —FARRARARRTREGHERRE ZYFER

Interest Expected

to the Land Area Total GFA  Completion

No. Project/Property Address Use Company (sqm) (sqm) Year

AEME  AHER RIREER
F¥ BB /LR i3t i} s (FAXK) (FAK) BizIFEH
EEER

38 European Garden Phase 3 Dongguan, Guangdong Res./Com. 100% 43,120 54,131 2014
BRH=5 BRAREM FE/ %

39 Splendid City Phase 2.1 Jiangyan, Jiangsu Res./Com. 100% 46,430 105,272 2014
RAZI2.1 5 IEHAZIET FE /T

40 Splendid City Phase 2.2 Jiangyan, Jiangsu Res./Com. 100% 23,350 100,807 2016
RABEH2.25 IHAZIET e/

41 Jinbang Hill Phase 8.2 Huizhou, Guangdong  Res./Com. 100% 22,631 80,577 2014
2118. 25 EREBEMm e/

42 Jinbang Hill Phase 8.3 Huizhou, Guangdong ~ Res./Com. 100% 32,264 124,227 2015
2118.354 EREBMM e/

43 Jinbang Hill Phase 8.4 Huizhou, Guangdong  Res./Com. 100% 26,685 62,952 2015
211845 BRABMNM e/

44 Ruicheng Phase 1.2b Changsha, Hunan Res./Com. 80% 45,000 86,715 2014
E41.2b8] WEERDT e/

45 Ruicheng Phase 2 Changsha, Hunan Res./Com. 80% 57,906 197,535 2015-2016
B2 WEE DT e/ ¥
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Property List

Y S

B

Group | — Property interest held by the Company under development and for future development

B—8 —FARRARARRTREGHERRE ZYFER

Interest Expected
to the Land Area Total GFA  Completion
No. Project/Property Address Use Company (sqm) (sqm) Year
ARG HHEE RABEER
Fs% BR/W¥EE 31k JiikeS BE  (FHK) (EFK) RBrtxEIFEH
46 Shumyip City Phase 3 Shunde, Foshan, Res./Com. 100% 142,546 386,532  2015-2016
Guangdong
JBE=RER (Z5) BREABLTIEEE GE/ B
47 Jinshazhou Phase 1 Guangzhou, Res./Com. 100% 53,238 185,626 2014
Guangdong
BMeRE (—H) BREEMT e/ BE
48 Jinshazhou Phase 2 Guangzhou, Res./Com. 100% 41,281 164,712 2015
Guangdong
BNeRE (Z5) EREEMm e/
49 Wuhan Nanhu Rose Bay Wuhan, Hubei Res. 75% 26,443 86,160 2014-2015
RANBERSABOLE I ERET fFE
50 Upper Hiles service apartment Futian, Shenzhen Res. 100% 24,956 170,720 2014
RE L (BlzA) BE (tR) AImEAR fFE
51 Upper Hiles service south Futian, Shenzhen Complex 100% 96,266 650,190 2016-2017
A& (Blz#a) BB (BRE) AImEAR Fa
52 Qingshuihe Auto Park Phase 2 Luohu, Shenzhen Ind. 95% 20,243 81,000 2014
BT BB SE i E X B — R R I%
53 Changzhou Shumyip Phase 1 Changzhou, Jiangsu Res. 100% 12,120 37,099 2014
EMIREE—H TERE BMm FE
54 Changzhou Shumyip Phase 2 Changzhovu, Jiangsu Res. 100% 32,640 125,164 2016
wMNEE 5 L& BMT FE
55 Maanshan Shumyip Phase 1.2 Ma'anshan, Anhui Res. 99.5% 78,177 197,166 2015
REER A ZRABRIT FE
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Property List
ME—BEXR

Group | — Property interest held by the Company under development and for future development

B—8 —FARRARARRTREGHERRE ZYFER

Interest Expected
to the Land Area Total GFA  Completion
No. Project/Property Address Use Company (sqm) (sqm) Year
AEME  AHER RIREER
F¥ BB /LR 3t i} s (FAXK) (FAK) BizIFEH
56 Tanglang Metro property development project  Nanshan, Shenzhen Res./Com. 50% 43,585 261,510  2016-2017
BERAME FEEE* YT LR /%
57 Sungang Project Phase 1 Luohu, Shenzhen Complex 95% 18,600 120,000 2017
BmmnaBEn—5 YT &R e
Sub-total 7Nzt 887,481 3,278,095
Total &5t 4,652,854 11,594,849
& The relevant procedures for the Tanglang Project transactions were completed in = BEHREERSNEBFEN T —NFE—A
January 2014. The Company has 50% of interest in that project. The project will SERK ° ANARIEXIE B AR A50% ¢ A
be accounted for using the equity method. RERIARFIERKF °
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Property List
ME—BEXR

Group Il — Property interest held by the Company for sales

FTHE —FRRRABEEHEZYEES
Interest to the Total TGFA  Completion
No.  Project/Property Address Use Company (sq.m.) Year
58 BEEEE

F¥ HEE/WEER ik iife3 ik (F75K) TIEH

58  Purple Kylin Hill Shenzhen, Guangdong Res. 100% 1,844 2011
ZEELTEE BRA R F=E

59  Shunde Shum Yip City Shunde District, Foshan City, Com. & Res. 100% 44276 2012-2013
Phase | & II Guangdong
IR RS — R =5 BREABILTIEER BEREE

60  Longgang Pingshan Shenzhen, Guangdong Com. & Res. 100% 32,132 2012-2013
Dongsheng Shidai Phase | & Il
EETILRFRER - R BRARIIT HEREE

61  Longgang Kengzi Yuyuan Shenzhen, Guangdong Res. 100% 16,225 2012
BT EE BRE AT F=E

62 Zhongxin Keji Building Shenzhen, Guangdong Off. 100% 9,572 2001
RERBRAE BRE R /N

63 Ruicheng Phase | Changsha, Hunan Res. 80% 15,604 2012
B —H HEERDT FE

64  Huizhou Wanlin Lake Huizhou, Guangdong Com. & Res. 100% 16,090  2008-2012
BINEM EREBMM HEREE

65  Garden Hill Huizhou, Guangdong Com. & Res. 100% 49,771 2012-2013
Fil#%8 BRABMNT HEREE

66  Euro-view Garden Phase | & Il Dongguan, Guangdong Res. 100% 68,272 2012
BB — R ERERZEM FE

67  Jinxiu Jiangcheng Phase | Taizhou, Jiangsu Res. 100% 13,351 2011
SRR —8 LEA RN F=E

68  Shenyang Wuai Shengang Shenyang, Liaoning Com. & Res. 74.68% 55,728 2011
Bus Station and
Meibo Trading Centre
BELERBRELR EELEBD BEREE
XEE SR
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Property List
ME—BEXR

Group Il — Property interest held by the Company for sales

BoE —FRRRKEEEECYFES
Interest to the Total TGFA  Completion
No.  Project/Property Address Use Company (sq.m.) Year
£E HEEER

R EB/YXER it ik Fifti (F5XK) TIFH

69  Terra Building Shenzhen, Guangdong Ind. 75% 52,454 2012
ES/AYNE ERERYIT I%

70 Nanhu Rose Bay Phase I to IV Wuhan, Hubei Com. & Res. 75% 56,893 20122013
HHRE =M LB E T BEREE

71 Yihu Rose Garden Phase I-I Chengdu, Sichuan Com. & Res. 52.5% 15,435 20122013
TR BRAE - /)l & B BEREE

72 Tian'an Long Garden Futian, Shenzhen Res. 37.5% 8,576 2008
ALIEE A & F=E

73 Tian'an Panyu Phase V to VII Panyu, Guangdong Ind. & Res. 37.5% 102,714 2009-2013
AZBBLELH EREHER TEREE

74 Tian'an Nanhai New Cyber-City Nanhai, Guangdong Ind. 33.800 1,531 2013
Phase V
AL EHEHH T BREME I%

75  Tian'an Changzhou Shanggu Changzhou, Jiangsu Ind. & Res. 37.5% 105,599  2010-2012
BMRLHA THE BN I¥REE

76 Tian'an Jiangyin Cyber-City Jiangyin, Jiangsu Ind. 37.5% 67,839  2012-2013
Phase |
RETRHHEL—H TEEIIR™ I%

77  Tian'an Dongguan New Cyber-City Dongguan, Guangdong Ind. 29.3% 92,032 2012-2013
Phase |
AL REHEHH—H EREREM I%

78  Tian'an Chongging Cyber-City Phase |  Chongging Ind. 37.5% 147,254 2012
REEEYEH—H EREm I%

79  Tian'an Longgang New Cyber-City Shenzhen, Guangdong Ind. 37.5% 17,390 2012
Phase Ill
R AR = BRARYIT I%*

80  Tian'an Tianjin Cyber-City Phase | Xiging, Tianjin Ind. 37.5% 82,064 2013
REREYEH—H AEMESR Ix
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Property List
ME—BEXR

Group Il — Property interest held by the Company for sales
FTHE —FRRRABEEHEZYEES
Interest to the Total TGFA  Completion

No.  Project/Property Address Use Company (sq.m.) Year
£ HREME
F% BE/MELRE il ik Pt s (EHXK) TIER
81  Boxing Building Luohu, Shenzhen Off. 95.4% 42,322 2013
BEAE I WAE
82  Coastal International Centre Suzhou, Jiangsu Com. & Res. 100% 18,045 2009
— Shop & Apt.
HEBEERRL - BERAE LEEEMT BEREE
83 Shumyip Huafu Maanshan, Anhui Com. & Res. 99.5% 49,799 2013
REENT ZHESRLT HELEE
Sub-total /)Nt 1,182,812
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Group Il — Property interest held by the Company for investment

Property List
ME—BEXR

F=HE —-FATREEEREZWEER
Interest to the Total GFA  Completion
No.  Project/Property Address Use Company (sq.m.) Year
NG HREME
F% B8R/ MELE 3k itk FribREs (EHXK) TIEH
84 Shun Hing Square Shennan Zhong Road, Jiefang Road ~ Com., Off,, 100% 18,367 1996
and Baoan Road, Luohu, Shenzhen Res. and Carpark
FEE% AR T 28 8 [ K Pl R R AR AR HE BAE
ERERR FEREES
85  Shum Yip Centre Shennan Zhong Road, Luohu, Com. and Off. 100% 7423 1997
Shenzhen
RER D AT &SRR BERRDAE
86  Hua Min Building Renmin Nan Road, Com./Res., 50% 5,853 1993
Luohu, Shenzhen Com. and
Carpark
ERAE AlmENEAREE w/
REES
87  Hua Min Building Renmin Nan Road, Com./Res. 100% 1,377 1993
Luohu, Shenzhen
ERAE R REARBR m/
88  Shum Yip Building Wenjin Zhong Road, Luohu, Shenzhen Off. 100% 3,931 1991
REAE YT SRR B WAE
89  Shen Gang Garden Shennan Dong Road, Luohu, Com. and Res. 80% 3,380 1994
Shenzhen
R IEE TR T 28 40 I R P R B mEREE
90  Che Gong Miao Ind. Zone Futian, Shenzhen Com., Off,, Ind,, 75% 132,709 1994-2010
Res. and Carpark
BRABTERE R [SE N
I% £k
FES
91  No.10 Fuxing Nan Road Futian, Shenzhen Res. 75% 65 1990
BEEKI0% AImEHR &=
92 Shenhua Science & Technology Park  Meilin Road, Futian, Shenzhen Ind. 75% 15,341 1994
NER R IR B R I%
93 Shop in No.117 Fuxing Road Futian, Shenzhen Com. 100% 50 1993
BEKINTHES AImEHR [
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Property List
ME—BEXR

Group Il — Property interest held by the Company for investment
B=HE —FRRAEEEREZYERER
Interest to the Total GFA  Completion
No.  Project/Property Address Use Company (sq.m.) Year
N BESEEE
F¥ EE/WEER ik i} Frit s (F75K) EIER
94 Shen Gang Xin Cun Luohu, Shenzhen Ind. and Carpark 80% 8,913 1992
RBET s sk IXREES
95  Fuxing Building No.9 Fuxing Road, Futian, Shenzhen  Com., Off. and 100% 1,593 1993
Carpark
BERE AR R 2 Ko [EE R /N
REES
96  Tian'an Che Gong Miao Ind. Zone Futian, Shenzhen Off,, Ind., Res. 37.5% 51,587  2000-2005
and Carpark
ARENFTIER AYmiEHE YN
FEREES
97  Tian'an Nanhai New Cyber-City Nanhai, Guangdong Ind. and Carpark 33.8% 34,204 2011
Phase Il
PNy i EREEE I:REFES
98  Tian'an Panyu New Cyber-City Panyu, Guangdong Ind., Res. and 37.5% 30,908 2011
Carpark
RLZH BB BRAER I% xR
FES
99  Tian'an Longgang New Cyber-City Shenzhen, Guangdong Com. and Ind. 37.5% 31,627 2011
RLHRE MBS HTH BRE R BERIE
100  Tian'an Dongguan New Cyber-City Dongguan, Guangdong Ind. 29.3% 2,833 2012
RRREHIEH ERERZM I%
101  Shenrong Building Futian, Shenzhen Com. and Res. 40% 6,884 2000
REAE AImEAR BEREE
102 Huagang Xin Cun Futian, Shenzhen Res. 80% 2,199 1995
EHATH AImEAR F=E
103 Yitai Centre Luohu, Shenzhen Com. 100% 627 1995
TR AImERR HE
104 Shum Yip Garden Futian, Shenzhen Com. 100% 2,646 2002
RETLE AImEHR LS
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Group Il — Property interest held by the Company for investment

Property List
ME—BEXR

B=E —ARAEEEREZYFEER
Interest to the Total GFA  Completion
No.  Project/Property Address Use Company (sq.m.) Year
N BESEEE

R BB/ YXER i3t iife3 Frib s (F5XK) TEIER

105  Sungang Warehouse Zone Baoan Bei Road, Luohu, Shenzhen Ind. and Com. 95.4% 88,858  1990-2002
BHEER AR 28 41 B 20t B TERBE

106 Composite Building on Taoyuan Road Baoan Bei Road, Luohu, Shenzhen Com./Res. 95.4% 4813 1991
hREEaE AR 28 411 B 20t B A

107  Dormitory Building on Taoyuan Road  Baoan Bei Road, Luohu, Shenzhen Com./Res. 95.4% 4835 1988
HRRESE AR 28 41 B 20t B [

108  Zijing Yuan Futian, Shenzhen Carpark 100% 7,257 1997
e A & &5

109 Jinze Bldg. Tianhe District, Guangzhou Res. 80% 241 1997
2ERE BNTRA R F=E

110 Guangzhou Fuxing Com. & Huangpu Da Road, Tianhe District, Off. 80% 151 1997
Trading Bldg. Guangzhou
BNEEEEAR BMmRAREHAE MAZE

111 S.Z Int'l. Trust and Investment Junction of Zhenxin Road and Off 75% 1,317 1990
Corp. Building Shangbu Zhong Road, Futian,

Shenzhen

A ERETERERARAE AImERREEE L ESTREIR HAZ

112 Shenyang Wuai Bus Station Shenyang, Liaoning Com. and Ind. 74.68% 27,853 1994-1996
EHRERER BRERRGH BERTE

113 Shenyang Wuai Shengang Bus Station ~ Shenyang, Liaoning Com. and Carpark 74.68% 86,645 2011
and Meibo Trading Centre
ELOEREREUNERESTL BERESGT BEREES

114 Coastal International Centre Suzhou, Jiangsu Com. and Off. 100% 38,562 2009
B E RO L&A FRN T BERBRE

115 Chengdu Jinxiu Workshop Chengdu, Sichuan Com. and Carpark 73% 30,085 2008
PSRRI M)l & B BEREES
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Property List
ME—BEXR

Group Il — Property interest held by the Company for investment
B=HE - FORBEEREZVERES

Interest to the Total GFA  Completion
No.  Project/Property Address Use Company (sq.m.) Year
AT BESEEE
R BB/ YXER i3t ik Frib s (F5XK) TIEH
116 Kezhigu Shenzhen, Guangdong Com., Hotel & 100% 307,382 2014
Off.
fza BRARYIT ¥ EER
NS
117  Pengji Properties Shenzhen, Guangdong Com., Res., Ind. 100% 275,447  1983-2005
and Carpark
BEmE ERERIT Hx% EE
T4REES
Sub-total /JN&t 1,235,963
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Property List
ME—BEXR

Group IV — Property interest held by the Company for self-occupation

EmE -—AAREAFEERZYFEER
Interest to the Total GFA  Completion
No.  Project/Property Address Use Company (sq.m.) Year
AT BESEEE
R BB/ YXER i3t ik Pt (F5XK) TIEH
118  Shum Yip Centre Shennan Zhong Road, Luohy, Off. 100% 5,559 1997
Shenzhen

RER L RN 2 MR R A R B FH/NE

119  Song Ping Shan Estate Futian, Shenzhen Res. 100% 77 1996
BmELEEE YRR R e

120 Tian Yuan Xin Cun Futian, Shenzhen Res. 100% 103 1997
BT Y [MEHE e

121 Chaohu Shumyip Hot Spring Chachu, Anhui Hotel 100% 34,722 2012
REF SR ZREEHT i

122 Jinhui Hujing Garden Huizhou, Guangdong Res. 100% 326 2008
SENSTEE BREBMT F=E

123 Heyuan Agile Garden Heyuan, Guangdong Res. 100% 384 2009
R E IR BREMRMm FE

124 Yitai Centre Luohu, Shenzhen Res. 100% 337 1995
AL AR FE

125 Shumyip Coast Baoan, Shenzhen Com 100% 3,729  2005-2008
REFER MIMEZ R EES

126  Shenfa Garden Luohu, Shenzhen Res. 100% 86 1994
REIEE AT ERR FE

127  Cai Tian Ming Yuan Futian, Shenzhen Res. 100% 324 2001
MR AYImiEmR R e

128 Block 611, Ba Gua Ling Futian, Shenzhen Ind. 100% 9,418 1985
NHE6114R A1 H I%

129 Factory in Xuexiang Village Longgang, Shenzhen Ind. 100% 2,168 2005
e Y ERER I%

130 Factory in Xia Shijia Village Baoan, Shenzhen Ind. 100% 5,088 1990's
TRENBE AMIMEZ R I%
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Property List
ME—BEXR

Group IV — Property interest held by the Company for self-occupation
FOE -—-AORBEEERZYERES

Interest to the Total GFA  Completion
No.  Project/Property Address Use Company (sq.m.) Year
AT HEEER

R BB/ YXER 4t ik Pt (FHK) TIEH

131 Block 8 Peng Sheng Village Futian, Shenzhen Res. 100% 47 1992
IR ABIR AT iEE R EE

132 Block 51, Ba Gua Ling Futian, Shenzhen Res. 100% 35 1995
NEES1R Az & EE

133 Block 58 Peng Xing Garden Luohu, Shenzhen Res. 100% 73 1990's
B EIER S8R e iF i EE

134 Block 8 Peng Sheng Village Futian, Shenzhen Res. 100% 47 1992
B8R AYImiEE R EE

135  Coastal International Centre Suzhou, Jiangsu Hotel 100% 38,691 2009
e BB L TEREFRN T BIE

136 Shenrong Building Futian, Shenzhen Com. & Res. 40% 3,643 2000
RERAE AYITiEE R BEREE

137 No.4 Tengfei Street Shenyang, Liaoning Res. and Carpark 46.925% 153 1992
R ET45% BRERRGH FEREES

138  Land in Shawan Shawan, Shenzhen Carpark 80% 1,480 2002
DB AT BE 25

139 Block 709, Liantang Industrial Area Luohu, Shenzhen Ind. 80% 4,941 1994
EETERT09R v iE il I

140 Lian Nan Garden Luohu, Shenzhen Res. 80% 744 1993
EHtE YT R EE

141 Shenyang Dongfang Weinisi Shenyang, Liaoning Res. 74.68% 160 2005
=5 R e A BEARGT EE

142 Shenyang Wuai Logistic Building Shenyang, Liaoning Ind. 74.68% 5680  1994-1996
EHLERER BELARGT I%

143 Shenyang Wuai Shengang Bus Station ~ Shenyang, Liaoning Carpark 74.68% 40,107 2011
and Meibo Trading Centre
BHRLEAERERRXBESZTL HEELEEGD BE5
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Property List
ME—BEXR

Group IV — Property interest held by the Company for self-occupation

FOE -—-AORBEEERZYERES
Interest to the Total GFA  Completion
No.  Project/Property Address Use Company (sq.m.) Year
AT HEEER

F¥ EE/WEER bichd iife3 Frib s (F5XK) TIEH

144 Building on Xinghe Road Huizhou, Guangdong Res. 40% 543 2002
BIAREMEETF BREBMT F=E

145  Buildings and Land in Taihe County  Ji'an, Jiangxi Off. & Ind. 40.8% 12,874  1978-2004
FNGETHRERE IRETERM ROERTE

146 Elaine Court Nos.211-215 Tong Choi Street, Res. 40% 43 1986

Hong Kong

RER BENEBEE2112215% FE

147 Shing Tak Mansion No.15 Peace Ave., Homantin, Res. 40% 63 1962

Hong Kong

RERE BENEMXEATE55% F=E

148  lJinsong Building Futian, Shenzhen Ind. 75% 3,600 2001
HRAE AYTiER R I

149 Jinghai Garden Futian, Shenzhen Res. 75% 200 1998
REEE AYITiER R FE

150  Bihai Hong Shu Yuan Futian, Shenzhen Com 75% 7,431 2004
BRIHE AYITiER R [EES

151 Mingzhu Times Square Ma'anshan, Anhui Res. 99.54% 462 2005
ELERRES B HRIT FE

Sub-total /JN&t 183,338
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

REBFEREES

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Meeting of Shenzhen
Investment Limited (“the Company”) will be held at Garden Room, 2nd
Floor, Hotel Nikko Hong Kong, 72 Mody Road, Tsimshatsui East, Kowloon,
Hong Kong on Thursday, 19 June 2014 at 10:00 a.m. for the following
purposes:—

1. To receive and consider the audited financial statements, the report of
the directors and the independent auditor ‘s report for the year ended

31 December 2013. (Resolution 1)

2. To declare a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2013 in
cash form with scrip option. (Resolution 2)

3. To consider and approve, if thought fit, the following resolutions, each
as a separate resolution:

(a) to re-elect Mr. GAO Shengyuan as Director. (Resolution 3)

(b) to re-elect Dr. WONG Yau Kar David as Director.  (Resolution 4)

(c) to re-elect Mr. LU Hua as Director. (Resolution 5)
(d) to re-elect Mr. MOU Yong as Director. (Resolution 6)
(e) to re-elect Mr. HUANG Yige as Director. (Resolution 7)

(f) to authorize the board of Directors to fix the remuneration of the
Directors. (Resolution 8)

4.  To re-appoint auditors and to authorise the board of directors to fix
their remuneration. (Resolution 9)
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

BRERBFARSBESE

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modifications the
following resolutions:—

ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS

5. To grant a general mandate to the Directors to buy back shares of the

Company (“Shares").

(Resolution 10)

“THAT:

(a)

(b)

©

subject to paragraph (b) of this resolution, the exercise by
the directors of the Company during the Relevant Period (as
hereinafter defined) of all powers of the Company to buy back
Shares in issue on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”), or on any other stock exchange on which the
securities of the Company may be listed and is recognized by the
Securities and Futures Commission and the Stock Exchange for
this purpose, subject to and in accordance with all applicable laws
and/or the requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange or of any other stock exchange
as amended from time to time, be and is hereby generally and
unconditionally approved;

the total number of Shares to be bought back by the Company
pursuant to the approval of paragraph (a) of this resolution shall
not exceed 10% of the total number of Shares in issue as at the
date of the passing of this resolution (subject to adjustment in the
case of subdivision and consolidation of Shares) and the authority
pursuant to paragraph (a) of this resolution shall be limited
accordingly; and

for the purposes of this resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period from the passing of this
resolution until whichever is the earliest of:

(i) the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the
Company;

(i) the expiration of the period within which the next annual
general meeting of the Company is required by law to be
held; and

(iii) the passing of an ordinary resolution by shareholders of
the Company in general meeting revoking or varying the
authority given to the directors of the Company by this
resolution.”
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

BRERBFARSBESE

To grant a general mandate to the Directors to allot and issue new

Shares. (Resolution 11)
“THAT:
(a) subject to paragraph (c) of this resolution, the exercise by

(b)

©

the directors of the Company during the Relevant Period (as
hereinafter defined) of all powers of the Company to allot, issue
and deal with additional Shares and to make and grant offers,
agreements and options (including warrants, bonds, debentures,
notes and other securities which carry rights to subscribe for or
are convertible or exchangeable into Shares) which would or
might require Shares to be allotted be and is hereby generally and
unconditionally approved;

the approval in paragraph (a) of this resolution shall authorise
the directors of the Company during the Relevant Period (as
hereinafter defined) to make and grant offers, agreements and
options (including warrants, bonds, debentures, notes and other
securities which carry rights to subscribe for or are convertible or
exchangeable into Shares) which would or might require Shares to
be allotted after the expiry of the Relevant Period (as hereinafter
defined);

the total number of Shares allotted or agreed conditionally or
unconditionally to be allotted (whether pursuant to an option
or otherwise) by the directors of the Company pursuant to the
approval in paragraph (a) of this resolution, otherwise than
pursuant to (i) a Pro-Rata Issue (as hereinafter defined); or (ii)
the exercise of rights of subscription, conversion or exchange
under the terms of any existing warrants, bonds, debentures,
notes or other securities issued by the Company which carry
rights to subscribe for or are convertible or exchangeable into
Shares; or (iii) the exercise of options granted under any option
scheme or similar arrangement for the time being adopted for the
grant or issue of Shares or rights to acquire Shares; or (iv) any
scrip dividend or similar arrangement providing for the allotment
of Shares in lieu of the whole or part of a dividend on Shares in
accordance with the articles of association of the Company, shall
not exceed 20% of the total number of Shares in issue as at the
date of the passing of this resolution (subject to adjustment in
the case of subdivision and consolidation of Shares) and the said
approval shall be limited accordingly; and
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

BRERBFARSBESE

(d) for the purposes of this resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period from the passing of this
resolution until whichever is the earliest of:

(i) the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the
Company;

(i) the expiration of the period within which the next annual
general meeting of the Company is required by law to be
held; and

(i) the passing of a resolution by shareholders of the Company
in general meeting revoking or varying the authority given to
the directors of the Company by this resolution.

“Pro-Rata Issue” means an offer of Shares or issue of options,
warrants or other securities (including bonus issues or offers)
giving the rights to subscribe for Shares open for a period fixed by
the directors of the Company to holders of Shares whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company (and, where
appropriate, to holders of other securities of the Company entitled
to the offer) on a fixed record date in proportion to their holdings
of such Shares (or, where appropriate such other securities)
(subject in all cases to such exclusions or other arrangements as
the directors of the Company may deem necessary or expedient
in relation to fractional entitlements or having regard to any
restrictions or obligations under the laws of, or the requirements
of any recognised regulatory body or any stock exchange in, any
territory applicable to the Company).”
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

BRERBFARSBESE

To extend the general mandate granted to the Directors to allot and
issue new Shares. (Resolution 12)
“THAT:

subject to the passing of resolution nos. 10 and 11 set out in the
notice convening this meeting, the general mandate granted to the
directors of the Company to exercise the powers of the Company
to allot, issue and deal with additional Shares pursuant to resolution
no. 11 set out in the notice convening this meeting be and is
hereby extended by the addition thereto of a total number of Shares
bought back by the Company under the authority granted pursuant
to resolution no. 10 set out in the notice convening this meeting,
provided that such extended number of Shares shall not exceed 10%
of the total number of Shares in issue as at the date of the passing of
this resolution (subject to adjustment in the case of subdivision and
consolidation of Shares).”

To approve the refreshment of the 10% limit in respect of the grant
of options under the share option scheme of the Company.
(Resolution 13)

“THAT:

(a) the directors of the Company be and are hereby generally
authorised during the Relevant Period (as hereinafter defined)
to grant options pursuant to share option scheme adopted by
the Company on 22 June 2012 (the “Share Option Scheme")
to subscribe for Shares up to the 10% of the total number of
Shares in issue as at the date of passing this resolution (subject
to adjustment in the case of subdivision and consolidation of
Shares) (the “Refreshed Limit") and to exercise all the powers
of the Company to allot, issue and deal with the Shares upon the
exercise of such options provided that:

(i) the total number of Shares which may be allotted or
agreed conditionally or unconditionally to be allotted upon
the exercise of options which may be granted under the
authority of this resolution shall not exceed the Refreshed
Limit;

| 253
Shenzhen Investment Limited
RIERAB R A A
ANNUAL REPORT 2013 %R

BARTES 2 — R B R 3T
FRXoD ° (B12HRER)

[ B

HEARARGBEEMBAZEIORE]
BARRERBE BAERTARGE
ERBEARAARGBEMHA2E11H
RERTEARRZENRE  BTK
BRERIMNRG 2 —MERE - #RREAR
ARBEERAARGBEEME 2 F10E
REBERR T 2B Z R @A
ZIB—MRIRER ¢ EZBEARZROEE
MEBBARNAZRBBE AEBRTRG
e (RHOFAREHETTRE) 2
109% ° |

HEE FEBIREARR R BRAERT SR
TEEARE 2 1000PREE o (SB13TEREFER)

(&

(@) BEREARAESNEHAHM
(B TXEFRE) ARBARR AR
—E-_FXAZ+tZHERHZ
RS ([BREE] &H
BRENRBRZENTREER
MAEAEBETRNDEEI0%NZ
M1 (B 10 17 4 & & OF s 7] T 8
#2)([EHRE]) URESBER
ERETEETRITIERARMAE
HENBLE - BITREERD - I

() BAITERBIIRABERZRER T
Rz B A T ACE KRR
BB 2 IR B
NEBBEHRER



(b)

©

(i)

(iii)

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

BRERBFARSBESE

options granted under the Share Option Scheme prior to
the date of this resolution (including those outstanding,
cancelled, lapsed or exercised in accordance with the terms
of the Share Option Scheme) shall not be counted for the
purpose of calculating the Refreshed Limit); and

the number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise
of options which may be granted under the Refreshed Limit
and all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share options
schemes of the Company shall not exceed 30% of the total
number of Shares in issue from time to time;

the approval in paragraph (a) of this resolution shall authorise
the directors of the Company during the Relevant Period (as
hereinafter defined) to make or grant offers or agreements that
would or might require Shares to be allotted and/or options to
be granted in accordance with the Share Option Scheme after the
expiry of the Relevant Period (as hereinafter defined);

for the purpose of this resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period from the passing of this
resolution until whichever is the earliest of:

(i) the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the
Company;

(i) the expiration of the period within which the next annual
general meeting of the Company is required by law to be
held;

(i) the passing of a resolution by shareholders of the Company

in general meeting revoking or varying the authority given by
this resolution; and

(iv) the termination or expiry of the Share Option Scheme.”

(b)

©

AR 2 B R AR B B A
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(v) BERAERTBIR EERE - |

By order of the Board AEEEWD
Shenzhen Investment Limited FYERER A
LU Hua B

Chairman *E

Hong Kong, 28 April 2014 &8 —Z-—mWENA=-+/N\H
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

BRERBFARSBESE

Registered Office:

8th Floor, New East Ocean Centre,
9 Science Museum Road,
Tsimshatsui,

Kowloon,

Hong Kong

Notes:

1. A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the meeting convened
by the above notice is entitled to appoint one or more proxies to attend, speak
and vote in his stead. Votes may be given either personally (or, in the case of
a shareholder being a corporation, by its duly authorized representative) or by
proxy in accordance with the articles of association of the Company. A proxy
need not be a member of the Company.

2. The instrument appointing a proxy must be in writing under the hand of the
appointor or of his attorney duly authorized in writing, or if the appointor is a
corporation, either under seal, or under the hand of an officer or attorney duly
authorized.

3. Where there are joint registered holders of any Share(s), any one of such
persons may vote at the meeting, either personally or by proxy, in respect of
such Share(s) as if he were solely entitled thereto, but if more than one of such
joint holders be present at the meeting personally or by proxy, that one of the
said persons so present whose name stands first on the register of members
of the Company in respect of such Share(s) shall alone be entitled to vote in
respect thereof.

4.  To be valid, a form of proxy, together with the power of attorney or other
authority, if any, under which it is signed or a notarially certified copy of that
power or authority must be delivered to the office of the Company's share
registrar, Tricor Standard Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's
Road East, Hong Kong as soon as possible but in any event not less than 48
hours before the time appointed for the meeting (or any adjournment thereof,
as the case may be).

5. Delivery of an instrument appointing a proxy shall not preclude a member of the
Company from attending and voting in person at the meeting or poll concerned
and, in such event, the instrument appointing a proxy shall be deemed to be
revoked.

| 255 |
Shenzhen Investment Limited
RIERAB R A A
ANNUAL REPORT 2013 %R

BB
LEE

L
R 2 RE I
BV ETSE VAL

Bt

BERUFE LMBEMERANARSRES LR
EMEMKRR - AR E IR EHRRE
BoBE URERKRE - REAREZAR
ERMAA - BRUANE ERFBRE (WRR
REE - AIRmETFARERR) AHEXR
RERBERRE - RZRRBAR/LRAMR
o

RERZRRZIXBEARREAREELNE
EEAREZREARERE  HMEEA
AEE - RIZANEZEEEKEEEE A
HEFAREREAREREE -

R BEMBRD Z2BEFAA - EA—R2UE
BEFAEABARG AT RRERRAE L3t
BRBRNEER  BORSE—FELEREK
MEREZ AL - HfHEB - BBEFEAL
FAE (TwBHFIEERERARLRE) © A
AR RERMERIR A M AR &AL B
FAANZEKER -

REXZERBERERE 2 RES R EAM R
X (InE) K& ABEASZEER 2 RE
ERREXHEIAN  ARREERATZR
NBEEREEEZEFRAF @ it /E
BT ERARERI835A MAL221E - I
FERNARKEEARNASHEEMES (RT
BRME) 5 ERITRE48/NRRIRE - 7

RAE

REREZZRRZIXIER  BRRDAHRS
HEAE  IREERE - ERERT - &
ERZRERZ IEHEAR A W ©



NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

BRERBFARSBESE

To ascertain the shareholders’ entitlement to attend and vote at the meeting, the
register of members of the Company will be closed from Monday, 16 June 2014
to Thursday, 19 June 2014, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer
of Shares will be registered. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the
meeting, all duly completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the office of the Company's share registrar,
Tricor Standard Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's Road East,
Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 13 June 2014.

Subject to approval of the shareholders at the meeting, the proposed final
dividend will be payable to shareholders whose names appear on the register
of members of the Company on Thursday, 26 June 2014. To ascertain the
shareholders’ entitlement to the proposed final dividend, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from Wednesday, 25 June 2014 to
Thursday, 26 June 2014, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer
of Shares will be registered. In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend,
all duly completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company's share registrar, Tricor Standard Limited, at
Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration
not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 24 June 2014.

Pursuant to rule 13.39(4) of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), any vote of the shareholders at the meeting
shall be taken by poll except where the Chairman, in good faith, decides to allow
a resolution which relates purely to a procedural or administrative matters to be
voted on a show of hands and the Company will announce the results of the
poll in the manner prescribed under Rule 13.39(5) of the Listing Rules.

With regard to items 3 and 5 to 8 of this notice, a circular giving details of the
re-election of retiring directors, general mandates to buy back shares and to
issue shares and the refreshment of the Share Option Scheme Limit will be
despatched to the shareholders together with the Annual Report 2013 of the
Company on 28 April 2014.

As at the date of this notice, the Board comprises 9 directors, of which Mr. LU
Hua, Mr. GAO Shengyuan, Mr. MOU Yong and Mr. LIU Chong are executive
directors of the Company, Dr. WU Jiesi and Mr. HUANG Yige are non-executive
directors of the Company and Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael, Mr. LI Wai Keung
and Dr. WONG Yau Kar David are independent non-executive directors of the
Company.
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